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Lori A. Shibinetic

Commissioner

Patricia M. Tiilcy
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DI VISION OF PUBLIC HE A L TH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27M50I 1-800^52-3345 Ext. 4501.

Fax:603-271-4827 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

wsnv.dhhs.nh.gov

February 23, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services,'.to-amend an existing contract vyith Northern Human Services (VC#177222-B004),
Conway, NH, to expand the North Country Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve
Families by developing a regional health plan to address barriers to accessing resources that
support families with young children, experiencing complex stressors, by increasing, the price
limitation by $30,000 from $600,000 to $630,000 with no change to the contract completion date
of June 30, 2023, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019, item
#78B, amended on October 7, 2020, item #9, amended on April 21. 2021, item #19, and most
recently amended on December 8, 2021, item #14. ,

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to develop and implement a regional health plan, titled
"North Country Early Childhood Strategy Map and Performance Scorecard," which focuses on
addressing the barriers to families accessing resources that may include food, healthcare, mental
health, and childcare, by leveraging the existing Regional Early Childhood network. In addition,
this request corrects a scrivener's error in the budget documents attached to the current contract.

The regional health plan aligns with NH's Early Childhood strategic plans. The expanded
services will increase local and regional coordination of services and local assessments withiri
the North Country in order to implement strategieis to address families' needs.

The Contractor will engage new and existing regional and state partners in the
development of the North Country Early Childhood Strategy Map and Performance Scorecard.
The Contractor will mobilize a minimum of ten (10) partnerships with Early Childhood Regional.
Lead Agencies and Public Health Networks that focus on addressing health disparities, support
the Early Childhood Region to develop strategies to identify families' needs. Families' needs may
include, but are not limited to mental health services: substance use disorder services; health and
developmental supports; and economic supports. Once families' needs are identified, the

The Dcpartmenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Contractor will assist with connecting families to appropriate assistance programs based on
identified needs.

The population served is overburdened families, caregivers with substance misuse, and
families with children eight (8) years of age or younger who are at risk of child abuse of neglect
and other adverse childhood experiences. The regions served include Coos County and Northern
Grafton County. Approximately 500 children and their families will be served through June 30
2023.

The Department will continue to monitor services to ensure:

•  85% of families with children birth to five (5) years of age receive home visiting
services.

•  The number of early.childhood practitioners in Coos County trained iri evidence-
based social emotional practices increases by 10%.

•  85% ofchildrenfive(5)yearsof ageoryoungerinCoosCounty receive Ages and
Stages Questionnaire (ASQ) and/or ASQ-social emotional development
screenings at least once per year.

•  The rate of families with complex needs served by collaborative teams who report
they received effective care coordination is 50% higher than the state average.

•  The Contractor provides quarterly reports specifying the number and proportion of
new, expanded or existing partnerships mobilized to address barriers to accessing
Healthcare, Childcafe. Mental Health and Substance Misuse supports, food and,
economic supports; and other services that alleviate health disparities and
inequitles.-

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, regional health planning in
NH's North Country may become fragmented and less coordinated without alignment across
programs, which may result in increased barriers to families trying to access needed supports in
Coos and Grafton Counties. ;

Area served: Coos County and Northern Grafton County

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.391, FAIN NH750T000031

In the event the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

G—OocuSignedby:
IL\aJa. tV. iMAjjrij
-24QAS37EOBEB48e...

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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North Country Community Collaboration to Strengthen & Preserve Families
SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A04

Fiscal Detail Sheet

05-95-042-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD-FAMILY
SERVICES {100% GENERAL FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 643-504191

Contracts

for

Prog Svc
42105756^ $100,000 $0 $100,000

2020 643-504191

. Contracts

for

Prog Svc
42105756 $0 $0 $0

2021 643-504191

Contracts

for ■

Prog Svc
42105756 $200,000 $0 $200,000

Subtotals $300,000 $0 $300,000

05-95-090-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
ANDHUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, COMMUNITY COLLABORATION
(50% Federal Funds and 50% General Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731

Contracts

for'

Prop Svc

90070470 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2022 102-500731

Contracts

for Prog
Svc

90070471 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2023 102-500731

Contracts

for

Prog Svc

90070470 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2023 ,102-500731
Contracts

for Prog
Svc

90070471 $50,000 $0 $50,000

Subtotals $200,000 $0 $200,000

Page 1 of 2
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North Country Community Collaboration to Strengthen & Preserve Families
SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A04

Fiscal Detail Sheet

05-95-090-901010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF POLICY & PERFORMANCE, PH
COVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES {100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731

Contracts

for

Prog Svc

90577170 $50,000 $23,000 $73,000

2023 102-500731

Contracts

for

Prog Svc

90577170 $50,000 $7,000 $57,000

Subtotal $100,000 $30,000 $130,000

Totals $600,000 $30,000 $630,000

Page 2 of 2
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the North Country Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Famiiies
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Northern Human Services ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #78B), as amended on October 7. 2020 (Item #9), as amended on April 21, 2021.
(Item #19) and most recently Amended on December 8, 2021 (Item #14), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services.to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the rtiutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$630,000.

2. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #3, Scope of Services by adding Subsections 2.18 through 2.23, to
.  read;

2.18 The Contractor shall develop North Country Early Childhood Strategy Map and
Performance Scorecards, which are regional health, equity plans, utilizing the outcome
performance tracking tool.

2.19 The Contractor shall engage new and existing regional and state partners to create
Straitegy Maps and Performance Scorecards.

2.20 The Contractor shall mobilize a minimum of 10 partnerships with Early Childhood Regional
Lead agencies and Public Health Networks that focus on addressing health disparities and
inequities.

2.21 The Contractor shall support the North Country Early Childhood Regions to develop
strategies to identify needs at the local level and manage the Strategy Maps and
Performance Scorecards by region to ensure early childhood families have information and
referral support to access services that include, but are not limited to:

2.21.1 Healthcare.

2.21.2 Childcare.

2.21.3 Mental health services.

2.21.4 Substance use disorder supports.

2.21.5 Food and economic supports.

2.22 The Contractor shall facilitate strategic plans that align with NH's early childhood strategies,
objectives and outcome measures focusing on reducing health inequities in vulnerable
populations of young children and families.

2.23 The Contractor shall support activities that assist North Country Early Childhood Regions
to identify and implement strategies to monitor outcome performance measures at regional
and local program levels in an online software platform. r

Northern Human Services A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials ^
SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A04 Page 1 of 5 Date 2/23/2022



DocuSign Envelop© ID: 662BD7F4-7584-411C-A455-O05F1CD57331

3. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #3, Scope of Services, Section 3, Reporting by adding Subsection
3.7, to read:

3.7 The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports that specify the number and proportion of
new, expanded or existing partnerships mobilized to address barriers to accessing
resources that may-include, but are not limited to:

3.7.1 Healthcare.

3.7.2 Childcare.

3.7.3 Mental health services.

3.7.4 Substance use disorder supports.

3.7.5 Food and economic supports.

3.7.6 Other services that contribute to alleviating health disparities and Jnequities.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Prepedent to Payment, Section 2, to read:

2. This agreement is funded with:

2.1. 37% Federal Funds:

2.1.1. 16% from the Community Collaboration to Strengthen and Preserve Families in
NH: A Prevention, Public Health, Cross-Sector Approach, as awarded oh June
25, 2020 by the US Department of Health and Human Services, Administration
on Children, Youth & Families, Children's Bureau, CFDA #93.670; Federal

Award Identification Number (FAIN) 90CA1858; and

2.1.2. 21% from the NH Initiative to Address COVID-19 Health Disparities: Activities to
Support State, Tribal, Local and Territorial (STLT) Health Department Response
to Public Health or Healthcare Crises, as awarded on May 27, 2021 by the US
Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention) CFDA 93.391, FAIN NH750T000031. ,

2.2. 63% General Funds.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4. Subsection 4.1. to
read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditureis incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement in accordance with Exhibit A, Amendment 3, Scope of Services,
as amended by this Amendment #4; and:

4.1.1. Exhibit B-1, Budget Sheet;

4.1.2. Exhibit B-2, Amendment #1 Budget; and

4.1.3. Exhibit B-5, Amendment #4, SFY 2022 Budget through Exhibit B-8, Amendment #4,
SPY 2023 Budget.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, to add Subsection
4.6, to read:

4.6. The Contractor must provide supporting documentation of authorized expenses incurred in
the previous month, that may include but is not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

Northern Human Services A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials 1

38-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A04 Page 2 of 5 Date 2/23/2022
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7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, to add Subsection
4.7, to read:

4.7. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice is completed, dated and submitted to the
Department with the supporting documentation as specified in 4.6, in order to initiate
payment. ^

8. Delete Exhibit 8-3 Budget - Amendment #2 (SPY 2022).in its entirety, to correct a scrivener error.

9. Delete Exhibit B-2, Amendment #3, SPY 2022 Budget in its entirety, to correct a scrivener error.

10. Delete Exhibit B-3; Amendment #3, SPY 2023 Budget in its entirety.

11. Delete Exhibit B-4 Budget - Amendment #3 (SPY 2023) in its entirety.

12. Add Exhibit B-5, Amendment #4, SPY 2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit B-6, Amendment #4. SPY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

14. Add Exhibit B-7, Amendment #4, SPY 2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

15. Add Exhibit B-8, Amendment #4. SPY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Northern Human Services A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials [ _
SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A04 Page 3 of 5 Date 2/23/2022
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,
\

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/23/2022

Date

-OocuSlgn«<t by:

a/. "TiUcy
-(narooorsDrcucB.:

Name: Patncia m. Tilley

Title:
Director

2/23/2022

Date

Northern Human Services

^ObcuSignsd by:

Gaetjens-Oleson

Title:
chief Executive officer

Northern Human Services

88-2019-DPH8-26-NORTH-01 ■A04

A-8-1..2

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been revievwed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Docu$lgn«d by;

2/23/2022

Date Name: Rot>yn cuanno . .

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of.meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Northern Human Services A-S-1.2

SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A04 Page 5 of 5
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Exhibit B-5, Amendment #4, SPY 2022 Budget

Connetor Nam*; Herttwm Human S«fvtc*i

PrejMt TO*: SS-201MPHS-26-NORTH-01-MM

Budget Period: SPT 2022 <Jidy1, 2021 -Jur>e U, 2022)

Naw Hampshir* Department of Health and Human Servlceo

Comnnty CoUtmraters

T etal Program Cost Contractor Share / Match

JoM Orect kxlirecl Total ' Dead fetdiract Total

J $

$

$  •
$

«

« $ S

j J $ s

$

$ J

$

s

s

j s

% s

% $

J s S $

s $ $

J J

$

9

$ %

$ s

$

i  90.909.50 $  90,909.50 S i  90.909.50 5  ' 90.909.50

S  9.090.50 $  9,090.50 $ $ i  9.090.50 S  9.090.50

S

t J

$ s t

TOTAI. $  100.000.00 i %  100.000.00 s $ t  lOOXWO.OO $  100.000.00

IndPecl As A Percent of DkM

Northern H«mn Secvlcas

SS-201»4>PHS-2e-NORT>M1.A(M

ErNW B-5. Amectdmanl M, SPY 2022 Budget

Page i of1

Coitractor Mtiali
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Exhibit B-6, Amendment #4, SPY 2023 Budget

Contractor Namo: Korthom Human Sarvkas

Pre^TUe: SS-2019-OPHS-2e-NORTH41-A04

Budgat Partod: SPY 2023 (Jtiy 1.2022 • Jtvta 30.2023)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

CdiTVTunly Colal>oraSons

Contraelof Shara' UatetiTotal Pfoaram Cost Funded try DHHS contract shara

MIroct

1. Total SabryWaoos

2. EmcaovooBcnallts

3; ConsUIaits

4. EqiipmetS:

Reoair and Miwtenanco

Pwcnase/Oeorocotion

5. SiOTles:

Pnetmacy

6, Traval

7, Occioaney

a. CutTOfS E)gonsas

_Tgagl2n^
Postaoo

Sutwctiptiora

Autft and tooat

Boanj Eipcnses

10- MartotinolCommtrtcatiom

11. Staff Edocadonend Training

12. Suaeoitracts/Aqfecmenls

13. Otter 10% FiacalFeo

tndirset As A Parcant of Dhact

Nortnam Hunan Sorvkes

$$-201M)PHS-2&NORTH4)t-A04

Edttit B-6. Amendment M. SPY 2023 Bi^oel
Page I of 1

Contractor Mtlab
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Exhibit B-7, Amendment #4, SPY 2022 Budget

Centrteter Nam*: Nartham HtMnan SaivlcM

Pre^ TUt: SS-»1M>PHS-2e^OftTH-01-AM

B«Klg«( Period; SPY 2022 (JUy 1, 2021 - June M. 2022)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Covid-19 DIspanly

Funded by PHH^ centraet ahara
Una tttm

Total Program Coat

Miract

Contract oc Share / Match

i;_^oaj_S5to2rwog^^
2. Emclovea Banalitt

3. ConsUiaits

4. Equcnart:

Reoeir and Mairtananca

Ptachaae/Deoracialion

5. Stppies:

Pfffnaey

7. Occwrancy

B. Curert E:gen»«»

Telephone

Poataoe

Stjbecrlpaom

Audit and Legal

_Bovd_Ei£wsa_
9. Sonwera

10, Mariiatino'Commuriicaljons

11. Staff Edixalion end Trtfnlnq

12. SiAeofPaeta/Aqreetnatla

13. Other: 10% FbealFee

73.000.00 I
Indkact As A Parcant of Direct

Northern Hisnan Sarrieas

SS-2019-OPHS-26-NORTH-01-AO4

Edibil B-7. Amendrnart «M. SPY 2022 Budget
Pago 1 of 1

Contrador Inttah
fT«
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Exhibit B-8, Amendment #4, SFY 2023 Budget

: Northern Humen Servtcee

Preset TBt: SS-»1M>PHS-2e-NORTK-01WUM

Budget Period; SPf 2023 (My 1. 2022-June 30. 2023)

Now Hompshiro Oopoftmont of Health and Human Servlceo

CevldlSOiWwiOM

Ceniraesor Share I Melcti Funded by OHHS milrect ehete

Line lem Mireet

1. Total SMeiyiWeoee

2. Ent(ilo>eeBene(ite

3, Cermnns

«. Eqtiomoft:

Rartd

Recoir ifd Meineneixe

PuoiwseCeprotietion

5, Suppiee:

Ub

PrwrnecY

Medical

Oflico

7. Occuancy

8. C Jrerk Edwneee
Telephine

Subeoiotione

Audt end Legal

Beard Broeaeee

9. Softtnre

10. MeftietinQiCornrnuicatiofO

11. Stefl EdueoMen and Treireto

12. SteeofpeetoiAdieemem 5tJ20.00

13. OOter lO%rteeaiFee 5.100.00

57,ooaoo StfiOOM I

Iftdbect As A Percent e< OOect

NortTiam Huian Services

SS-20>»OPHS-2BNORTH«I-ACM

EdttA AmenOner* «, SFY 2023 Bulgei
Peps 1 of t

Coteacler lr«Mi
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the Stoic of New Hanipshirc. do hereby certify titat NORTHERN HUMAN

SERVICES is 0 New Hampshire Nonproni Corporation registered to transact business in New Mnmpshirc on March 03, 1971. 1

further certify that nil I'ecs and documents required by the Secrcinry of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

for as this office is concerned.

Husiitcss 10:62362

Certificate Number: 00053487JO

s
13

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand end cause to be niTixcd

the Seal of the StaicofNcw Hampshire,

this 5(h day of April A.D. 2021.

y/W,

William M. Cmrdner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, James Salmon, hereby certify that:
(Name of the e.-iecieci Orficyr of Uie Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract sinnaiorv)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Northern Human Services.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on January 24. 2022. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Oalc)

VOTED: That Suzanne Gaetiens-Oleson. CEO (may list more than one person)
and Tilie of Coi)trnct Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Northern Human Services to enter into contracts or agreements vyith the State
(Name of Corporation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full, authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 2/15/22

Jigndture of Elected Officer
Name: James Salmon

Title: Treasurer

Rev. 03/24/20
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DocuSlgn Envelope ID; l681BA8E*ACA2^AA0.9C5D-gD7F7A1SAF09
WIlOlltPT* IV NORTHHUM

ACORD,. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (Mu/Dcrrwr)

10/05/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S}. AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. '

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(l08) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certlficato holder In lieu of such endorsement(8}.

pnooucen

USI Insurartce Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford. NH 03110

855 874^123

christlne.Skehan

[«. Em: 855 874-0123 r;)£.Ko,:
Acvmrss; Chri8tIno.Skeh3n@usi.com

mSURER(S) APFOROiVG COVERAQS HAIC »

INSURER A: Philadelphia Insurance Company 32204

MSUkEO

Northern Human Services, Inc.

87 Washington Stroot

Conway. NH 03818-6044

INSURER B; NH Employers Insurance Company 13083

mSURERC:

MSURERO:

WSURERE:

INSURER F;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:. REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT.. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HERElN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REOLfCEO BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL
MW

SUbk
WYP POLICY NUMBER UMfTS

COMMERCIAL CtNERAL LIASIUTY

)£ 1 ! OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE i

CLAIMS-MAC i

UEO EXP lAtrt on* pcrton) i

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY t

Q£A AOCREOATE UMIT APPUES PER:

POUCY 1 1 JECT 1 1 LOG
OTHER;

GENERAL AGGREGATE S

PRODUCTS • COMPIOP AGG s

s

AUTOMOOILE LIABILITY COMSINEO SINGLE UMIT.
»

ANT AUTO

HEOULEO
rros
M-OWNEO
rros ONLY

eOOILV INJURY (P*f p*fiw) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

sc
M

BOOILY INJURY (P*f KcMwil) i  ■

NC
A1

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(P*r •edd«ni) s

1

A X UM8RELLALIAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB761993 )3/31/2021 03/31/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE s10.000.000

AGGREGATE S10.000.000

DEO X RETENTlONSlOOOO follow form s

B WORKERS COUPENSAnON
AND EMPLOYERS'UAOIUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNgR/EXECUTIVE) 1
OFFICER/MEMSER EXCLUDE07 N
|U«Bd*lo«y In HH) ' '
V  dMoliM undtr
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bttow

n;a

ECC60040004322021A 99/30/2021 09/30/2022
V, PER OTH-
X STATIITF FR

e.L. EACH ACClOENT sSO'O.OOO
E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE sSOO.OOO

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT sSOO.OOO

OeSCfUPTlON OF OPCRATIONS1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddWenN R*nurKs Sch(du)«. mwf !>• •ttKhM) If mort »|MCt requtretf)

Evidence

Evidence of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH Department of Health
and Human Services (DHHS)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant St

Concord, NH 03301

1

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD25(2016/03) 1 of 1
#S33629760/M33620109

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rosorvod.
The ACORD name ond logo ere roglstorod marks of ACORD

BDK2P
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NORTHHUM

ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (UMAOnnY)

06/09/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE'DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF.INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. '

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certiflcato does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsomentfs).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

Christlne.skehan

855 874-0123 r-CS.Moi;
Chrlstlne.8kchan@u8i.com

INSUReR(S) APPOADIKd COVERAOe NAtC •

INSURER A; Philadelphia Insurance Company 32204

IMSUftEO

Northern Human Services, Inc.

87 Washington Stroot

Conway, NH 03818-6044

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D: '

INSURER e:

INSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE USTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTAHOING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN f^Y HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

msR
LTR ■  TYPE OF INSURANCE

AbOL
hsn

SUBR
POLtCY NUMBER UMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GeNERAL UABIUTY'

)£ 1 X[ OCCUR
PHPK2255726 33/31/2021 03/31/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE s1.000.000

CLAIMS-MAC slOO.OOO

MEO EXP (Any on* Pdrton) sS.OOO

PERSONAL a AOV INJURY sl.000,000

GENl ACCREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AOOREOATE s 3,000.000

X POUCV 1 1 JECT 1 1 LOC '
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO s 3,000.000

s.

A AUTOMOBILE UABOJTY PHPK2255722 33/31/2021 03/31/202:
COMOINEO SINGLE LIMIT

ii,000,000-

X ANY AUTO

HEOULEO
TOS
JnOwnEO
nOSONLY '

eOOlLY IMJUfly {P*r p*<*on) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIREO
AUTOS ONLY -

5C
Al

.BOOtLY INJURY (P*r acddtnt) s

N<
AL

PROPERTY DAMAGE
l?»r tccident)

s

s

A X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB761993 33/31/2021 03/31/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE s10.000.000

AGGREGATE ' s10.000.000

OED X RETENTIONSlOOOO s

WORKERS COUPENSAnON'

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y ,
ANY PnOPRlETOR/PARTMER/EXECUTIVEr-H
OFFICER/MEMBER EXClUOEOI
(UandMory In NH)
H y«j. dMcrib* vnd«
oESCRIPnON OF OPERATIONS PMow

N/A

PER OTH-
STATUTF FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT S

E.L. DISEASE - £A EMPLOYEE s

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT s

A

A

Profession Llab

Physician Prof
PHPK2255726

PHPK2255726

33/31/2021

33/31/2021

03/31/2022

03/31/2022

$1.000.000/$3,000,000

$1,000,000/53,000,000

OESCRIPnON OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACOR0101, Addition*] RtmaNit SchAduN, may b« Stuchtd 11 mori cptc* It raqulrad)

Evidence of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH

Department of Health and Human Services

. - SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCEUEO BEFORE

' THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY. PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant St

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
\

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S31670548/M31670347

(D1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rosorvod.

The ACORD nemo and logo are registered rriarks of ACORD
CASCA
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Statement of Mission ^ ' ' I
i

"To assist and advocate for people affected by menial illness, developmental disabilities and
related disorders in living meaningful lives."

Statement of Vision

Everyone who truly needs our services can receive them, as we strive to meet ever-changing
needs through advocacy, innovation, collaboration and skill.
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To the Board of Directors of

Northern Human Services, Inc.
Conway. New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northern Human Services, Inc. (a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as
of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related "statements of cash flows, and notes to the financial
statements for the years then ended, and the related statements of activities and functional
expenses for the year ended June 30. 2020.'

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted, in, the United States of
America: this-Includes the design. Implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of -financial statements that are free from material
misstalement. whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with "auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit, involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend oh the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers- internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate In the
circumstances, but hot for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also .includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion; the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Northern Human Services, Inc. as of Jurie 30, .2020 and 2019, and its
cash flows for the years then ended, and the changes In its net assets for the year ended June
30, 2020 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

V.

1
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Report on Summarized Comparative Information
•We have previously audited Northern Human Services, Inc.'s June 30, 2019 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements in'
our report dated October 22, 2019. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information
presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30. 2019." is consistent, in all material
respects, with the audited, financial statements from which.it has been derived.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of functional revenues and expenses on pages 26 - 34 and
schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 35, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of.
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates'directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements; The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in ,the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including cornparing.and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards .
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 20, 2021, on our consideration of Northern Human Sen/ices, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is. solely to
describe the scope of our testing of. internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Northern Human
Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Northern Human Services. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

January 20. 202,1
North Conway, New Hampshire
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITIGN

JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated

Total net assets without donor restrictions

Nel assets with donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2020

$  13,898.376

15,480,809

256.226

15.737,035

$  20,860,208

2019 .

$  11,282,632

Cash and cash equivalents, board designated
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $311.000 and

$328,000 for 2020 and 2019,. respectively

Grants receivable

Assets, limited use

Prepaid expenses and deposits

318,202

2,431,296

.515,878

724,596
193.859

318,202

1.965.991

227,519

501,911
295.077

Total current assets 18.082.207 14,591,332

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 261.407 •  364,455

OTHER ASSETS

Investments

Cash value of life insurance

2,064,316

452.278

1,966,886

432,585

Total other assets 2,516.594 2,399,471

Total assets' $  20.860.208 $  17,355.258

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Compensated absences payable

Other grants payable

Refundable advances

■  Deferred revenue

Refundable advances, maintenance of effort

Client funds held in trust

Due to related party

$  1,589,607

' 1,522,001
794.893

187.352

132,500

101,857

339,562

397,289

58,112

$  490,183

1.506,716

743.136

112.182

197.017

431,341

391,458

169,364

■ 48,423

Total liabilities 5,123,173 4.089.820

NET ASSETS

Net assets without donor restrictions

Undesignated

Board designated

15,162,607

318.202

12,691.772

318.202

13.009.974

-255.464

13.265.438

$  17,355.258

See Notes to Financial Statements

3
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NORTHERN HUMAN SgRVICES \UC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

2020

Total

2019

Summarized

PUBLIC SUPPORT

State'ehd federal grants
Other public support

Local and county support

Donations

Total public support

REVENUES

Program service fees

Production income

Other revenues

Total revenues

2,169,389

591,205

405,607

22.671

3,188,872

41,907,391

327,416

266,938

42,501,745

2,169,389

591,205

405,607

,22.671

3,188,872

41,907.391

327.416

266.938

42,501,745

1,131,728

603,307

442,733

26.990

2,204,758

38,997.170

456,617

382,737

39.836,524

^Total public support and revenues

EXPENSES

Program Services:
Mental health

Developmental services

Total program services

General management

Total expenses

EXCESS OF public SUPPORT

AND.REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

NON-OPERATING INCOME

Investment return

Gain on sale of property

Change in cash value of life insurance'

Interest income

Net assets released from restrictions

Total non-operating income

Change in net assets

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

45.690,617

11,370,057

25.774.536

37,144,593 '

6,283,048

43,427.641

2.262,976

113,984

3,500

19,693

69,233

1,449

207,859

2,470,835

13,009,974

2,211

(1,449)

762

762

255,464

$  15.480.809 $ ■ 256.226

11.370.057

25.774,536

37,144.593

6.283.048

43,427,641

2,262.976

113.984

3,500

19,693

71,444

208,621

2,471.597

13.265,438

15,737.035

42,041,282

11,010,994

24,129.392

35,140,386

5,128,004

40.266,390

1,772,892

93,900

18,808

92,269

204,977

1.977.869

11,287,569

$  13.265.438

See Notes to Financial Statomonta

'  ' 4 •
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  2.471.597 $  1.977.869

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation ' 181.684 203.721

Unrealized (gain) loss on investments (9.790) 30,002"

Realized gain on investments (57,410) (81.524)

Gain on sale of property (3.500) -

Change In cash value of life insurance (6.288) (6.129)

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable •  (465.305) ■ .  (534.267)

Grants receivable . (288.359) (123.775)

'  Assets, limited use (222,685) 118.040

Prepaid expenses and deposits 101,216 (814)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1.099.424 119,731

Accrued payroll and related liabilities 15,285 ,  (204.854)

Compensated absences payable 51,757 39.110

Other grants payable 75.170 42,381

Refundable advances (64.517) .• (140,909)

Deferred revenue (329.484) 315.656

Refundable advances, maintenance of effort .  (51,696) (580.064)

Client funds held in trust 227,925 (125,503)

Due to related party 9.689 3.734

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2.734.715 1.052,405

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property ■ (83.336) (40.833)

Proceeds from sale of property 8.000 ■

Purchases of investments (302!l15) (449,908)

Proceeds from sales of investments 316,669 457.019

Reinvested dividends (46,784) (42.378)

Change in cash value of life insurance (13,405) (12.679)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (118,971) (88.779)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,615,744 . 963.626

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 11.600.834- 10.637,200

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  14.216,578 $  11.600.834

Soo Notes to Financial Statements

S
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MORTHFRN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

TOTALS FOR ALL PROGRAMS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Mental Developmental General 2020 2019

Health Sorvlcee Subtotals Manaaement Total Summarized

IXPENSES .

Salaries and wages $ 7.256.309 $ 7,288.247 $ 14,544.556 • $ 3,603,080 $ 18,347,636 $ 18.504;225

Employee benellts 1,443,451 2,006.173 3,449,624 . 862,879 4.312,503 4.031,156

Payrolltaxes 511.6.11 505.954 1,017,565 242,248 1,259,813 1.297,577

Client wages 108,499 98,994 207,493 -  ■ 207,493 266,295

Professional fees' 206.342 13.952,776 14,159,118 770.902 14,930,020 11.428,062

Staff development -

and training . 19.191 19,969 39,160 5,295 44,455 69.802

Occupar^cy costs 604.577 510.258 1,114,835 183,690 1.298.725 1,306.350

Consumable supplies 196.136 206,721 402,857 59,328 462,185 515.745

Equipment expertses 105,910 141,286 247.196 45.942 293,138 302.932

Communicatioris 131,115 118,675 249.790 47,935 297,725 283,129

Travel and transportatiori 189.477 646,801 836.278 30,874 867.152 1,100.741

Assistance to individuals 1.961 77,038 78,999 140 79,139 113,138

Insurance 51.989 73,139 125,128 27,835 152,983 • 150,487

Membership dues -24,205 ■  16,785 40,990 87.476 128,466 127,194

Bad debt expense 508.139 108.562 616,701 -
616,701 750.495

Other expenses 11.145 3.158 14,303 115.224 129.527 21,062

Total expenses $ 11,370,057 $25,774,536 $ 37,144,593 S 6.283,048 S 43.427.641 $ 40.268,390

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

\  • State Children

Non>Speclalized Eligible Adult Outpatient . and

' Outoatient Outoatient Contracts Adolescents

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages $. 305,785 %  895,118 $  277,034 S  845,154

Employee t>er)efit9 51.579 117,088 55,526 ■ -146,560
Payroll taxes 21,592 60,436 19,730 59,273

Client wages ■ - - •

Professional fees 15,807 . 21,234 7;ii7 32,118

Staff development and training 865 6,337 728 3,136

Occupancy costs 30,785 56,343 19,900 .  44,634

Consumable supplies 15,456 11,165 3,185 10,122

Equipment expenses 8,260 . 9,410 3,201 7,617

Communications 22,116 19,573 2,874 .  9,403

Travel and transportation 48 1,588 4,351 23,661

Assistance to individuals 57 •  70 - 375

-  Insurance 3,556 7,493 2,719 6.053

Merfibership dues 2.277 4.753 1,350 4.675

Bad debt expense 10,441 67,115 301 ■  24,825

Other expenses 64 130 . 646 .  187

Total expenses $  488,708 $  1,277,853 $  398,662 $  1.217,793

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MQRTHFRN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Continued

Emergency
Sorvlcoa

EXPENSES

Salaries and wagea

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Client wages

Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs

Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses

CommuniMtions

Travel and transportation
Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Other

Non-BBH

Integrated

Health Grant

s 505.435 s 283.877 $ 28.654

93,382 67,793 4,005

34,701 19,752 2,206

11.933 9,757 11.273

778 2,067

29,465 13,355 ' 32,920
5.302 3.872 16.827

7,086 2.270 320

24.475 2.340 •

.1.145 7.452 239

47 6 -

4,062 1.675 -

1,270 567

29.523 1,242 -

52 40 -

$ .  748.656 5 416.065 $ 96.444

Bureau of

Drug & Alcohol

Services

134,646

25,594

9.531

1,282

761

4,227

635

636

639

491

569

884

.4,566
7

184,468

See Notes to Financiarstatemonts
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Continued

WORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH .

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Drug

Court

EXPENSES

Salaries ar>d wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes'

Client wages

Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs

Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues
Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Vocational

Sorvlcos

Restorative

Partial

Hospital

Case

Management

s 249.297 S 144.044 $ 50,325 S 801.809

43.679 33.545 13,087 163.766

17.304 14.036 3,796 57,497

. 49,566 - ■

3.125 ^251 902 20.513

696 - 108 8 578

. 12,105 2,288 44,080

2,532 3,870 •  19,248 11.920

6,233 2.020 622 9.417

2.911. 1.827 239 6,461

5.482 10.523 • 41.138

. . 63

1.312 474 -  6,908

. 419 148 2.263

1,598 1.772 4,400 151.290

8.859 580 7 171

$ 341.716 s 278.980 $ 95,544 $. 1,319,874

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Continued

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICeS INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Victims of

Supportive Community Bridge Crime Act

LIvina RosldencoB Grant Prooram

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages .S ■ 641.565 $  ■ 749,341 S  ' 36,098 $  377.776

Employee benefits .173,092 200,077 6,857 68,157

Payroll taxes 45,567 62,339 2,599 24,593

Client wages - - • '

Professional fees 15,281 5,383 570 8,559

Staff development and training 463 61 221 1,480

Occupancy costs 39,826 ' 43,829 117,842 22,749

. Consumable-supplies 12,497 27,012 1,075 4,227

Equipment expenses 7,698 1.0,894 131 3.878

Communications 6,425 11,231 • 3,524

Travel and transportation 41.185 4,565 1,991 6,297

Assistance to individuals 684 624 • • 21

Insurance 6.671 2,134 - 3,114

Membership dues 2,123 645 - 972

Bad debt expense 52,421 13,832 - 8,403

Other expenses ^64 91 - 39

Totafexpenses . $ 1,045,664 S  1,122,058 $  167,384 $  533,789

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MORTHFRN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALtH "

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Continued

EXPENSES

Sabries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Client wages

Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs

Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses

Communications

■ Travel and transportation

Assistance to Individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

.  Total expenses

Other Total

ACT Mental Health Mental Health 2019

Team Proorarha Proa rams 51ummarized

$  877,567 $ - 52,784 S  7.256.309 $  6.877,783

169,573 10,091 1.443.451 1.347,375

58.250 8.409 511,611 485,191

58,931 108,499 126,389

37,016 1,22V 206,342 232.781

843 41 19.191 25,417

66,852 23,375 604,577 534,882

8,038 39,153 196,136 210,246

6,331 '  19,866 105,910 108.075

7,288 , 7,789 131,115 124.747

35,310 4.011 189,477 248,647

14 . 1,961 3.676

4,964 285 51,989 ,53.176

1,771 88 24,205 27,022

135,984 426 •  508,139 604.579

47 61 ■  11.145 1.008

$  1.409.848 $  226,551 $  11.370.057 S  11.010,994

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MORTHFRN HUWAM RFRVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

for THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits

Payrol) taxes
Client wages .

Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs

Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses ■

. Communications

. Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuais

Insurance

■ Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

'  Total expense's

School Early Independent

Service District Day Supports Living

Coordination Contracts Proarams & Sorvlcea Services

S  . 611,199 S  62.146 S  2.706,030 $  474,436 ■ $  66,624

173,293 10,827 910,093 85,514 19,059

41,854 4.497 194,832 34.127 6,481

. . 87.760 -
-

188,830 - 257 151i700 162,415 17,303

862 20 3.463 3,459 167

47,971 1,916 244,066 10,098 4,459

12,294 574 56,198 7,432 865

6,925 ■ 465 87,752 3,955 1,160

•  4,605 230 40,746 18,682 721

17,314 1,399 431,982 74,034 • 2,204

1 . . 25,799 45 •

5.769 458 31,646 4,378 1,090

16 4 11,587 97 3

, 4,203 93,990 7,099

396 6 1,960 55 30

$  1,111,329 S  82,799 $  4,989,817 $  972,717 $  147,265

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MORTHERN HUMAfi RFRVICES. IMC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

WITH PRKDR YEAR-SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Continued

EXPENSES

Salaries and v/ages

Employee benefits

Payroll taxes
Client wages

Professional fees

Staff developnrtent and training
Occupancy costs

Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation
Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Family
Residence

1.897,667

•  502,042.
135.041

11,155

• 3,428,066

6,694

.132.775

93.W6

28,300

27,319

50,755

461

16,029

91

3,270

536

Combined Day/

Residential

Vendor

1,773,295

S  6,336,047 ' $ 1.773,295

Individual

Supported

Living

227,699

64,731

16,066

79

21,881

•  387

41,130

10,528

2.007

4,476

4,903

-1,093

2,292

3

29

i  397,504

Consolidated

Servicca

834,567

155,677'

45,411

1,331,284

1.547

3,903

. 4,241

7,043

16,664

54,024

25.940

7,540

4.176

96

$  2.492.113

Combined Day/

Residential

Services

15,082

4,309

1,060

1,576,834

58

' 1,613

10,707

358

175

515

316

$. 1,611,031

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MQRTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Continued

Other Total

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Ennployee benefits
Payroll (axes

Client wages

Professional fees

Staff development and training

Occupancy costs .

Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation-
Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues .

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Acquired Oevolopmental Developmental

Brain Services Services 2019

Disorder ProQfoms Proarams fiiimmarized

$  18.056 $ 354,541 $ 7,288,247 $  8,271.846

10.260 70,368 2,006,173 1,938.195

1,186 25,399 505,954 586.023

♦ 98,994 139,906

130.609 5,170.302 13,952.776 10,927,612

51 1,261 19.969 20,925

1.111 21.216 510,258 570,870'

323 9.713 206.721 240.950

■ 300 . 3,021 141.286 159,725

173 4.884 118.675 116.259

899 9,287 *646,801 809,689

23,184 77,038 . 108,288

269 3,352 73,139 72,670

. 808 16,785 . 16.036

. 108,562 145.916

3 43 3,158 2,482

$  163.240 S 5.697.379 $ 25.774.536 $  24.129,392

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MORTHgRN HUMAN SFRtflCES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Northern Human Services. Inc. (the Organization), is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation, and
was" created to develop and provide a comprehensive program of mental health, developmental
disabilities.'and rehabilitative care to the residents of Northern New Hampshire.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of Northern Human Services. Inc. have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting and. accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables and ofher
liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization Is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net assets are determined by
the presence or absence of donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-

Imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the
primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may be used at the
discretion of the Organization's management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations Imposed by .
donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in -nature;, those
restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization. Other donor resthctions are
perpetual In nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.

As of June 30. 2020 and 2019. the Organization had net assets with donor restrictions and net
assets without donor restrictions.

Acccuntino Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for use without donor restrictions unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future periods or for
specific purposes are reported .as support with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restrictions. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is
received, the Organization" reports the support as without donor restrictions.

Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid financial Instruments with original maturities of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

15



DocuSign Envelope ID: 662BD7F4-7584-411C-A455-D05F1CD57331

DocuSign Envelope ID; l6B1BA8e-ACA2-4AAO-9C5D-9D7F7A15AF09

Accounts Receivable » * j-
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances Management provides for probable uncollectible, amounts through a charge to activities
and a credit to a valuation allowance based on historical account write-off. patterns by the payor,
adjusted as necessary to reflect current conditions. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the
valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The Organization has no policy for
charging interest on overdue accounts nor are its accounts receivable pledged as collateral. .

It is the policy of the Organization to provide services to all eligible residents of Northern New
Hanipshire without regard to ability to pay. As a result of this policy, all charity care wnte-offs are
recorded as reductions of revenue in the period in which services'are provided. The accounts
receivable allowance hcludes the estimated amourit of charity care and contractual allowances
Included in the accounts receivable balances. The computation of the contractual allowance is
based on historical ratios of fees charged to amounts collected.

Property and Depreciation »u -j * #
Property and equipment are recorded at cost or. if contributed, at estimated fair value at the date of
contribution. Material assets with a useful life in excess of one year are capitalized. Depreciation
is provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the cost of the
assets over their estimated useful lives as follows!

Vehicles 5-10 years
Equipment -3-10 years

Costs for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments are capitalized.
Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along with the related
accumulated depreciation, and any gain or loss is recognized.

Investments ^ ^ ^ w «
Investments consist of mutual funds and interest-bearing investments and, are stated at fair value
on the statements of financial position based on quoted market prices. The Organization's
investments are subject to various risks, such as interest fate, credit and overall market volatility,
which may substantially impact the fair value of such investments at any given time.

Accrued Earned Time .

The Organization has accrued a liability for future compensated absences that its employees have
■ earned and which is vested with the employees. ■ ' ,

. Refundable Advances . ^
Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as revenue in
the period in which the related services are provided or costs are incurred.

Program Service Fee Revenue

The' Organization has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments to the
Organization at amounts different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include
reimbursed costs, discounted'charges, and per diem payments. Program service fee revenue is
reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from clients, third-party payors, and others for
sen/ices rendered. Including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements
with the.third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined.
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Advertising .

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Summarized Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but
not -by-net asset-class. - Such-information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a
presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
financial statements for the year ended June 30. 2019. from which the summarized Information
was derived.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature, such as salaries, rent, supplies,
etc. Functional expenses are classified by the type of activity for which expenses are incurred,
such as management and general'and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function
using a reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use. The costs
of providing certajn program and supporting services have been directly charged.

Income Taxes

The Organization Is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction
under Section 170(b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an organization that is not a private
foundation.

FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing,
and a system for measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements, and is
effective for Northern Human Services' current year. Management has analyzed Northern Human
Services' tax positions taken on its information returns for all open tax years (tax years ending
June 30, 2018 - 2020), and-has concluded that no additional provision for income tax is required In
Northern Human Sen/Ices' financial statements.

New Accounting Pronouncement

During the year, the Organization adopted the provisions of FASB ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the
Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made (Topic
958). This accounting standard is meant to help not-for-profit entities evaluate whether transactions
should be accounted for as contributions or as exchange transactions and. if the transaction is
identified as a contribution, whether it is conditional or unconditional. ASU 2018-08 clarifies how an
organization determines whether a resource provider is receiving commensurate value in return for
a grant. If the resource provider does receive commensurate value from the grant recipient, the
transaction Is an exchange transaction and would follow the guidance under ASU 2014-09 (FASB
ASC Topic 606). If no commensurate value is received by the grant maker, the transfer is a
contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the general public as a result of the
grant is not considered to be commensurate value received by the provider of the grant. Results for
reporting the year ending June 30. 2020 are presented under FASB ASU 2018-08. The
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under'the accounting
standards in effect in those reporting periods. There was no material impact to the financial
statements as a result of adoption. Accordingly, no adjustment to opening net assets was
recorded.
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2. AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY
The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents .

■ Accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable

Assets, limjted use
Investrfients

Cash value of life insurance

Total financial asset's

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:
.  Cash and cash equivalents, board designated

Client funds held in trust

Net assets with donor restrictions

Total amounts not available within one year
Financial assets available to meet general expenditures
•  over the next twelve months

The Organization's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 120 days of operating
expenses (approximately $14,100,000). .

$  14,243,428 $  11.600,834

2,431,296 1.,965,991

.515,878 227,519

697.746 •501,911

2,064,316 1,966,886

452.278 432.585

20,404,942 16,695,726

318,202 318,202

397;289 169,364

256.226 255.464

971.717 743.030

3. ASSETS. LIMITED USE

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, assets, limited use consisted of the following:

Donor restricted cash .

Client funds held in trust

Employee benefits

Total assets, limited use

2020

256,226
370.403

-  71.117

$

2019

255,464

170,366
76.081

S  501.911

4. PROPERTY AND DEPRECIATION

As of June 30. 2020 and 2019, property and equipment consisted of the following:

Vehicles

Equipment

Total property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

2020

$  633,548
2.779.836

3,413,384

3.151.977

S  261.407

2019

$  647,048
2.696.501

3.343.549
2.979.094

Depreciation expense totaled $181,884 and $203,721 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively.
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6. INVESTMENTS

The Organization's investments are presented in the financial statements in the aggregate at fair
value and consisted of the following as of June 30. 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Fair Fair

Value Cost Value Cost

Money Market Funds $ 51.642 $ 51,642 $ 19.601 $ 19,601
Mutual Funds:

Domestic equity funds 721,852 649,349 ,690.460 599,516
International equity funds 305,407 298,585 302,374 289,349
Fixed income funds 949,227 • 900,785 901,146 882,426
Other mutual funds 36.-168 39.192 53,305 58.506

Total S ? 1.939.m « IQSSaSS s 1 849 398

Investments in common stock and U.S. government securities are valued at the closing price
reported in the active market in which the securities are traded. Management, considers all
investments to be long term in nature.

2020 2019

Components of Investment Return:

Interest and dividends $ 46,784 $ 42,378

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments , 9,790 (30,002)
Realized gains on investments 57.410 81.524

Investment management fees for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 were $15,350 and
$14,064, respectively, and were netted with investment return.

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB ASC Topic No. 620-10 provides a definition of fair value which focuses on an exit price rather
than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally accepted accounting principles for
measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair,value Is a market-based measurement, not an entity-
specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In
accordance with FASB ASC 620-10, the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with
market. Income and cost approaches to rneasure fair value. As a basis for considering market
participant assumptions in fair value measurements, ASC Topic 620 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of
the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic 620 are described as follows:

Level 1 • Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market prices in
active markets, which'are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting
date, and fair value can be determined through the use of models or other valuation
methodologies.
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Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs In situations
where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and the reporting
entity makes estimates and.assumptions related to the pricing of the asset or liability
including assumptions regarding risk.

The Organization's financial instruments consist of cash, short-term receivables and payables, and
refundable advances.' The carrying value for all such instruments, considering the terms,
approximates fair value at June 30. 2020 and 2019.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets at fair value. There
have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30. 2020 and 2019.

Mu/ua/Funds: All .actively traded mutual funds are valued at the daily closing price as reported by
the fund, these funds are required.to publish their daily net asset value (NAV) and to.transact at
that price.-A|l mutual funds held by the Organization are open-end mutual funds that are registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Life Insurance: The.surrender value of life insurance is valued at the cash value guaranteed to the
policyowner upon cancellation of the. life insurance policy. The surrender value is the value of
investments less any surrender charges.

The table below segregates all financial assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (at least annually) into the most appropriate level within
the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to determine the fair value at the measurement date:

2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money Market Funds $ 51,642 $ - $ - $ 51,642
Mutual Funds

Domestic equity funds 721.852 - ' . 721,852
International equity funds 305,407 - - 305!407
Fixedjncome funds 949,227 . . 9.49i227
Other funds 36,188 . - - 36!l88-

Cash Value of Life

Insurance " 452.278 . - 452.278

Total investments at

fair value
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money Market Funds
Mutual Funds

Domestic equity funds
International equity funds
Fixed income funds

Other funds

Cash Value of Life

Insurance

Total investments at

fair value

19,601 $

690,460
302.374

901,146

53,305

432.585

432 585 i.

Total

19,601

690,460
302,374
901,146

53,305

432.585

S  2.399471

7. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a retirement plan for all eligible employees. Under the plan employees
can make voluntary contributions to the plan of up to 100% of pretax or after, tax annual
compensation up to the maximum annual limit provided by the Internal Revenue Service. All
employees who work one thousand hours per year are eligible to participate after one year of
employment, as defined by the plan. During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Organization
implemented a 2% discretionary contribution allocated each pay. period. During the year ended
June 30, 2020, the Organization increased the discretionary contribution from 2% to 3%.
Contributions by the organization totaled $422,993 and $276,510 for the years ended June 30,
2020 and 2019, respectively.

8. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains cash balances that, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The
balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 for the
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, cash balances in excess of
FDIC coverage aggregated .$14,030,868 and $11,239,183, respectively.' In addition to FDIC
coverage, the Organization maintains a tri-party collateralization agreement with its primary
financial ir)stitution and a trustee. The trustee maintains mortgage-backed collateralization of 102%
of the Organization's deposits at its financial institution. The Organization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these
accounts.

9. CONCENTRATION OF RISK '

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, approximately 87% of the total revenue was derived
from Medicaid. The future existence of the Organization is dependent upon continued support
from Medicaid.

In order for the Organization to receive Medicaid funding, they must be formally approved by the
• State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community
Based Care Services, Bureau of Behavioral Health, and Bureau of Developmental Services as the
provider of services for individuals with mental health illnesses and developmentally disabled
individuals, for that region. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Organization was reapproved
as a provider of mental health services with the Bureau of Behavioral Health through August 2021.
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Medicaid receivables comprise approximately 87% and 75% of the total accounts receivable
balances at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

10. LEASE COMMITMENTS .

The Organization-has entered-lnto various operating lease agreements to rent certain facilities and
office equipment. The terms of these leases range from one to five years. Rent expense under
these agreements aggregated $1,030,701 and $901,993 for the years ended June 30. 2020 and
201.9. respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases as of June 30, 2020 is as
follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Amount

2021 $ 941.622
2022 38.973

Total

See Note 11 for information regarding lease agreements with a related party.

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization is related to the nonprofit corporation Shallow River Properties, Inc. (Shallow
River) as a result of common board membership. Shallow River was incorporated under the laws
of the State of New Hampshire on September 13, 1988, for the purpose of owning, maintaining,
managing, selling, and leasing-real property associated with the provision of residential, treatment,
and administrative services for the clients and staff of the Organization.

The Organization has transactions with Shallow River during its normal course of operations. The
significant related party transactions are as follows:

Due to/from Related Party

At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Organization had a due to ShallQw River balance in the amount of
$58,112 and $48,423, respectively.

Rental Expense

The Organization leases various properties, including office space, and properties occupied by the
Organization's clients from Shallow River under the terms of tenant at will agreements. The
Organization has the perpetual right to extend the leases-. Total rental expense paid under the
terms of the leases was $770,034 and $766,575 for the years ended June 30. 2020 and 2019,
respectively. The Organization also leases space from a board member for $1,000 per month.

Management Fee

The Organization charges Shallow River for administrative expenses incurred on its behalf.
Management fee revenue aggregated $74,649 for each of the years ended June 30. 2020 and
2019.
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Donation

Although not required by agreertient between Shallow River and the Organization. Shallow River
generally donates the excess of its revenues over expenses to the Organization in order to
maintain Its 501(c)(2) tax-exempt status with the Internal .Revenue Service. At June 30. 2020 and
2019, Shallow River did not make a donation to the Organization but retained its surplus of
$254,448 and $246,624, respectively, due to future plans of acquiring a new building and for use in
-future renovation projects and maintenance costs.

12. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES. MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT

The Organization maintains contracted arrangements with multiple Medicaid managed care
organizations (MCOs) that provide a set per member per month payment for health care services
provided. This system helps manage costs, utilization, and quality of services. The Organization is
paid prior to seA^ices being provided each month and is required to maintain certain levels of
performance. A reconciliation is calculated at year end between the Organization and the MCOs to
determine if the Organization has been overpaid compared to- actual utilization and services
performed, which the Organization would then be required to repay. At June 30, 2020 and 2019,
the outstanding capitated payment liability totaled $339,562 and $391,458, respectively.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives funding under various state and federal grants. Under the terms of
these grants; the Organization is required to use the money within the grant period for purposes
specified in the grant proposal. If expenditures for the grant were found not to have been made in
compliance with the proposal, the Organization may be required to repay the grantor's funds.

Excess funds generated from 'state and/or Medicaid funded programs may be expended, at the
Organization's discretion, to' increase or improve service delivery within the program. The excess
funds may not be used to increase spending for personnel, professional fees, fringe benefits, or
capital expenditures without prior written approval of the State of New Hampshire.

The Organization has contracts with certain third-party payers requiring specific performance to
supervise and document certain events relating to client treatment. These agencies periqdically
audit the performance of the Organization in fulfilling these requirements. If the payments were
found not to have been made in compliance with the contracts, the Organization may be required
to repay the fuhds received under the contract.

The Organization ensures its medical malpractice risks on a claims-made basis under a policy,
which covers all of its employees. The Organization intends to renew coverage on a claims-made
basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available.

Contracts with the State of New Hampshire and various federal agencies require that the
properties supported be used, for certain programs and/or to serve specified client populations. If
Shallow River or the Organization should stop using the property to provide services acceptable to
these grantors, the grantors would be entitled to all or part of the proceeds from the disposition of
the property. These stipulations affect substantially all of the properties owned by Shallow River.
The affected amount and the disposition are determined by negotiation with the granting authority
at the time the property is sold. . .
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14. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

At June 30, 2020 and 2019. net assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following:

2020 2019

Certificates of Deposit- Memorial Fund $ 252,417 $ 252,417
Dream Team Fund 2,962 2,832
Income earned on the Memorial Fund 847 215

Total net assets with donor restrictions £ 256.226 £ 255 464

15, ENDOWMENT FUND AND NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
As a result of the June 30, 2006 merger of The Center of Hope for Developmental Disabilities, Inc.
(Center of Hope), with and into the Organization, the Organization" assumed responsibility for
certain assets of Center of Hope that are subject to charitable restrictions and designated for
particular purposes, namely the Memorial Fund (the Fund).

The Fund was created by the Center of Hope in 1989'for the/purpose of seeking out and funding
experiences that make life more interesting and fuil for people with disabilities. In or around 1992.
additional funds were, added to the Fund as a result of a testamentary bequest of Dorothy M.
Walters, for the purpose of providing "maintenance funds" for programs for individuals with mental
and developmental disabilities. The Center of Hope interpreted the terms of this bequest as
consistent with the purpose of the Fund, and the bequest meets the definition of an. endowment
fund.

The Not-for-Prpfit Entities Topic of the FASB ASC (ASC 958-205 and subsections) intends to
Improve the quality of consistency of financial reporting of endowments held by not-for-profit,
organizations. This Topic provides guidance on classifying the net assets associated with donor-
restricted endowment funds held by organizations that are subject to. an enacted version of the
Uniform Prudent Management institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). New Hampshire has adopted
UPMIFA. The Topic also requires additional financial statement disclosures on endowments and
related net assets. i

The Organization has followed an investment and. spending policy to ensure a total return (income
plus capital change) necessary to preserve the principal of the fund a.nd at the same time, provide
a dependable source of support , for life-enhancing activities of eligible individuals. The
Organization will only distribute income generated by the fund, leaving the original corpus intact.

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, the Organization only invests the fund in
certificates of deposits, which ensures that a majority of the balance of the Fund is covered by the
FDIC. The Organization has taken a risk adverse approach to managing the Fund in order to
mitigate financial market risk such as interest rate, credit and overall market volatility, which could
substantially impact the fair value of the Fund at any given time.

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the endowment was entirely composed of net assets with donor,
restrictions.
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Changes in endowment net assets (at fair value) as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 were as
follows:

2020 2019

Certificates ofdeposit. beginning of year $ 252,417 $ IblAV
Interest income . 631
Withdrawals (6311 (555)

Certificates of deposit end of year $ 252.417 ^ 2§2i417

16. LONG TERM CARE STABILIZATION PROGRAflfl ^ ^
In response to COVID-19. in April 2020. the State of New Harnpshire established the Long Term Care
Stabilization (LTCS) Program to provide stipends to certain front line Medicaid providers. The
program was developed to incentivize these direct care workers to remain in or rejoin this critical
worldorce and continue to provide high quality care to vulnerable persons during the pandemic. Under
the program, the New Hampshire Department of Employment Security (NHES) would distribute $300
per week in stipends to full time qualifying front line workers and $150 per week in stipends to part
time qualifying front line workers. The funding for the LTCS Program was provided through the
Coronavirus Relief Fund. During the year ended June 30. 2020, the Organization received grant
revenue of $792,055 and expended $792,055 under the grant through payroll and subcontractor
expenses. During its Initial implementation, the program ran from April 2020 through July 31. 2020.
Subsequent to year end, in November 2020, the program was reinstated.

17. RECLASSIFICATION , ^
Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were reclasslned to enhance
comparability with the current year's financial statements.

18. OTHER EVENTS . . « . .u
The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its spread are affecting the
Organization. The significance of the impact of these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse
impact on the Organization's financial and operational results, will be dictated by the length of time
that such disruptions continue and. in turn; will depend on the currently unknowable duration of the
COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might be imposed in response
to the pandemic. The COVID-19 impact on the capita! markets could also impact the Organization's
cost of borrowing. There are certain limitations on the Organization's ability to mitigate the adverse
financial impact of .these items. As of January 20. 2021, due to the measures put in place to prevent
the spread of COVID-19 we are unable to estimate the future performance of the Organization.

19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS . r
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial position
date, but before financial statements are available to.be issued. Recognized subsequent events
are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the
statement of financial position date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing
financial statements. Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date.
Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 20, 2021, the date the June 30,
2020 financial statements were available for issuance. See Note 18 regarding (pOVID-19
information.
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MnPTHERN HUMAN SFRVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES
TOTALS FOR ALL PROGRAMS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARI^gP COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

BluB.Cross'

Medlcald

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
ProducllorVservice income

Public support:
Local/county government
Donations/conlributtons

Other public support

Bureau of Developmental Services

and Bureau of Behavioral Health -
Other federal and state funding:
HUD

Other'

Private foundation grants
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries end v/ages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Client wages

Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs

Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses

Communicalions •

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Mental Developmental General

Health Services Subtotals Manaaemonl

572.870 S  24.870 S  597,740 i

69.223 221,166 290,369 '

162,887 36,243 219,130 ■

12.177.461 27.575.809 39.753,270 '

527.140 •  527.140 -

315.687 62.045 377.932 •

128.424 128.424 -

5,500 7,277 12.777 •

589 -
569 -

194.429 132.987 327.416

403,207 . 2.400 405.607 •

2.810 17,512 , 20.322 2.349

312.719 •
312.719 •

890.611 296.362 1,166.973 -

75,565 . 75.565 . •

109,947 -
109.947 796.904

273,466 - 273.486 5.000

69,605 68.433 156.038 110.900

16.203.936 26.571.528 44,775.464 , • 915.153

;  7.256.309 $ 7.288.247 S 14.544.556 .$ 3.803.080

'1.443.451 2.006.173 3.449.624 862,879

511,611 505.954 1,017.565 241248

108,499 ^98.994 207,493 -

206.342 •13,952.776 .  14.159.118 770,902

19.191 19.969 39.160 5.295

604,577 . 510.258 1,114,835 183.690

196.136 206.721 402.657 . 59!326

105,910 141,286 247,196 45.942

131,115 116,675 249,790 47.935

189.477 646,601 836.278 30.674

1,961 77,036 78.999 140

51.989 73.139 125.128 27.635

24.205 16,765 40.990 67.476

508.139 108.562 616.701

11.145 3.158 14.303 115.224

11.370.057 25.774.536 37.144.593 6.263.048

2020 2019

Total Summarized

597.740 S  776.251

290.369 322,703

219,130 •213,324

39.753.270 36,728.974

527.140 491.640

377.932 321.906

126.424 130.056

12,777 6.974

569 1,140

327.416 4M.617

405.607 • 442.733

22,671 26.990

312.719 343.307

1,166,973 648.453

75,565 129.535

906.651 153.740

276.466 260.000

266.936 ■ 382.737

.45.690.617 42.041.262

18.347.636

4.312.503

1.259,613

207.493

14,930.020

44,455

1.298,725

462.165

293.136

297.725

867.152

.  79.139

152.963

128.466

616.701

129,527

43.427.641

18,504.225

4,031.156

1.297,577

266.295

11.428,062

69,802

1.306.350

515.745

302.932

263.129

1,100,741

113,138

150,467

127.194

750.495

21.062

40.266.390

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENSES , $ 4.633,879 S 2 796,992 S 7.630.671 % (5.367.695) $ 2,262,976 ^.11772,692
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES
MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

REVENUES

Program service fees;
Client fees

Residerilial fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support;

Local/county government
Donations/contributions

Other put)lic support

Bureau of Developmental Service's
8r>d Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state Ending;
HUD

Other

Private foundation grants
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Client wages

Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs

Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses

Communications'

Travel end transportation
Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES

State Chiidren

loH'Spocialized Eligible Audit Outpatient and

Outoatlent Outoatient Contracts Adolescents

$  .58,882 $  112.440 $ S  33.774

58.228 48.033 . 61.522

131.890 ,  1.262.868 ■  553.216 2,981.930

116.267 336,943 -

91.394 146.561 •

49,366

-
■

269 ■

104.246
■

.

2,310 500 -
-

-
-

•21,980 •

55.146 -
-

-

•

20

•

-

10,500 - •
-

26.237 149 • -

657.100 1.907,514 575.465 3.126.592

$  305.785 S  895,118 S  277.034 $  845.154

51.579 .117,088 55,526 146.560

21.592 60,436 19.730 59.273

■ 15.807 21.234 . 7,117 32,118

685 6.337 728 3,136

30.785 56.343 19.900 44,634

15.456 11,165 3,185 10.122

8,260 9,410 3,201 7,617

22,116 19,573 2,874 9.403

48 1,588 4,351 23.661

57 70 - 375

3,556 7.493 2.719 6,053

2.277 4,753 1,350 4,675

10,441 67.115 301- 24.825

64 130' 646 187

488.708 1.277.853 398.662 1.217.793

$  168,392 $  629.661 $  176.803 S  1.908.799
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Continued

MQRTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES
MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:

Local/county government
Donations/contributions

Other public support .

Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Bettavioral Health
Other federal and state funding:

HUD

Other

Private foundation grants

Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll (axes

Client wages

Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs

Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation
Assistance to individuals ■

insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Totai expenses

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES

Emergency

Services

17.472

9,105

97,410

5,300

12,642

Other

Non-BBH

383

1,202

428,961

1,252

Integrated
Health Grant

Bureau of

Drug & Alcohol
Services

1,919

2,468

16,027

2,736

5,157

98.304
■

-
-

109,927 .

. 210,000 - -

. . -
234

240.233 . 641.798 109,927 28.541.

$  505.435 $  283,877 $  28,654 $  134,646

93,382 67,793 4,005 25,594

34,701 19,752 2.206 9,531

11,933 ■ 9,757 11,273 1,282

778 2,067 -
761

29.465 13,355 32.920 4,227-

5,302 3.872 16,627 635

7.086 .2,270 320 636

24.475 2,340 -
639

1,145 7,452 239 491

47 6 - •

4,062 1,675 -
569

1,270 567 -

884

29,523 1.242 ■
4,566

52 40 - 7

748,656 416.065 96,444 184.468

$  (508,423) S  .225,733 $  13,483 $  (155,927)
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Continued

morthfrm human services, inc.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES
MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Drug

Court

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client lees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities
Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support: .

Local/county government
Donations/contributions

Other public support

Bureau of Developmental Sen/ices
and Bureau of Behaviora! Health

Other federal and state funding:

HUD

Other

Private foundation grants

Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Client wages
Professional fees

Staff developrT>ent and (raining
.  Occupancy costs

Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel arnf transportation
Assistance (o individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

■ EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES

1,221

56.430

320

290.961

Vocational

Sorvlcos

4,542

146,487

Restorative

Partial

Hospital

t  5.476

194,273

5,500

37.579

Case

Manaoomont

$  138.601

1.606.842

4,664

3,660

29.896
; . 26.775

,  386.828 194,108 199.749 1.780.542

$  249.297 $ 144,044 $ 50,325 S  801,809

43.679 33,545 13,087 163,766

17,304 14.036 3.796 57.497

. 49,568 -
•

3.125 3.251 902 20,513

696 108 ■ 8 578

•  12,105 2,288 44,080

2.532 3,870 19,248 11,920

6,233 2,020 622 9.417

2,911 1,827 • 239 8.461

5,482 10,523 -
41,138

. -  . 63

_ 1,312 474 .6,900

419 148 2,263

1,598 1,772 4,400 151,290

8,859 580 7 171

341.716 278.980 95.544 1.319.874

45.112 (&4,872) 104.205 $ 460.668
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Continued

NQRTHFRN HUMAN SERVICES INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES

Program service fees:

Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees

Produclion/service income

Public support:

Local/county goyemmenl
Donations/contributions .

Other public support.

Supportive
Living

41.158

2,200.893

(158)

236

Community
Residences

22.607 $

48,593

1,213.319

Bridge
Grant

Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health -

-
184,017

Other federal and state funding:

HUD ■
75,565 -

Other • - •

Private foundation grants - • -

Other revenues •
60 5.901

Total revenues 2.242.129 1.360.144 189.918

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages $  641,565 S  749.341 $  36.098

Employee benefits 173.092 200.077 6,857

Payroll t^es 45.567 52,339 2,599

Client wages - - •

■  Professional fees 15,281 5,383 .  570

Staff developrnent and training 463 61 221

Occupancy costs 39,828. 43,829 117,842

Consumable supplies 12,497 27,012 1,075

Equipment expenses 7,698 10,894 131

Communications 6,425. 11,231 •

Travel and transportation 41,185 4,565 1,991

Assistance to individuals 684 624 •

Insurance •  6,671 2,134 •

Membership dues 2.123 645 -

Bad debt expense 52,421 13,832 -

Other expenses 164 91 ■

Total expenses 1.045.664 1,122,058 167.384

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
$  22.534

OVER EXPENSES $  1,195,465 $  238,086

30

Victims of

Crime Act'

5,551

1,903

69.779

6,025

5,298

290,739

379.295

377,775

68,157

24,593

8,559

1,480

22,749

4,227

3,878

3,524

6,297.

21

3,114

972

8,403

^

533.789

(154.494)
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.  NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES
MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES

Program service fees;
Client fees .

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

. Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:

Local/county government

Donations/contributions

Other public support

Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:
HUD

Other

Private foundation grants

Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Client wages.

Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs.

Corisumable supplies

Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF

REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

Continued

Other Total

ACT Mental Health Mental Health 2019

Team Proarams Proarams Summarized

S  128.844 $ $  572,870 .  $ 700.461

20,830 69,223 69,379

426 182,887 .186.499

• . 1,217,136 12.177,461 11,890,220

.53,353 527,140 491,840

321 315,887 248,966-

• 5,500 1,863

. 589 1,140

-
156,850 194,429 253,865

403,207 440.833-

. - 2.810 5.573

• ■
312,719 343,307

553,144 -
890,611 523,328

75,565 129,535

- - 109,947 150,121

52,986 273;486 220,000

350 3 89,605 68,661

1,974,214 209,839 16,203,936 15,725,591

$  877,567 $  52,784 $  7,256,309 S  6.877.783

169,573 10,091 1,443,451 1.347.375

58,250 8,409 .  511,611 485,191

. 58,931 108,499 126,369

37,016 1,221 206,342 232,781

843 41 19,191 25.417

66,852 23,375 604,577 534.882

8,038 39,153 196,136 210,246

6,331 19,886 105,910 108,075

7,288 7,789 131,115 124,747

35,310 '  4,011 189,477 248,647

14 - 1,951 3,676

4,964' 285 51,969 53,176

1,771 68 24,205 27.022

135,984 426 508,139 604,579

47 61 11,145 1.008

1.409.848 226,551 .11.370.057 11,010.994

$  564.366 $ (16,712) $ 4.633.679 $ 4.714.597
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wnPTHFRN HUhffAW SFRVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES
nPVPLOPMEMTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Service

Coordination

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential lees

Blue Cross

Mediceid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

-  Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:

Local/county government'
Donations/contributions

Other public support

Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health
Other federal and state funding:
HUD

Other

Private foundation grants
Other revenues

Total revertues

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Client wages

Professional feels

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs

.Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses
Communications

Travel and transportation
Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES

1.012.043

School

District

Contracts

Day
Prop rams

128,424

4,117.964

7.277

117,035

2.400

17,5li2

Earty
Supports
& Sorvlcoa

24,870

36,243

1.021,236

62.045

1,544

Independent
Living

Sorvlcoa

315.499

■
-

-• 64,456

49.765

•

5.011 38

-

■1.O6I.8O8 128,424 '4.267.199 1.210.432 315.499

$  611.199 $  62,146 $ 2,706,030 $  474.436 $  86,624

173.293 10,827 910,093 85.514 19.059-

41.854 4.497 194,832 34,127 6.481
. 87.760 -

-

188.830 257 151.700 162,415 17.303

862 20 3.463 3.459 167

47,971 1,916 244.056 .  10,098 4,459

12,294 574 56,198 7.432 865

■  6.925 465 87.752 3.955 1,160

4,605 230 40,746 18.682 721

17,314 1,399 431.982 74,034 2.204

1 . 25.799 45 -

5,769 458 31,646 4,378 1,090

16 4 11,587 97 3

4,203 93,990 7,099

396 6 1.960 55 30

1.111.329 82.799 . 4.989,817 972.717 147.265

$  (49,521) $  45.625 S  (722.618) $  237.715 S  168,234
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Continued

morthfrm human services, inc.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES
pPVFl OPf^^ENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMWARI2ED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Combined Day/ Individual Combined Dayi
Family Reaidenlial Supported Consolidated Residential

Residence Vendor Living Services Sonf\cof,

REVENUES

Progrem service lees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities
Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:

Local/county governrnent
Donations/contributions

Other public support

Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:

HUO

Other

Private foundation grants

Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Client wages

' Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs

Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation
Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES

■  174,144

7.591,954 1.927,240

14,309

11,519

7.792.026

1,897.667

502,042

135,041

ir.i55

3,428.066
8,694

132,775

93,646

28,300

27.319

50,755

461

16,029

81

3.270

536

6.336.047

S  S

38,574,

524,005 2.713.106 1.801,603

99

1.927.240' 562.678 ■ 2.713.106 1.801.803

$ S  227.899 $  834,567 $  15,062

64.731 155.677 4,309

. 16,066 45.411 1,060

79 -
-

1.773.295 21,881 1,331,284 1.576,834

387 1.547 58

41,130 3,903 1,613

10,528 4,241 10,707

2.007 7,043 358

. 4,476 16,664 175

4,903 54.024 -

_ 1,093 25,940 515

2,292 7.540' 316

-
3 4,176 -

; 29 96 4

1.773.295 397,504 2.492.113 1.611,031

$ 1.455.979 $ 153,945 $  165,174 S 220.993 $ 190,772
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MORTHFRM human SFRVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES
DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:
Local/county government

Donations/contributions

Other public support

Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:

HUD

Other

Private foundation grants
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and vrages

Employee benefits
.  Payroll taxes

Client wages

Professional fees

Staff development and training .
Occupancy costs

Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses

Corhmunications.'

Travel and. transportation
Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES

Continued

Other Total

Acquired Oovolopmontal Oevelopmontal

Brain Services Services 2019

Disorder Proarams Proarams Summarized

$ $ $  24.870 $  77.790

8,448 221,166 253.324

. . 36,243 26.825

464.490 6.066.469 27.575,809 24.838.754

62.045 72.940

. "128,424 130,058

-
•

7,277 7,111

•
132,987 202,752

. 2.400 1,900

•
•

17,512 19,786

-
231.906 296.362 . •  325,125

-
-

66.433 66.068

484.490 •  6.306.823 28.571.528 26.022.433

$  18,056 $  354.541 $  7.288.247 $  8.271.646

10,260 70,368 2,006.173 •  1,938.195

1.186 25.399 505,954 586.023

. 98,994 139.906

130.609 5,170.302 13.952.776 10.927.612

51 1.261 19.969 20.925

1,111 21.216 510.258 570,670

323 9,713 206,721 240.950

300 3,021 141,286 159.725

173 4,884 118.675 116,259

899 9.287 646,801 809.689

•  . 23,184 77,038 108,288

269 3.352 73.139 72.670

. 808 16,785 .18.036

. 108.562 145.916

3 43 3.158 2.482

163.240 5.697.379 25,774.536 24.129.392

321.250 609.444 2.796.992 S  1_,893.041
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I  99.223
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NORTHERN HHMAN SERViqFS INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

NbTEl BASIS OF PRESENTATION . ..
The accorhpanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes
the federal award activity.of Northern Human Services. Inc. under programs of the
federal government for the year ended. June 30, 2020. The information in this Schedule
is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform. Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents
only a selected portion of the operations of Northern Human Services, Inc.. it Is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash
flows of,the Organization.

note 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES
Expenditures reported oh the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accouiiting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE . . . ^.
Northern Human Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent de minimis indirect
cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the'Board of Directors of

Northern Human Services, Inc.
Conway. New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Northern Human,Sen/ices, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2020, and the related statements of
activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements, and-have issued our report thereon dated January 20; 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Northern
Human Sen/ices, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial" statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveriess of fslorthern Human Services, Inc.'s Internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Northern Human Services, Inc.'s Internal
control.

A deficiency in internai control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or delect and correct, misstatements on . a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in Internal control, such that there Is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or "detected and corrected, on a timely , basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in Internal control that Is less severe than a material weakness, yet
■important enough .to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify, a deficiency in
internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
Item 2020-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Northern Human Services, Inc. s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Northern Human Services. Inc.'s Response to Findings

Northern Human Services, Inc.'s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Northern Human Services, Inc. s
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing! and riot to. provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

January 20, 2021
North Conway, New Hampshire
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NORTHERN HUMAN SFRVICES INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Northern Human Services. Inc.
Conway, New Hampshire

Report on Comoliance for Each Maior Federal Pfooram
We have audited Northern Human Services. Inc.'s (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization)
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Northern Human Services. Inc.'s
major federal programs for the year ended June 30. 2020. Northern Human Services, Inc.'s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors'. Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Northern Human Services,
Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits, contained In
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and
the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Northern Human Services. Inc.'s compliance with those
requirements and performing' such other procedures as we considered necessary In the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Northern Human
Services. Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Maior Federal Program

In our opinion. Northern Human Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30. 2020.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Northern Human Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Northern Human
Services, Inc.'s Internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we dp not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Northern Human Services, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, In the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deHciencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over conipliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

r

January 20, 2021
North Conway, Ne\v Hampshire
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NORTHFRN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS; RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of
Northern Human Services. Inc. were prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. One material weakness disclosed during the audit of the financial statements is reported In
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on-an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Northern Human
Services, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

6. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Northern
Human Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7  The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of the Treasury:
Coronavirus Relief Fund. CFDA 21.019 and U.S. Department of Justice; Crime Victim
Assistance. CFDA 16.575. .

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A andB programs was $750,000.

" 9. Northern Human Services. Inc. was determined not to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2020-001 - Reconciliation process and month end close

Criteria: Internal controls should be in place to ensure that all cash accounts are reconciled
between the general ledger and bank statements every month in a timely manner.

Condition: Significant entries were required for cash as timely reconciliations were not
being kept as part of the financial statement close process each month and at year end.

Cause: Internal controls are not currently in place to ensure that monthly bank
reconciliations are prepared in a timely manner each month.

Effect: Financial statement information utilized by management in making decisions may
not be timely or accurate; errors -found in preparing bank reconciliations that required
significant journal entries were not found until several months after year end.
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Recommendation: Procedures should be implemented to ensure that monthly
reconciliations for all cash accounts are being performed in a timely manner.

Views of Responsible Officials: Up until this fiscal year, the Organization has always had
a process in place to perform the bank reconciliations in a timely manner.

•The main reason these were not done timely is due to some staff turnover (retirements)
NHS has had, as well as COVID. NHS had a long term staff accountant retire last summer.
She was responsible for the bank reconciliations in addition to many other duties as it
relates to month end closings, and backup for the payroll associate. NHS had trouble

■  recruiting for that position and ultimately the department got behind in trying to cover that
part of her duties. There was also another staff accountant position that retired and due to
COVID, NHS had trouble recruiting for that position as well, further delaying the
reconciliations. Now that both positions have been filled, NHS is in the process of getting
caught up with that duty.

Going forward, the bank reconciliations will be done monthly during each month end
closing process. This will be reviewed by Dale Neon, CFO to ensure adherence to this
procedure.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None

42
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Northern Human Services Board of Directors

Ofticers:

StafT:

Term

Expires

•22

•23

■23

Modclcne Costcl lo, President
Dorothy Borchers, Vice President
James Salmon, Treasurer
TED, Secretary

Eric Johnson, CEO
Dale Hcon, CFO
Susan Wiggih, CEO Assistant
Suzanne Gacljens-Olsen, MH Reg Administrator
Liz Charles, DO Reg Administrator

The Mental Health Center
3 Twelfth St., Berlin 03570
Community Services Center
69 WillardSl., Berlin 03570

Margaret McCiellan,
•Stephen Michaud,
•Dorothy Borchers,

Kassic Eafrati

Director of BH
Lynn Johnson
Director of DS

Office

4470347
4470347
4470347.
444-5358
4470347

752-7404

752-1005

Home Term

10.20- 10.22
10.20- 10.22
10.17 - 10.21

6/01
11/02
05/1?

The Mental Health Center Valeda Cerasale
25 W. Main St., Conway 03818 Director of BH .
70 Bay St., Wolfcboro 03894 •
New Horizons (also Tamworth) .Shanon Mason
626 Eastman Rd., Ctr. Conway 03813 DirectorofDS

'21 *Maddie Costcllo,
"23 •Carrie Duran,
'21 James Salmon,

The Mental Health Center James Michaels
55 Colby St., Colebrook 03576 Director of BH
69 Brooklyn St., Grovcton 03582
Ve'rshire Center Lynn Johnson
24 Depot Street, Colebrook, NH 03576 Director of DS

'23 Georgia Caron,

White Mountain Mental Health AmyFinkIc
29 Maple St., Box 599, Littleton 03561 Director of BH
Common Ground (also Littleton, Woodsville) Mark Vincent
24 Lancaster Rd., Whitcficid 03584 DirectorofDS

'23 Annette Carbonneau,

447-2111

569-1884
356-6310

237-4955

636-2555
237-5721

444-8501

837-9547

9/06
1/17
11/03

[5/08)

1/20

E.xecutive Committee: S. Michaud, M. McCiellan, J. Salmon, M. Costello; D. Borchers, E. Johnson
Finance Committee J. Salmon. M. McCiellan. S. Michaud. D. Borchers. M. Costcllo. D. Heon
Program Committee: M. McCiellan, M. Costello, G. Caron, C. Duran, S. Gacljcns-Olscn, L. Charles
Development Committee: C. Duran, D. Borchers, M. McCiellan, M. Costello, K. Blake, S. Mason, S. Gacljcns-Olscn, S. Wiggin

•Meinbcr reprcscnting consumer with dcvclc^cnial disability/NOTE: Bylaws stale that n minimum of? meetings, including the Annual Busirtcss Meeting, musi beheld.

I.MPORTANT: Send updattd listing lo AC'S Office / Fas to Provider Integrity (see Hose's 4.8.21 email In Outlook Inbox BOD)

tjiSl re>T$ed: 12/19,4/20.5/20.9/20. 10/20, 11/20.2/21, 7/21. 8/21
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Mollie White

Strategic and resourceful executive with a talent for using collaborative, process-driven approaches to
achieve transformational change. History of quantifiable success in relationship building, program
coordination, and grants management which produce measurable outcomes.

Qualified for program leadership and strategic planning roles, 20+ years of business management
experience. Passionate about working for a learning organization that actively seeks quality
improvement in order to positively irripact people's lives.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

Multi-Project Management • Budget Management
Problem Solving • Entrepreneurial Development
Strategic Planning • Small Business Planning
Grant Writing • Relationship Building
Volunteer Development • Community Outreach

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Executive Manager - Coos Coalition for Young Children & Families 2018 - Present

Executive Director-Littleton Regional Chamber of Commerce 2016-2017
Business Resource Manager - Northern Community Investment Corporation 2011 - 2016

•  Lender - Managed $9 million loan portfolio comprised of 120 businesses. Originated $1.2
million in new lending in 2014.

•  Resource Coordinator - Worked with small businesses to help them find solutions and
resources.for business challenges.

•  Grant Writing - Successfully wrote and managed two Community Development Block Grant
applications which were funded by Community Development Finance Authority.

•  Relationship Building - Built strong relationships with local bankers, business service providers
and small business owners.

Community Executive, Health Initiatives ■ AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY 2004 - 2011
M. White - page 2
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Recruited to service five rural hospitals with ACS programs and resources, then assigned to the
largest cancer center in New Hampshire, Norris Cotton Cancer Center, to expand and strengthen
working relationship. During ACS' transition from community-based outreach to a hospital systems
focus, asked to build strategies to increase active referrals within priority hospital systerhs.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE - Continued

•  Used change management principles to facilitate Health Initiatives team's transition resulting in
107% increase in newly diagnosed served within the first year of implementation and an
additional 65% increase in year two.

•  - Asked to facilitate five annual Health Initiatives planning retreats to develop strategies for
reaching New England Business Plan goals and provide motivational focus to the coming
year's work.

•  As State lead for Nutrition and Physical Activity prevention, used Organizational Development
Process model with rural school district resulting in School Board adoption of Nutrition policy, a
standing H&W Committee, hiring of a H&W Coordinator, and a plan for comprehensive school
health education K-12.

President - MWHITE CONSULTING 2001 ■ 2004 .

Non-profit organizational development coinpany, specializing in board development, strategic
planning and' program development. Designed, implemented and evaluated community-based
programs for clients such as United Way, Family Resource Center, TechLink NH, and Parent
Information Center

Director, Maine Service Corps - COASTAL ENTERPRISE INC. 1999 - 2001
Managed $750,000 grant budget and completed 7 housing rehab projects with a 25 member
AmeriCorps member crew.

Executive Director - LANCASTER MAIN STREET PROGRAM 1997 -1999

Built community collaborations to implement downtown revitalization strategies. Provided technical
assistance to businesses including facade improvement, window design, marketing, customer
service, and financing' options. Secured federal grants for relocation and development of Welcome
Center, a River Walk and snowmobile bridge totaling over $100,000.

State Commission Director-NEW HAMPSHIRE AMERICORPS 1994-1996

Co-Founder - WOMEN'S RURAL ENTREPRENEURIAL NETWORK (WREN) 1994

EDUCATION

M. White - page 3
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Bachelors Degree Springfield College - Human Services 1994

Associate Degree Husson University - Business Management 1985

M. White - page 4
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Mollie White Executive Manager $65,000 0% $0

See Resume below
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AW HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

LeriA.$hiblM(ic 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD. NH 03301
CocRmiu)«Mr 603-27I-4501 1-EOO-8S2-3345 Ext 4501

Fei: 603-271-4837 TDDAcctu: 1-800-735-2964
Peirid* M. niley www.(Ihh5,nh.gov

Di

H ̂

rector

November 17. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing cbntract with Northern Human Services (VC#177222-B004),
Conway, NH, to expand collaborative approaches to supporting families with young children
experiencing complex stressors. and modify the scope of services to include additional,
populations, to further support staff training activities for Home Visiting Services to children and
families in the North Country Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families'
program by increasing the price limitation by $200,000 from $400,000 to $600,000 with no chafTge
to the contract completion date of June 30.2023, effective upori Governor and Council approval.
50% Federal Funds. 50% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019, item
#788. amended on October 7,2020. item #9, and most recently amended on April 21.2021, item
#19-

Funds are available in the follovflng accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, upon
the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the
authority to adjust budget line Items within the price (imitation and encumbrances between state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to add funds and expand to additional target populations
such as families experiencing parental incarceration and families experiencing complex stressors
like loss of employment or substance use and that can create a higherrisk for child maltreatment.
The expanded services will increase home visiting services and supports to families with young
children who are experiencing complex stressors who could benefit from a higher level of support
through a collaborative team of providers working together such as mental health, school districts,
childcare centers, health providers and head start. Additionally, the North Country Community
Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families initiative v^ll continue providing training and
coaching session activities for staff who provide Home Visiting .Services in the North Country
Region.

Since 2020, families with young children in Coos County have beeri negatively impacted
by the COVID-19 pandemic and are experiencing an increase in food Insecurity, economic and
housing instability, stressors of social isolation, depression, and substance misuse. Funds will be
used to increase and promote the timely screening for maternal and caregiver depression and

The Deporimeitl 0/ Health and //union Seruices'Afiesion it io join cooimumliet and/aniiliet
in providing opportuniiiet for lo achieve health and independence.
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Ht9 ExeeOency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Horwrable Coondl

Page 2 oT 2
J  . .

developmiental screening for children 0-5. Program staff will connect families to identified euppoils
needed such as mental health, substance use. health and developmental supports and also
provide economic supports navigation by connecting them to state benefits such as medical
coverage, child care coverage and SNAP. Coaching will be provided to a minimum of twenty-four
(24) home visiting staff from the Family Resource Center. Northern Human Services' Infant Mental
Health and Early Supports and Services programs. Head Start end Response: Domestic and
Sexual Violence Support Centers to maintain a strong early childhood worlcforce responsive to
■family needs.-

The target population served is overburdened families, caregivers with substance misuse,
and families with children eight (6) years of age or younger who are at risk of child abuse or
neglect and other adverse childhood experiences. The geographic region served includes all of
Coos County and Graflon Counties north of Franconia Notch. Approximately 500 children and
their families will be soAred during State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023.

The Department will monitor contracted services to ensure:
•  85% of families with children birth to age five (5) years of age will receive home

visiting services.

•  The number of early childhood practitioners in Cops County trained in evidence-
based social emotional practices will increase by 10%.

•  85% of children five (5) years of age or younger in Coos County virill receive Ages
and Stages Questionnaire (ASO) and/or ASQ-socia| emotional development
screenings at least once per year.

•  The rale of families with complex needs served by collaborative teams who report
they received effective care coordination will be 50% higher than the state average.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, home visiting staff who
provide sen/Ices to caregivers with, substance abuse, to families experiencing parental
incarceration, and to families with young children at risk of child abuse and neglect may not
receive appropriate evidence-bas^ training and follow-up coaching activities, which are
imperative to teaching positive parenting and family structure to those in need of services.

Area served: Coos County and Northern Grafton County north of Franconia Notch
Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.391, FAIN #NH750T000031
In the event that the Federal Funds t>ecome. no longer available, additional General Funds

will not be requested to support this program.
RespecttQIly submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-9M42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD
PROTECTION. CHILD-FAMILY SERVICES (100% GENERAL FUNDS)

State Fiscal
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
. Revised Amount

2019 643-504191 Contracts for Proflram Services 42105756 S100.000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

•  2020 643-504191 Conlracts lor Proaram Services 42105756 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2021 • 643-504191 Contracts lor Prooram Services ■42105756 £200.000.00 $0.00 $200,000.00

Sub Total $300,000.00 $0.00 $300,000.00

05-95-090-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV,
COMMUNITY COLLABORATION (100% GENERAL FUNDS)

State Fiscal Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase . Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts (or Proaram Services 90070471 $0.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

2023 102-500731 Contracis lor Proaram Services 90070471 SO.OO $50,000.00 $50,000.00

Sub Total $0.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00

05-95-090-902010-7047000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV,
COMMUNITY COLLABORATION (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

State Fiscal Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amouni '  Increase Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Conlracts for Proaram.Services 90070470 $50,000.00 SO.OO $50,000.00

2023 .102-500731 Contracis (or Proaram Services 90070470 $50,000.00 SO.OO $50,000.00

Sub Total' $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

05-95-090-901010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU
OF POLICY & PERFORMANCE. PH COVlD-19 HEALTH.DISPARITIES (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

Stale Fiscal
■  Year

Class/Account Class Title ' Job Number Currenl Amount
Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 . Conlracts for Proaram Services 9057.7170 SO.OO $50,000.00 $50,000.00

2023 102-500731 Conlracts for Proaram Services 90577170 SO.OO $50,000.00 $50,000.00

'  Sub Total •  $0.0^ $100,000.00 $100,000.00

Overall Total $400,000.00 • $200,000.00| ' $600,00p.Q0|

Governor and Council Letter Attachment
Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
. Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the North Country Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services
(•'State""or "Department") and Northern Human Services ("the ContractoO-

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019. (Item #788). as amended on October 7, 2020, (Item #9). as amended on April 21. 2021.
(Item #19). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 2, the
Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$600,000.

2. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit A. Amendment #3.
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit 8-2, Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-2, Amendment #3. Budget,
which is attacheid hereto an incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit 8-3, Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit 8-3, Amendment #3, Budget. .
which is attached hereto an incorporated by reference herein. '

SS-2019-OPHS-26-NORTH-01-A03 Northern Human Services Contractor Inilials'

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 3
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AU terms and conditions, of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/22/2021

Date

0ocii$l9»»<l by:

I  /Iuoa, tV.
rxandry

Title: Ann.Landry0dhhs.nh.gov

11/22/2021

Date

' Northern Human Services

,  by;

Title: ceo

SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A03

A-S-1.0

Northern Human Services

Page 2 of 3



DocuSign Envelope ID; 662BD7F4-7584-411C-A455-D05F1CD57331

OocuSign Envelope 10:168ieAflE-ACA2-4AAD*9C5C>-9D7F7Al5AF09

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•0««u9l9n«d by;

11/22/2021 J. AwslutlL

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Councii of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting),

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title: '

SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH.01.A03 Northern Human Services

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3
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New HampsMre Department of Health and Human Services
North Country Community Collat>oration to Strengthen & Preserve Families

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders rnay have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure trainings are available to providers in Coos and
Northern Grafton Counties who provide services to the target populations.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure trainings and curricula focus on target populations
that include, but are not limited to;

2.1.1.0verburdened families. ,

2.1.2:Caregivers struggling with substance abuse.

2.1.3. Families with children less than eight (8) years of age, who are at risk for
child abuse and neglect, and other adverse childhood experiences.

2.1.4. Families experiencing parental incarceration.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure all trainings are available to a minimum of twenty-
four (24) home visitors from the following organizations:

2.2.1 .The Family Resource Center.

2.2.2. Northern Human Services' Infant Mental Health - Early Supports and
Service's programs.

2.2.3. Head Start.

2.2.4. Response: Domestic and Sexual Violence Support Center.

2.3. The Contractor shall conduct trainings and coaching sessions in order to
increase home visiting services to the target population. The Contractor shall:

2.3.1. Provide two.(2) trainings that include:-tuition; a trainer; travel, hotel, meal
costs associated with trainer; cost of the venue; materials; training
supplies; associated shipping; and a minimum of twenty (20) hours of
coaching per participant, as follows:

2.3.1.1. Growing Great Kids birth-36 months Tier 1 Certification Seminar
by Great Kids Inc., over four (4) days, and „

Northern Human Services Exhlbli a Coniractor miiiail^'^
SS-2O10-OPHS-26-NORTH.A-O3 Paoelol5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
North Country Community Collaboration to Strengthen & Preserve Families

Exhibit A

2.3.1.2. Growing Great Kids 3-5 years Training by Great Kids Inc., over
four (4) days.

2.3.2.Provide a Motivational Interviewing (Ml) training by North Country Health
Consortium over two (2) days, which includes tuition; material and training
supplies; cost of the venue; and a minimum of five (5) hours of coaching
per participant.

2.4. The Contractor shall, provide Ml and Boundary .Spanning Leadership (BSL)
training,, and follow-up coaching activities, by identifying and documenting
various partners engaged in these trainings including, but are not limited to:

2.4.1. North Country Health Consortium.

.2.4.2. Public Health Network.

2.4.3.Response: Domestic and Sexual Violence Support Center to Domestic '
Violence and Sexual Abuse Coalition.

2.4.4.Other Contractor network organizations as deemed appropriate and
agreed upon by the Department.

2.5. The Contractor shall conduct (BSL) training and activities including, but not .
limited to:

2.5.1. Facilitation of BSL tools, exercises and activities.

2.5.2. Facilitation of assessrrient of team readiness in BSL toolkit and activities
in BSL toolkit, to include all network partners.

2.5.3. Facilitation of the use of the BSL toolkit activities, and coordinate network
definitions used in BSL toolkit to span boundaries.

2.5.4. Support, creation and operationalizing of transformation across the
network to arrive at shared improved outcomes for BSL Network team..

2.5.5. Support and participate, in evaluating the outcomes of BSL training and
submit needed data and actions to the Department's Community
Collaborations Evaluation Contractor.

2.6. The Contractor shall support the evaluation of the BSL framework and of the
impact of services received by families completed by Department's Community
Collaborations Evaluation Contractor in Studies 1, 2, and 3 of the Cross Site-

■ Evaluation within.the Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve
Families Project. .

2.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to learn about and engage
in national promising practices of evidenced-based or evidence-informed
prevention of child abuse and neglect.

2.8. The Contractor shall provide evidence-based, culturally and linguistically
competent, prevention-focused prograrhs to the community, designed to:

2.8.1. Reduce child maltreatment.

Northern Human Services Exhibit A Conlractor inlUalA
11/22/2021

SS-20l9-OPHS-2e-NORTH-A^3 Page 2 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
North Country Corhmunity Coliaboration to Strengthen & Preserve Families

Exhibit A

2.8.2. .Improve parent-child interactions.

2.8.3. Improve skills for regulating behavior and coping adaptively.

2.8.4. Improve coordination of services and referrals for young families.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide a variety of prevention services to parents of
children up to eight (8) years of age, including but not limited to:

2.9.1. Home Visiting.

2.9.2. Parent education.

2.9.3. Family support services, includirig respite or crisis care.

2.9.4. Activities that promote Protiective Factors, that include, but are not
limited to becoming providers of NH EASY, increasing parental
resilience through parental education, that show evidence of:

2.9.4.1. Promoting social connection.

2.9.4.2. Increasing access to, or provide, concrete support systems.

2.9.4.3. Increasing knowledge of parental development.

2.9.4.4. Increasing knowledge, awareness or skills that promote
resilience and increase the social and emotional competence of
children.

2.9.4.5. Increasing access and. connections to concrete supports such
as, referrals to economic supports, referrals to child care, health
insurance and food supports.

2.10. The Contractor shall lead efforts to improve tertiary support for families
experiencing complex stressors.

2.11. The Contractor shall provide a wraparound approach to engage and coordinate
multiple services, for a small percentage of families in Coos County experiencing
complex stressors and those impacted by COVID-19 such as economic and
mental health.,

2.12. The Contractor shall lead program-planning efforts, be present at, and
participate in Community Collaborations statewide meetings.

2.13. The Contractor shall lead facilitation development of a Practice Profile outlining
the specific approaches to program implementation, as defined by the
Department and the Community Collaborations Evaluation Contractor.

2.14. The Contractor shal) facilitate and lead a Community Implementation Team
(CIT) as defined by the Department's Community Collaborations Evaluation
Contractor. The CIT is a group of cross agency and program partners within that
community and this team can be made up of the BSL training participants.

2.15. The Contractor shall draft, and finalize a CIT project work plan and establish a
logic model team, as defined by the Department and the Community

Northern Human Services ExNbllA Conlraclor InllialsL^lL-^
11/22/2021

SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-A-O3 Page 3 of 5 Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
North Country Community Collaboration to Strengthen & Preserve,Families

Exhibit A

Collaborations Evaluation Contractor.

2.16. The Contractor shall coordinate the network, the CIT data definition
establishment and data collection according to network-determined definitions
as defined by the Department's Community Collaborations Evaluation
Contractor.

2.17. The Contractor shall collaborate with CIT Partners to develop a model using
expertise within the leadership group and pilot a tertiary team model in one
location as determined by the Contractor. The Contractor shall:

2.17.1. Utilize lessons learned to replicate efforts in additional locations in year
two (2) and determine additional locations after assessing environmental
stressors that are most prevalent based upon the Community Needs
Mapping and CIT partner service data.

3. Reporting

3.1 .The Contractor, with the CIT, shall submit a Practice Profile to the Department.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on process and outcome measures
for each area of study in order to determine quality, improvement and
recommendations upon Department request.

3.3.The Contractor shall establish a shared data and outcomes tracking system for
the Community Collaborations project.- using the tracking system for data
collection and analysis.

3.4.The Contractor shall provide the following information:

3.4.1. The Number and type of trainings provided to the Family Support
Specialists (FSS), Case Managers, and Community Health Workers
(CHW) staff;

3.4.2. Number of agency and CHW staff enrolled as providers of NH EASY in
■  - order to support individual connections to concrete supports such as

economic supports and referrals to minimize CdVID-19 impacts;

3.4.3. Number of cases by CHW/FSS and Number of encounters per
CHW/FSS;

3.4.4. Number of encounters to provide communication about C0\/ID-19 risk
factors, mitigation and prevention; and

. 3.4.5. Number of other navigation and support services to address CpVID-19
risk factors (e.g., employment, economic, child care, health care).

3.5.The Contractor shall review and utilize the NH Division of Public Health Services
Equity Review toolkit prior to implementing programming, as agreed upon by both
parties. This toolkit will provide guidance on ensuring equity, including Race,
Ethnicity and Linguistic (REAL) and Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity .
(SOGI) data collection as well as community engagement as core elements of the
work of the Department grant-based work. 1^.

Northern Human Services Exhibit A Contractor Inltiatsi, _
„ . 11/22/2021
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3.6. The Contractor shall provide a quarterly summary of Protective Factors Survey-2
(PFS-2) completed for the Community Collaborations project. Surveys will show:

3.6.1. The percentage of types of concrete needs identified for the families
served by race, ethnicity and language, when available.

3.6.2. The percentage of increased Protective Factors.

4. Performance Measures

4.1.The Contractor shall minimally achieve the following outcomes by the end of

twenty-four (24) months after contract implementation, which only relates to
agencies that participate in Ml and Evidence Based Practice (EBP) training.
Outcomes to be provided by June 30.- 2023, include but are not limited to:

4.1.1. 85% of families with children birth to.age five (5) years of age will receive
home visiting services.

4.1.2. The number of early childhood practitioners in Coos County trained in
evidence-based social emotional practices will increase by 10%.

. 4.1.3. 85% of children birth to age five (5) years of age in Coos County will
receive Ages and Stages Questionnaire (ASQ) and/or ASQ-social
ernotional developmental screenings at least once per year.

4.1.4. 85% of children birth to age five (5) years of age with needs identified
through developmental screenings will receive needed services."

4.1.5. . 85% of caregivers of children birth to age five (5) years of age will
receive depression screenings at least once per year.'

4.1.6. 85% of caregivers with needs identified through caregiver depression
screenings will receive needed services.

4.1.7. The rate of families served by tertiary teams who report they received
effective care coordination will be 50% higher than the state average.

4.1.8. Increase the number of home visitors who are trained and implerrienting
evidence-based parenting education into their work by ten (10), from 42
to 52.

4.1.9. Increase the number of children actively receiving home visits by 47,
from 303 to 350.

4.1.10. Increase the number of caregivers actively receiving home visits by
twenty (20), from 164 to 184. .

4.1.11. Improve on average parenting skills by 25% up from 2018 average of
18%.

r"
Northern Human Services Exhlbll A Coniraclor iniHalsl
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Commbsbner

Ust M. Morris
DIrrclOr

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D! mtON OF PUBLIC HEA L TH SER ̂ICES

29 HAZEN drive, concord. NH 03301
603'27MS0I ' l-809-&$2-3345Ext.4S0l

Fox: 603.271-4827 TOD Atceix: I-800-73S.2964
www.dhhj.nh.gov

March 15. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize' the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Northern Human
Services '(VC #177222-8004), Conway. NH. to continue activities for the North Gentry
Community Coliaboralions to Strengthen and Preserve Families program (hat conducts trainings
for staff who provide Home Visiting Services lo young children and families as well as direct
services to families, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price lirriitalion by
$100,000 from $300,000 to $400,000 and extending the completion date from June 30. 2021 to
June'sO. 2023 effeciive July 1. 2021 or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later.
100% Federal Funds"

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19,2019, item #788
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on October 7, 2020. itern #9.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023. upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation ar^ encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
05-95-042-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES OIV, CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD-FAMILY

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job
Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 643-504191
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42105756 $100,000 $0 $100.0,00

2020 643-504191
Contracts for

Pr.og Svc
42105756 so $0 $0

2021 643-504191
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42105756 $200,000 $0 $200,000

Subtotals: $300,000 $0 $300,000

77ic Oci/orlment of Hccllh e/i<f Hinnofi Services' Mittion is to Join commnnilies and families
in-providing opportunitiu foreilUeits lo achieve heallh and independence
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His ExceOency. Governor Chrisiopher T. Sununu
and ihe Honorable Council

Pe^e 2 of 3

05-95-090-902010.70470bOO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HNS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, COMMUNITY COLLABORATION (100% Federal

Slate

Fiscal

Year

Class 1

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased
(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for
,  Prog Svc

90070470 $0 $50,000 $50,000

2023 102-M0731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90070470 $0 $50,000 ■  $50,000

Subtotals: ■ $0 $100,000 $100,000

Totals; $300,000 $100,000 $400,000

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source. Northern
Human Services is the Fiscal Agent for the Coos Coalition for Young Children and Families (Coos
Coalition), which is the coordinating body in Coos and Northern Graflon Counties for child
maltreatment prevention utilizing evidence based practices. The Coos Coalition is the only
coalition in Coos and Northern Grafton.counties whose primary purpose is to promote the optimal
social and emotional development of children from birth through eight (8) years of age.

The purpose of this request is to continue the activities tn the North Country Community
Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families program by providing training for staff who
provide Home Visiting Services in the North Country Region through the network and work of the
Coos Coalition.

Furrds support the Social and Emotional Learning Coaching System in Coos Country as
part of the strategy.to support and maintain a high quality early childhood serving workforce.
' Coaching will be provided to a minimum of twenty-eight (28) home visiting staff from the Family
Resource Center. Northern Human Services Infant Mental Health and Early Supports and
Services programs and Head Start.

The Coos Coalition's leadership team will continue utilizing Boundary Spanning
Leadership practices to support the community implementation team further develop collective
impact strategies to enhance the early childhood system.

. The Contractor will continue utilizing funding to increase capacity to provide evidence
based, universal home visiting services to families with young children; to deliver coaching to
home"visiting staff who provide services to children; and to provide consistent parent engagement
opportunities "for families to connect with one another to build resource networks and Increase
parenting skills. The Contractor will collect data and outcomes data from the clients served to
support a program evaluation with the University of New Hampshire. The Department anticipates
linking ttie collected data with internal data to determine outcomes of families and children who
receive community coordination of services and to determine child maltreatment outcomes.

The target population served Is overburdened families, caregivers with substance misuse
and young families with children eight (8) years of age or younger who are at risk of child abuse
or neglect and other adverse childhood experiences. The geographic region served includes all
of Coos County and North Grafton County above Franconia Notch. Approximately 500 children
and their families will be served from July 1. 2021 to June 30. 2023.
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P89e 3 of 3

The Department will monitor coi^racted eervlces to ensure:

• The number of home vtsttors who are trained and implemerrting evidence-baaed
parenting education In their work is not leas than 52.

• The number of children aclively.receivtng home vialta la hot less than 350.

•  The number of caregivera actively receiving home visits is r^ot less than 164.

•  Protective Factors Survey-2 instruments that rheasure increases In parentirtg akills
demonstrate increases no less than 25% upon ramilles receiving servioes.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2 of
the original contract, the parties have (he option to extend the agreement for up to two (2)
additional years, contingem upon satisfactory delivery of servioes. available funding, agreement
of the parties and Governor artd Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to
renew services for two (2) of the two (2) years avaiiable.

Should the Gpvemor btkI Councii not authorize this request, home visiting staff who
provide services to caregivers with substance abuse as well as families with young children at
risk of child abuse and neglect may not receive appropriate evidence-ttased training and follow-
up coaching activities, wt^lch are imperative to teaching positive parenting and family structure to
those in need of services. <

Area served: Coos County and Northem Grafton County north of Franconia Notch

Source of Funds:. CFDA #93.670, FAIN MCA1B58.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

.  Amendment U2

This-Amendment to the North Country Community Collabofation to Strengthen and Preserve Families
contract is by and between ih^ State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or""Oepar1ment") and Northem Human Services ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19. 2019 (Item #788). as amended on October 7.2020 (item #9). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions speciried in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specined; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1. Paragraph 2. the
Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and.
Executive Council; and - '

WHEREAS," the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or rnodify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2023.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$400,000.

3. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section <2, to read:

2. This agreement is funded with:

2:1. 25% Federal Funds from the Community Collaboration to Strengthen and Preserve ,
Families in NH: A Prevention. Public Health. Cross-Sector Approach; as awarded on
June 25. 2020 by the US Department of Health and Human Services. Administration on
Children. Youth & Families. Children's Bureau; CFOA #93.670; Federal Award
Identification Numt>er (FAIN) 90CA1858.

2.2. 75% General Funds.

4. Modify Exhibit B. fi/lethods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 4. Subsection 4.1. to
read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement in accordance with Exhibit A and Exhibit 8:1. Budget Sheet

.  through Exhibit B-4 Budget-Amendment #2.

5. Add Exhibit B-3 Budget - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

6. Add Exhibit 8-4 Budget - Amendment #2. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

[5Northern Human Services Amenrtmenl #2 Contractor Initials ,

SS-2019-0PHS-26-NORTH-01-A02 Page1o!3 Date 3/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2021 or upon the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval, whichever Is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the.parlies have set their hands as of the date written t>elow.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

3/30/2021

Date

.1

Title: Director. Division of Public Health srvcs.

3/23/2021

Date

Northern Human Services

fyic
*^^^«BWb-3ohnson

Tille:

Northern Human Services

SS-2019.0PHS-26-NORTH.01-A02

Amendment 02

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEV GENERAL

3/31/2021

—OMuttaKMnm

Dili ^ I"""
Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Northern Human Services Amondmeni U2

SS-2019-OPHS.26-NORTH-01-A02 . Page 3of 3
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STATt OF NEW HAMFSHDU;

' DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DiytStON OFFVBUCHEALTMSEHy/CES

WMAIENDRJVE, CONCORD. NH M30I
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- UaM.N<»Tii ww«.4bb».nb.B0v
DJrtttw

Septftmber 16.2020-

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State Houm
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health end Hunriah. Servtoes, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend en existing Sole Source contract with Northern Human Services (Vendor
di 77222-8004), Conway. NH to provide trainings In evidence based home visiting services for
young, children and families by Increasing the price limitation by S200.000 from 6100,000 to
6300.000 with no change to the contract completion date of June 30, 2021 effective upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The original contract vras approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019, (Item
#788).

O5.9S^W2-d21010 -2958 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Claae /

Account
Claaa Title

Job'
Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Docreaeed)
Amount,

Revised

Budget

2019 643-504191
Contracts for
Program
Services

42105745 $100,000 SO $100,000

2020 &43.-504.191

Contracts for

Program
Services

42105745 $0 $0 $0

2021 645-504004

Contracts for
Program
Services

42105745 $0 $200,000 $300,000

Total $100,000 5200,000 $300,000

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP ISO requires any.6ut>sequent emendmsnta to be labelled as sole source. Northern
Human Services is the FiScel Agent for the Coos Coelitlon for Young Children and Families. They
ere the coordinating body in Coos and Northern Grafton Counties for child mattreotmcnt
prevention utilizing evidence based practices. TWs Is the only coalition In Coos and Northern

Th« Otporlmni ofHtalUi end Humon S4rviett'Mltiien it lepin cemmunilin end/emilia
in pnvidingefifiOfUinilin for ciiiant 10 OfAiVw htohh end indtptndtnet.
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Grafton oountic3 wtioao pflmaiy purpose Is to promote the optimal social end emotional
developmertt of children from birth through eight (6) years of age. Since 2C09, more than a dozen
cross sector organbations irtduding health centers, mental health provWers. achocl districts,
childcare centers, Head Start end family support programs have wortted to buiW a coordinated
artd aligned eystem of supports for chiWren end their families living in Coos and Northern Grafton
counties. Coos CoaWion for Young Children end Families will continue to use Boundary Spanning
Leadership practices to support the Community Implementation Team as they develop future
ptrstegies to anhanco the oerly chikthood ayetem.

The puppooe of thl© requeoi i» to complement current octivitiee In the Community
Colleborations to Strengthen ond Prosorve Femiiioo Program by providing training for staff who
provide Home Visiting Services In the North Country Region through the network end of
Coos Coalition, for Young ChHdren and Families. There are currentty no child-parent
psychotherapy trained practiliorters in the North Country. Ten (10) itew chitd-parent
psychotherapy practitioners will be trained. Addttonaliy. twelve (12) home visitors will be trained
In GGK.

The Community Collebdratlons to Strengthen and Preserve Families Program provides
servicee to families wtth children up to eight (8) years of age who may bo at risk of child abuse
and neglect end other adverse childhood experiences. The Contractor will use funding to Increase
capacity to provide evidence based, universal home visiting services to families wtth young
children; to deliver child-parent psychotherapy training to mental hoatth clinicians who provide
services to children ond to provide consistent parent engagement opportunities for families to
connect with one another to build resource networks and Increase parenting skills. The vendor.
will be collecting data and outcomes data from the clients served to support a prograrn evaluation
with the University of New Hampehim. The Department plans to lir)k the, collected data vrith
Internal data lb determine outcomes of families end children who reccrve'community coordination
' of services and determine child mattrestment outcomes.

The ■ Department will continue to monitor contracted senrices using the following
performance measures:

•  Increase the percentage of home visitors In the North Country who are trained and.
•  Implemeniing evidence-based parenting education practices into their work to 90H.

•  Inaease the percentage of families with yourrg children. 8 years old or younger, in
Coos County actively reoe'rving home visits to 75%.

•  Increase the number of caregivers actively receiving home visits by twenty (20) from
184.10184.

•  Improve on average parenting skills by 50%. up from the 2019 average of 27%.
As referenced In Exhibit C-i, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Paragraph 2 of

the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, egireemcnt
of the parties and Goverrwr and Council approval. The Department Is not exercising Its option to
renew at this time. .

Should the Governor and Council not. authorize this request, home visitors yi^o provide
services to caregivers with substance abuse es well as families with young children at risk of child
abuse end neglect may not receive appropriate evidence based training end follow up coaching
activities that ere imperative to teaching positive parenting and family structure to those in need
of eervioes.
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. .. Area eerved AU of Coos County end Northern Grsftoo County ebove Franconie Notch.

Source of Funds; 100% General Funds.

Respectfully submitted,

Uori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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New HampBhlro Department of Health and Human Servfcea
North Countiy Cpmmunfty Collaboration to Strengthen 6 Preaervo Famlllee^^^

State of New Nampshiro
Oepartment of HooHh and Human Sorvlcee

Amendment 01 to me North Country Community Cottaboration to Strengthen A Preserve
FemJIleo

This 1" Amendment to the ̂ rth Counby Community Codabomtion to Strengthen A Preaerve FomlDee
eommci (herebiaflor referred to aa 'Amandment #1*) Is by and beNween the State of New Hampahlm.
Dopartmsnt of HaaSh end Human SeMces (herethsttar referred to as the 'State* or 'OepartmanT) end
Northom Human Servlcos. (hereinafter refenod to as *the Qontmctor*). a nonpmni oorporetfon with e
plOCO of business ot B7 Washlr>gton Street, Ccnwey. NH.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an egreoment (the 'Contjocf) approved by the Governor and Executtve Coundi
on dur>e 19. 2010. (Ram 0766) the Contrector agreed to perform certain ee/vtoes based upon the tsrms
Bni oortdlibns speclTtad In tho Conbect and In oonsideredor) o1 oartain sums specifted; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. Genorel Provisions. Paragraph 16. and Eidtlbn 0-1. Paragraph 2. die
Contract may be emended upon written agreemem of the parties and'approval from the Governor arid
Executfve C^ncii; end

WHEREAS, the parties agres to extend (he term of the-egreemertt incieese the price nmitatton, or modify
the scope of aervlcaa to eupporl oonltnued delivery of those aervtoas; end

NOW THEREFORE. In oonslderBtlon of the foregoing end the rnuiual covenants and condltlorts comatned
in tho Centred and set forih herein, the parties hereto agree to amiend as folbwa;

1. Form P<37. Generel Provblona, Block 1.6. Pitca Lbnltatlon, to read;

$300,000. , ,

2. ExhIbR 6; Methods end CondRlons Precedent to Payment. Section 4. Subsection 4.1. to read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost retmbuffiemeni basis for edusl oxpendRuras Incurred In (he
fulfUln)e.n( of (hts Agreement, arxl shell be In eccbrdance wllh tho epprored line (tem.-es sped/lod
In ExhIbR B'2 Amtmdment 01 Budget.

3. Exhibit 6, Methods and Cond&lons Precedent to Paymern, Section 4. Subsection 4.5. to md:

4.5 The Contractor shall submit en Invoice In e fone aathfactory (o ihe State by the twentieth (20**)
vroddng day of each rhonth. which fdontlflee and requests relmbumament for euthorlxad e^enses
Incurred In the prior month.

4. Add ExhIbR 6>2. Amondment 01 Budget.

Northern HwnenSo^oo Amendm«nt01 Conuedor IrfilBie.

SS-201«)PHS-2eNORTt«1^i PogotolS Oao R



DocuSign Envelope ID; 662BD7F4-7584-411C-A455-D05F1CD57331

DocuSlgn Envelope 10: 1681BA8E-ACA2-4AAD-9C5D-9D7F7A15AF09

OocuSign Envelope 10:4E308S4P-1AC7-46A£-B30&O6O1O2E3eEeP

Nftw Hampehire Oepartmont of Hoafth and Human Sorvtces
North Country Community Collaboration to Strengthen & Preserve Famlllee

AD tarma and conditions of the Ccntrect and prtor amendments not inoonsistont wtih this Amar^mant 01
rannsln In fUl foroa andatfoct Thtsamandmantehaflbaeffedlva upon the data of Governor and Exacuttve
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the padtas have eat their hendo as of the data written'bolow.

State of New Hampshire
Oapanmem of HeeOh and Human Sarvtoas

0/nJeie(i6
Data Na

ntla:

Noritiem Human Sarvlcee

e.16.20

Data NanwMcjohnson
"lyo: rpn

Nonhem Hirisn Servion

sa-201 e-DPH s-ze^roRTHO t• A01

A/non^orrl 111

Poes 2 of 3
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New Hampshire OepartmBnt of Hoafth end Human Sorvlcos
North Country Community Collaboration to Strengthen & Preserve Families

Tha precedhg Amendment having been revlo*ved by thb cfTce. b approved as to fom* substance and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

°^S/20 (ZlX/uiA^
Dete Neme:

TIUo: Calhenne Pinos. Attorney

I hereby certify thai tne teregotog Ameirvtmeni was approved by (he Govemof and Exoculivo Cound) of
the Stele of New Hampahfre at the MeeUrig on: (date of. nwetlng)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
TWe:

Nofthflfn Itomen SotvlcoB Amondmettm

6S.2Oie.DPHSW4ORTriei.A0l PogeSofS
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state OF MW HAMPSHIRE

department of health and human services

D/K/5/0N OF FUBUC HEAL TH SEftyiCES

i9 HAZCN ORIve, COMCORD. NH 03)01
603.111-4901 l40O4S2'334Seit.4)0l

F*i: 603-171.41)1 TOD Acuu: l4fiO-735-2964
*.dhhs.nKge*

June 3. 2019

Hij Excellency. Governor ChrislopherT. Sununu , .
and Ihe Honorable Council

State House
Concord, Ne^ Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

(1) Authorize the Oepartmeni of Health and Human Services. Divtsion of Public Health, to enter into
a relfOBClive, sole eource agreement with Northern Human Services. Vendor U 232333*R(W1. 87
Washington Street. Conway. NH 03818 to provide irainings tn evidcnce-twsed home visiting services for
young children, and families in an'amount not to exceed $100,000. effective retroactive to May 1. 2019
upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30. 2021.100% General Funds.
(2) Contingent upon approval of Requested Adion (i), authorize the Department of Health and
Human Services to provide Northern Human Services, with an advance payment in en amount not to
exceed $100,000. effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval for the provision
of start-up costs for trainings in evidanco-bascd home visiting services. 100% General Funds.

Funds are available in the foDovring account for Slate Fiscal Year 2019.
05-95-9tWM2-fl21010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION. CHILOiFAMILY SERVICES

Fiscal
Year

Class/AccounI* Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2019 W3-5W191 Contracts for Prog Svc 42105745 5100,000

SFY 2020 &43.504191 Contracts for Prog Svc 42105745 $0

SFY 2021 643-504191 Contracts for Prog Svc 42105745 $0

Total $100,000

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because trainings are scheduled to lake place in May of 2019. Sole
source contract negotiations were not completed until the-bcginning of May 2019. The fully executed
contract was not received from the vendor until May 29. 2019.

This request is aole source because Northern Human Services iis the Fiscal Agent for the Coos
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Coalition for Yoursg Children and Families (CCYCF). They are the coordinating body in Coos end
Northern Graflon Counties for ehitd rnailreaimem prevention utilizing evidence based practices. This is
the only coalition in Coos and Northern Grafton counties whose primary purpose is to promote the optimal
social and emotional developmertt for children birth through eight (6) years of age. Since 2009, more
than 8 dozen cross sector organizations including health centers, mental health providers, school
districts. cNldcare centers. Head Start and family support programs have wortted to build a coordinated
and aligned system of supports for children and their families living in Coos and Northern Grafton
counties.

The purpose of this contract is to increase the ability of the CCYCF and Its agency partners to
fadlitate corhmunltyrbased, evidehce-t>dsed pareniai assistance programs in accordance with SB 592
(2018 Legislative S^ss.ion). Programs are designed to reduce child maltreatment, improve parent-child
interactions, improve skills for regulating behavior and copir>9 adaplivety or>d raciiltale improved
coordination of services and referrals.

■CCYCF. under the fiscal auspices of Northern Human Services, will train home, visitors ar\d
community health worliers in the evidence, based parent education model. Growing Greef Kids and in
motivational intervievytng. which is an evidence based practice. Additional training will be provided using
an evidence-based framework called Boundary Spanning Laadership to existing and new CCYF agency
partners in order to build partnerships and increase the CCYCF membership.

Services provided through this contract wiQ target professionals including home visitors and
community health workers in CCYCF member agencies who provide home based services to families
and caregivers-struggling v^lh substance abuse as weD as to young families with children less than eight
(8) yeai^ of age who are at risk for child ab^se and neglect. - -
Training outcome measures of this contract include, but are not limited to;

•  An incriease of 20% in the parenting skills of families receiving home visits in the designated
service areas.

«  An increase to 90% of CCYCF agencies using evidence based parenting education such as
Growing Great Kids.

Requested Action (2). if approved, win enat^e Northern Human Sen/Ices to financially support startup
costs for training in evidence-based home visiting services. The advanced payment represents costs that
would pose a fir^ancia] hardship to'the organization to carry as credit pending reimbursement upon
conclusion of the trainings.

As referenced in Exhibit C-i of this contract, the Department reserves the right to extend
contracted services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and approval.of the Governor and Council.

Should the Governor end Executive Council not authorize this request, home visitors who provide
services to caregivers vnih substance abuse as vireU as families with young children at risk of child abuse
and neglect may not receive approphate evidence based training and follow up coaching activities that
are imperative to teaching positive parenting and family structure to those in need.
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Area served Coos Courily..norihefn Grafton County north of the Franconia Notch.

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Resputfully submined.

rey Beyers

rmmissioner-

TTu Dtpetttntnt e/HtolUi end Hunion S€rijina'Miuidn ine/ein «o<innunilin oidfamitia
in pr^uidind epfJOftunUln h' tilium U eehUtM Kttllk end indtptndtnte.
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FORM iVUMBER P07 (rrnion S/E'lS)
Svbjeet; Wenh Cotimrv ̂ gg^j^^Hiibonnion «e Sfrtuhf" ft ramilre3/SS-2Ql9-DPH&.26.NQRTm

NmIcc: Thi$ ecrcemen) end oil of ill oRO^IimcAit ihiD become public upon siAroiuion (o Governor end
Eeeodive Council for epprovil. Any inrormiiion ihti u prime, conftdcnilol or propnctior muu
be cicsdy identified lo ihe tfcncy ind ipwd to in wriling prior to lisnin^ ibc oontrui.

ACR££MeNT

Tbe'SiticofN^ Kempthire end the Cooirector hereby mutuilly epcc ei foUowx

C£fi£KAL PROVISIONS

I. IPgfmftCATIOW.
I.I SteicAtcncfNemc
NH Dcpenfflcni of KutiS and Human Scrvteo

1.2 Stale A^encjr Addmi

139 Ptcaiani Suea

Concord. KH 0330108>7

1.3 Conireoer Name

Nonhem Human Scrvka

).'4 Centrtuoi Ad^cn

47 Wajhinjion Slrco
Conway,NHO}|ll

1.7 ComploiOA Ooe

JvK 30, 2021

1.5 Conirector Phone

Number

eO>-9l 5-7070

1.6. Account Number

'05-95.042-42I010-295S-643-

504191

i.l Price Limitation

Si 00.000

1.9 CoAirtaing Officer for StDtcA|enc}i
Nathan 0. While, Oifecior

1.10 Sute AgcTKyTclephone Number
403-27l-96)l

tflitI.II Co 1.12 Name and T.iilc of Conirsaor SifAMory

Eric Johnson. CEO

,CouAi)rof udrrolfi.lJ AcknowlcdscmcAi; Suieof NH

On Juno 7. 2019 .beforeiheundcr:ii|ncdorriccr,pcnaiu]lyippceredlhepertonldeniir«cdtnbiock l.l2,ortaiisfactonly
prvvcn^WltbbOcnon whttic rwmcit tinned in block l.li, BndKknowledted (hit fc/hc cactuicd ihii documcni in ihccopachy

^tk/y Public or fuliice ofiNc Peace

i'Lsl- i
y  Nmar^r Ju.^ oft

A

I.l 43zbi$fldMlyScj;/ii|ntivre

Dale:

1.15 NameandTiileofSuie A|crvcy Sifnaiory

1.16 'Appfovalbjr ihcNJi. Ocpanmeni of Adminisrailon. Oivliion of Poronne) fi/efipl!cebtf)

By:' Oirectoi.On;

l.n Appwnl by ihc Anomcy Gcncml (Form. Subuince and Eiccuiion) (i/opplkebie)

Br On:

1.18 Approval byiHeCovcntoreg^EiauiiveCouncil (ifeppficoblt)

Bv. Oa

Pfige 1 of 1
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FORM NUMBER P07 (vrriion S/t/IS)

Subjccc Nonh Couoirv Commumiv Collitbofmioii lo SuewhenA PfWfve Ftmili« rSS-2Q>9-DPHS-26-NORTK)

Notice: This egrccmcni end til ofiu •utchmcnij ihill become public upon submission loCovcme/ end
Exceuilve Council for ippronl. Any inrocmtiton ihei is private, conftdential or proprSettry must
be clearly idcntiricd to ihc Igcncy trtd agreed to in writing prior lo signing the epninct.

^  ̂ acrEEment
The State of New Hempshire and the Comraeior hereby muiually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I.I State AgerKy Name
NH Depanmcni of Health end Humvt Servica ■

1.2 State Agertey Address
129 Plea.c<ni Street

Concord, NHO}30IOf37

IJ Cotttricior Name

Nonhem Hunun Services

1.4 Contractor Address

87 Wtshingion SiTCt
Conwiy, NH 03818

1.) Contrictor Phone
Number

603-9iy70K

1.6 Account Number

03-95-O42-42I0I0-2938-643-

304191 *

1.7 CompleiionOate

furK 30,203l

1.8 Price Limitation

SI 00,000

1.9 Cooirvcting OITicer for Stale Agency
Nathan 0. White. Direciof'

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-27i.96)l

1.11 ConK^IO^ignil^ 1.12 Name and Title of Conirxtor Signatory '

Eric Johnson, CEO

I.O Acknowledgemeni: Stttcof NH .Couniyof CarTOlt

On Juno 7. 2019 . before the undersigned orTicer.personilly appeircd the person ideniiricd in blxk 1.12. or saiisfxionly
prov^^GBff7||yperson whose name is signed in block t. II .and acknowledged that s/Keesccuicd this document in the capacity

f^ary Public Of fustice of the Peace

i  i
^ Noiafy or Junicc of l^cVcxe

i.l4'"SUii|iM]jiDcySignaiurc

Date:

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by the N.H. DcpanmentorAdminiiiraiion. Division of Pcrronncl (ifoppiicuhle)

By; Director. On:

1.17 Approval by the Aiiorricy General (Form, Substance and Ztccvuon) (if (ippUcnble)

By: On:

1.18 Approval by the Governor arid Executive Council ft/opp/'cab'e^

By: On;

Page I of 4
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i. EMPU)yMEN7 0FC0MRACT0JVS£RVlCEST0
BE PRRFORMEU The SutcofNew Hsmpthife/iciin^
ihrtwjh che eicncy tlock i.1 l"Suic">, enpgo
i:oninctor idemifrfd in Woek 1.3 ('Con"»<'W^i'»
snd (he Coniraqor ihall perrdm. the urork or mIc cf goedi. «r
both. Mcetified «ad more pirticulihr dtichbcd in the enched
EXhiBIT A which is incerpoattd'hcrciAby rcfcma
l"S«rvlca").

3. BFrBCnYROATEATOMPLrnOW OrStRVlCKS.
3.1 NeiwtiKfUndini my provaion ufthift Acrcemeni le ihc
eomfcy, ind subject to the cppro*®! of the Governor tnd
iitecutive Cogncii of the State of New Hampuhirt, »f
ipptkable, iMs ActecAuM. and ell oNitatioAS of the panics
hereundcr. shall bceome effccive on the date the Cexemar
•r^ Executive CouiKil ■pprevc this Aptenteni u indicated in
block I.It. onlcst noneh approval is rcqvired, in which<a«
(he Agmmcnt shall become enccjive on the date the
Atrocnwni is lijned by the Suic Ajwy u shown in block
1.14 ("EfTective Oiie").
3.2 If the Conirocior commnKtSthe Services prior to the
Errestive Date, all Scrdecs performed by the Cnraraeior prior
lo'ihc EfTective Date shall be performed at the sole rijlt of the
Conirocier, trtd in the event ihst this Atreemcni does noi
become cfrcctivc. the Suic'shsll have nw lisbiliry to (he
Coruroctor, inchtding without (imitation, any obli|eiiOh to pay
.the Commctor for any cmi.* incurred or Services pafnrmed. ^
*Conrrocinr mus complete all Stfviccs by the Conptction Osie
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONBmOKAL NATURE OF ACREEMEKT.
Notwiilinaniling my provision of this Agrccmeni lo the
contrary, oil oMidsiioru of the Stoic hoirundcr, including,
wiihcui limlioiion; the coniinomcc of psymcnix htreundcr. sre
voniingeni upon the evtilsbiliiy ind eominued appropnaiion -
of funds, end In no event shall the Suie be liebtc for any
poytncnu hcrcunder in excess of such available ippropiiaicd
fuKl). Inthecveniofa reduction or teminotioA of
spproQtiiied hmds. ihe Suic tkkil have the right to withhold
payment umil ud) funds become available. Ifetw, ond shad
have the right lOiermirBU 0»ii Aipeement immcdiiitJy upon
living iheConireciornniice of suchierminjiion. The State
shsll not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account ideniifitx) in block 14 in the event funds in (hit
Aecount are reduced or unsvslleble.

5. COKTRaCT PRICC/PRiCE LlMITA'nON/
PAYMEffr.
3.1 The cowract price, rrxihod of paymeni. and terms of
piymcni arc idcnflfied and morcpenlculatlydcscnbedin
EXHIBIT B which is incorportied herein by reference.
J.? The paymeni by (he Stale cf the controci price shall be the
only and (he complete reimburacmeni to the Conmctor for tdl
expcn.ses, of whoiever nourc incunrd by the Coatricior in iho
performance hcoof. ond shall be the rmly and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Seivicc*. The State
shall hive no lisbility to the Coniraetor other than the comma
price.

5.) The Sale rese/va the right to offtct from any omounts
oih'crwije payable to the Comroctor under ihtx Agitemeni
those litiuidated emounii required or pcmiiied by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA I0:7< or ony ether provision nf law.
3.4 Notwithrionding ony provision irv this Agreement to the
contrary, eod no<withitand<ng unexpected eirciimuanccs. in
no event shall the total of oil paymcnu luthoriaed, or iciually
made hcrcunder, exceed the Prkc Limiiaiion ta fnnh in block
i.a.

6. COMPLUKCF. ftV COWfRACTOR WITW LAWS
and RF.CULATlONSr BQUAt EMPLOYhlENT
opportuntty.
6.1 In conrKCItOA with the (scrformance uf the Services, (he
Coniraaor lAall comply with all siaiuies. laws, regutaiioru,
a/^ Ofders of federal, fiaic. county or municipal atflhrwtiiea
which impose ony oblipiion or dury upon the Coairaoor,
including but nci limited to. civil rights irui equal oppnnunity
lawv This may ira:iiult the icquiftmeni touiiiizt ouxilisry
•ids and services (0 ensure that pcrsoru uriih communieaicn
disibiliticn. including vliion, hearing and speech, cart
communiatc triih, receive information fiem, and convey
information lu the Contiactor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with til applicable copyrighi law.t.
6.3 fTuring the term of this Agretmeni. tlw Cbnirikier shxll
not discriminate tgiirvsi employees or opplieenu for
cmplnymcni bccavsc of rmx, cokir, rxllgien. cryctl, ogc. ica.
handicap, sexual orieniotion, or national origin ̂  will take
afTtrmaiive oeiion to prevent such di.scriminaiiork.
6.) If this Agreement is (wmJoJ in trty pan by monies of the
United Sracs. the Corttractor shall comply with ill the •
provisioosof Eaeeutive Oi^r No. 11246 ("Equol
Employmeni Oppbnwnily"), as mpplcmcnied by the
reguiationsofthc Uniicd Suics Department of Libnr (41
CF.R. Part 60). aivd wiih any rules, regulations ond guidclirvct
as the SuieofNcw Hampshire or the United Siaias issirc to
implereeru these rrgubliohx. The ComracJor funher egrroto
permit the Suit o> United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and acoiunii for ihc purpose of
asccrraiiungcompliance with ell rules, regulmintxs and orders,
and the covenuLV terms and cortdiiioru of this Agrctmroi.

7. PERSONNEL
7.l''lhcCoruractbr xhall.ai its own cxpcnu provide oil
personnel necessary to pcNorm the Services, the Contractor
wananu ths) all personnel engaged In the Services shall be
QuaJiricd (0 perfdrm the Services, irtd Shall be properly
licensed and oiherwiite outhoriied to do so urtdrr ill oppheaHe
laws.
7.2 UnlcssotherwUc auhorited in writing, during the torn of
(hit Agieemati. and for o period of six (6) moniKs oflcr the
Compidion Date in bluck 1.7, the Coriirocior ahoU nnt hire,
and siisll not permit ony subeonirncior or other person, firm or
corjMraiion with whom it is engaged in o combined effort to
perform the Serviccv to hire, ony pcnon who ii a State
employee or oDicio), who is moieriolly involved in the .
procurancni. odminisiration or pcrforminccofthis

Page 2 of4
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Airecmeni. TNl provision iKiD turyivc icmintiinn of thii
A(rccmeiu.

■I.y The Contmtiftf OfTiee/ fpaifred in block 1.9. or his or
her iucccsw. thill be (he Su.ie'i reprewnntlve. In ihr evtnt
ofeny dispute cuncemini the inlierpmiiiOA ofibii Agreement,
the Cenincikti Offico't dtcUion thiil be finil for ihc Suie.

•. eVXNT OF DeFAULTm£hUi>if:5.
I.I Any one er more of the foUowing eeuor etniuioM ofthe
ConirMior ihlli contiiluie in event of defiult hcitunder
("Event of Deliult"):
l.l.t fiil«r« topeKoRM the Scrvica ceiilfftcionly or on
cehedvJe;
i.1.3 fitltt/v <0 tubntUiny report reoulxd hoevndcr. ind/or
l.l.J hilurt toperfomt iny othereovcntni, «rmor eortdicion
ofihit Agrtxmcnt.
1.3 Upon (he oceuirence of my Cvcm ofOcfivU. the State
may like my one, or rhorc.or ill, of(hc.follOMnA| Kiioni:
t.3.1 live the Contractor a writien notice specifying the Event
of Defiuli md requinng it to be mmediol.wiihirv in the
ibseocc of ■ gruier or leiser ipeeificuien of rime, ihity ()0}
dayi from (he dale ofthcnotiec: and if the Hvcai efOefiul.i •<
not liroeJy remedied, tcrminwc iMi Agrccmeni, effeeiive rwo
(3) diyii after giving ihe Coniractor netkc of (crminiiion;
t J.3 give the Cortvtcrrif a wiinm noriee specifying the Event
vif Oefaulrand suspending all piyntenii to he made under ^Is
AgKcmcdi and ordcrirtg (hii ihe portion of ihc cenimci price
which would otherwiM eecAte lo (he Conneior during the
period flom the date of uich notice until such time as the State
determines (hit the Conotetor has cured the Event of Oefiuli
shall never be paid to the ContrKior;
8.2.3 x> off againsi my other oblixationj the Stale may dw« lo
the ConirKtor any damigci the State suffen by reason of my
Event of Ocfauti; aad/of
8.2.4 imt the AgrcemcN as brcaehcd md pur.uic any of its
remedies at Uw or in cquiiy. or both

9. OATA/ACCESS/CONFlOEhmALITV/
preservation.
9.1 At tried in this Agreement, the word "data" thall mem all
infonnaiivn artd ihings developed or obiained during the
pcrformartccof. or acQui ted trr developed by reason of. this
Agreemeni, irtdwding, but not limited to. alt studio, rvponi,
fitcs, formulae, urveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rtpreduciionA d/twings, maiyne%
graphie represenlitkyts. comptncr programs, computer
priniouri, ncses, lencrs, memomndia. papcn. end documents,
alt whether finliKcd or urtrmiihtd.
9.3 All data and my properly which has been received from
Ihe State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
urtdtr this A^pcemetn, shall be ihe propeny of the State, end
shall be ietumed lo ihe State upon demand or upon
icfmtnaiion ofihis Agreemeni fnr my reason.
9.3 Ccetftdcniialily of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
(hapier PI-A or other eaitiing law. Di.eclosurcof daia
roQuiics prior wriacn appmvil of the State.

.Page

10. TERM (NATION, fn the evcm of m early (crmirttiinn of
(his Agrccmcrti for any rason other lhan the completion of the
Services, the Coniractor shall deliver lo the Coniraciihg
OfTieci. not lucr than fifteen (15) days after the date nf
termination, a report ("Temtlniiion Repnrt") describing ip
detail all Services performed, and the comract price earned, to
and including the due of urminaiion. The form, subjcci
tnaucr, comcnl, and number of copies of the Tcrminaiion
Rcpcn shall b« idcmiul to those of my Firtaf Report
de.tcribed in the anached EXHrBTT A.

I i. CONTRACTOR'S KILATION TO TRESTAVt:. In
the performsnceof this Agivrnentihc Contractor it in all
ropccli an indcpendem contractor, and <s rtcithcr an agent aor
•n cmploycK of the State Neither the Comnetor nor any of its
officen. employoct, agents or members shall have auihoriry to
bind (he Stale or receive uy bcacftd, woikers' compensaiidn
ut other emolumcms provided by (he State to iis artployces.

11.ASSlCNIvfEffr/DEUCATlON/SUBCONIRACTS.
The Cnniractor.iheil no( assign, or othcrwiic transfer my
interesi In (his Agreement without the'prior wrtiicn notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subconirseied by tic ConirH.nor without the prior wriilcn
notice and consent of ihc Siaic.

I

I). (NOEMiyiFICATION. The Conirecior shall defend,
indemnify and hold barmlcSJ ihe State, its officers and
employees, from and agtinp tuiy and alt lossu suffered by ihc
Suic, iu ofHccra and cmplpyco, and my end ail claims,
liabilititi or pcnatiics aescncd against ihe State; iu bffiecn
•rtd employees, by or on behalf of any pmon, on account of,
based or resulting from, arisini out of (or which may be
claimed to ariie outof)ihcacu or emiisiuns of the
Ccniriaor. Notwirhgmding ihc foregoing, nothing herein
conuincd shall be dcetrtcd to constitute a waiver of ihe
sovereign immtmity uf the Suie. which immuniiy is hereby
reserved lo the State. Thiscovcruni in paragraph 1.3 thiK
survive the Icrmimtion of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 Thc.CorMrtcror thstl. at iu sole cxpciiK, nbiain and
miiniain in force, artd shall require any subcortrractor or
assignee 10 obtain and maintein in force, the following
inswrahce:
14.1.1 comprchcrisivc general liability iiuurmce againsi all
elaims nf bodily injury, dcaih or property dacrage, in amounu
of not less than 11 .OOO.OOOper occurrence ond 12,000.000
aggreptc; md
14,1.3 spaiaJ cjurae'of loss eovcragc form covering all
propory Sibject to Subpartgraph 9J herein, in an amount not .
leu lhat) 80% of the whole rcplacemmt value of (he property.
14.2 'Ihe policies described in tubparagrtph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy form} and cndorsemcnis approved for u.v in the
StJic of New Hampshire by ihe Nif. Deportment of
Inruranec, am) issued by insurers lieerued in the Slate of New
Hampshire.

lofd
Cont/scior UuLiols,

Dale
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14 J-T>te Comnetor thaJl fumU^ lo the Contnct'mi OfTiwr
kknrincd (n block 1.9, or hii of hn wccesor.« ceniriC4>c(i)
of iscurvicc for ftJl inwrince ««Qtitred under this cement.
Conirscior tfuD dto ̂lmith to che Coruoctin| OfTKcr
ideniir«d in block i .9. or hit or her cucccsor. ccnifluicft) of
iftfuftnec foe ill «i*wil(0 of inJurtDce required uodei ihii
Airtemcni no lilct ihm ihiffy (JO) dijrt peioe to iho eipirtiion
djteofeack ofiheiflsuronce policici. Theccrhnciie(i)or
(tuufsncc ind my renevmJt iheeeof thill be luoched md ire
incorpontcd herein by refc/c/vet E*ch ecnifiutt^i) of
uttcrBiicechill conuin i cicutc rtquirtr\( (he insurer (0
provide the Conlrtoinj Onioer identified in Woek-l .9, or hit
or hcf lucccoer, no ten ihcn ihlny ()0) diyt prior wrdicn
notice of cinodlation or modirientionofche policy.

15. WOftKERS'COMPEKSATfON.
IS.I By *i|niBjihij n/eemcnt.iheCont/ietor
ccniBa ir^ wtitenis ihet the Coniroctur b in com^itnce tvith
or exempt fmn. the requiremcAitofN.N.RS A chapter 7BI>a
('Woritn' Cvrptnseii9» V-
/>.7 Totheexicrt iheCOAtroaorituib)cci 10 the

reouiicmatu of.N.M. RSA chipia 2kl -A* CorMroctdr thtll
miini&in. md require tny cubconinaor or isoBncc to secure
end miirniA payrhent of Wortrn' Ctimptntulon in
(ottnoeoon with iciiviiiu which the person propota lu
undoiikc puriumi to this Afrccment. Comracior thiD
furrtith'lheConimciinyOrriccr idenlificd in block 1.9. orMt
or her tutccuor. proof of Workcn' Compcrueiion in (he
minna described In N.K RSA chiptcr ZBI>A end irty
•pplicibit rtncwil(s) thereof, which ihill be cnichcd md ire
incorporoicd herein by reference. The Sceoe thill not be
rcspontible for piyrocni of my Vt/orica' Compettaiioo
prcmlumi or.for ony othei cliim 0/ benefit for Conirscior. or
eny cubeentroctor or employee of Contriciqr, which might
irisc under cppl'Cibk Suit ofNe^v Hampskire Workers'
Compentuion liwt in cortncction with the pcrformincc of the
Scrvicci under this Acraemcei.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Smc to
enforce iny proviiioni hereof iflcr my Event of Oeriuli ihiU
be dmed • woivcr of its ftghtt with regard to thai Event of -
Oefauii. or my aubsequcnt Event of Ocftuli. Nootprcca
feilufe 10 enforce my Event of Default shall be deemed a
woivei of the right of the Stiie to enforce exh and ill of the
pioviakint hereof upon my funha or other Event of Ochuli
on the part ofthe Contractor.

17. NOTTCt. Any notice by s parry hewo to the other party
thill be deemed to hive been duly delivered or pveit ai the
lime of mailini by eenificd mail. pot>a|c prepaid, in a United
Staia Poa OfHce eddrcased to the panics at the iddrcstci
given in blocks 1.1 and 1.4. herein.

JB. AMEtNDMeKT. Thij Agrtemenl maybcimcnded,
wDvcd or discharged only by an instrument in wriiing signed
by ilw portica hereto ertd only ifter ipproviJ of such
mwdmctl. waiver or ditcharge by the Oovemor and
Exceuiivt Council ofthe Suit of New Hampshire onlest no

such approval is required urtdcr the circumfiifKCj puroani to
SiBC iiw.rvleorpulicy.

19. CONSTWUCnON OF acrckmekt and terms.

This A|;ocmeni Shall be oensKucd iit iccordmce with the
laws ofthe State of Hew Hempshirc, and b binding upon and
inures to the bcnefti of the parxiu and their rexpcctive •
sucMtsenand uiiftu. The wordingused irtthis Agrcensent
•a the wurding chosen by the panics to express their mutval
•ntcBi. and no rule of coKdruciion shall be applied igoinsi or
in favoroftny parry.

20. THIRD FaRTICS. The ponies hereto do not Intend to
benefit my third panics and ihia Agfeamcni shall not ba
corutrvcd to confer any such beoeni.

M . nCADINCS. The headings thr6iq(houi the Agrremcni
' art (or rcfervnce purposes only, end the words contained
(herein shall in ao way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the iruerproaiiort. comuwaiun or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SFEClAt PROVISIONS, Additional provisions ici
for\h in the atiKhed EXHIBIT C are incorponncd herein by
ttfncnce.

23. SE VCRABILfTY. In the event my of the provisioni of
this Agrument arc held by a coun of competent juritdiciibn lo
be contnry'to any xtaie or fedcniTaw. the rcmiirting
provitiorB Of this Agreement will remain in full force and
cfToct.

24. ENTIRE aCRCEMENT. This Agrtcnieni, which may
be executed in a number of coumerpant, each of which shall
be deemed an oripnal. conffituia the entire Agreement and '
wndensinding bcDvtcn the paniu. ond.ivpcrscdex all prior
Agreements md underjUndihgs reining hereto.

Page dor 4
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New Hempehiro Oepertmenl of Heelth end Human Services
North Country Community CoNeboratlon to Strengthen & Prctervo Famliloe

Eihlplt A

. Scope of Sefvices

1. Provisions Applicable to All Servlceis

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed deschplion of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services withirt ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2.The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders'may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the Stale Agency has the right lo modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under (his Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of (he Contract to (he contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30. 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30. 2010,.unless .and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 biennia.

1.4. The Contractor shall ensure trainings are available to providers in Coos and
Norlher Grafton Counties who provide services to the target populations.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure trainings and curricula focus on target populations
that include, but are not limited to;

2.1.1. Overburdened families.

2.1.2.'Cdregivers struggling with substance abuse.

2.1.3. Young families with children less than 8 years of age, who are at risk for
child abuse and neglect, and other adverse childhood experiences.,

2.2. The Contractor shall conduct trainings and coaching sessions in order to increase
home visiting services to the target population. The Coni/acior shall:

2.2.1 .Provide two (2) trainings that inciude tuition; a trainer; travel, hotel, and
meal costs associated with trainer; cost of the venue; materials; training
supplies; associated shipping; and a minimum of twenty (20) hours o.f
coaching per participant, as follows:

2.2.1.1. Growing Great Kids 0-36 months Tier 1 Certiricdtion Seminar by
Great Kids Inc. over four (4) days, and

2.2.1.2. Growing Great Kids 3-5 years Training by Great Kids Inc., over
four (4) days.

2.2.2.Provide a Motivational Interviewing Training by North Country Health
Consortium over two (2) days that includes tuition; material and training

Northern Humon ScfviMi ErftohA- Cor4r»«o«iNU#b Jli

S5'»»9-or>M$.2^N0BTK Pes#lof4 Date ipii
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Now MompOhlfO Ooportmont of Health end Mumen Sorvlcoe
North Country Community CoHeboretlon to Strcngthon 4 Proservo Femliles

Eihlbit A

supplies; cost of the venue; and e minimum of five (5) hours of coaching
per pdrticipanl;

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure alt trainings arc available to a minimum of (wenly-four
(24) home visitors from the following organizations:

2.3.1.The Family Resource Center.

2.3.2.Northern Human Services' Infant Mental Health • Early Supports and
Ser^ces programs.

2.3.3. Head-Start.

2.3.4. Response: Domestic and Sexual Violence Support Center

2 4 The Contractor shall provide Motivational Interviewing and The Boun<jary
Spanning Leadership (BSL) Training, and rollow.up coaching activities, by
counting partnerships with partners that include, but are not limited to:

2.4.1.North Country Health Consortium.

2.4.2. Public Health NetwofV.

2.4.3. Response: Domestic and Sexual Violence Support Center to Domestic
Violence and Sexual Abuse Coalition.

2;4.4. Other Contractor nelworV organizations as deemed appropriate and
agreed upon by the Department

2.5. The Contractor shall conduct Boundary Spanning Leadership (BSL) training and
activities including, but nol limited to:

2.5. V Facilitation of BSL tools, exercises and activities

2.5.2. Facilitation of assessment of team readiness in BSL toolkit and activities
In BSL toolkit, to include all network partners.

2.5.3. Facilitation of the use of the BSL Toolkit activities, and coordinate
network denniiions used in BSL Toolkit to span boundaries.

2.5.4. Support, creation and operaiionalizing of transformation across the
network to errive at shared improved outcomes for BSL Network team.

2.5.5. Support and participate in evaluating the outcomes of BSL training and
submit needed data and actions to the University of New Hampshire
Institute on Disability.

2 6 The Contractor shall support the evaluation of the BSL Model completed by the
University of New Hampshire (UNH) In Study i of the Cross Site-Evaluation within
the Community Collaboration to Strengthen and Preserve Families Project.

2.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to leam about and engage
in national promising practices of evldenced-based or evidence-informed
prevention of child abuse and neglect.

2 8 The Contractor shall provide evidence-based, culturally and lingui^^y
smHumonStwicw ■ EiWtt.A ConWCW InUlb
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Exhibit A

competent, prevention-focused parental assistance programs to the community,
designed to;

2.8.1. Reduce child maltreatment.

2.8.2. Improve parent-child interactions.

2.0.3. Improve skills for regulating behavior artd coping adaptivety.

2.8.A. • Improve coordination of services and referrals for young families.

2.0. The Contractor shail provide a variety of prevention services to parents of
children up to eight (0) years of age. including but not limited to:

2.9.1: Home Visiting

2.9.2. Parent education.

2.9.3. Family support services, Including respite or crisis care.
2.9.4. Activities that promote Protective Factors, that include, but are not

limited to increasing parental resilience through parental education, that
show evidence of:

2.9.4.1. Promoting social connection.

2.9.4.2. Increasing access to. or provide, concrete support systems.

2.9.4.3. Increasing knowledge of parental development.

2.9.4.4. Increasing knowledge, awareness or skills that promote
resilience and increase the social and emotional competence of

.  . children.

2.10. The Contractor shall lead program-planning efforts, be present at. and
■participate in Community Collaboration statewide meetings.

2.11. The Contractor shall lead facilitation development of a. Practice Pronie as
defined by the OHHS and the Community Collaborations Evaluation Contractor,
the University of New Hampshire. Institute on Oisability.

2.12. The Contractor shall facilitate and lead a Community implementation Team as
defined by the DHHS and the Community Collaborations Evaluatior> Conlractor,
the University of New Hampshire, Institute on Oisability. This learn can be made
up of the 8SL training participants.

2.13. The Contractor shall draft, and fmaliie a Community Implementation Team (CIT)
project work plan, timeline, and logic model Team as defined by the DHHS and
the Community Collaborations Evaluation Contractor, the University of New '
Harnpshire. Institute on Disability.

2.14. The Contractor shall coordinate network /CIT data definition establishment and
data collection according to nelwork-determlnW definitions as defined by the
DHHS and the Community Collaborations Evaluation Contractor, the University

SS-20l»-OPrtS-»-NORrM P«g«3oJ4 Dolo . \
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Exhibit A

3. Reporting

3.1. me Conlreclof. wiih theCIT, shall submit a Practice Profile.

3.2.The Contractor shall submit annual and Inlehm reports on process and outcorne
measures for each area of study in order to determine quality Improvement and
recommendations upon Oeparlmerit request.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall minimally achlove the following outcomes by the end of 12
months after contract implementation (only relates to agencies that participate in
Ml and E6P training. Outcomes Indude but ere not limited to:

4.1.1. Increase the number of home visitors who are trained and implementing
evidence-based parenting education into their worV by ten (10) frorn 42 to
52

4.1.2. Increase the number of children actively receiving home visits by 47. from
303.10 350.

4.1.3. Increase Ihe niimberof caregivers actively receiving home visits by
twenty (20) from 164 to 164..

4.1.4. Improve on average parenting skills by 25% up from 2018 average of
18%. v

Northern MgffiitA SxMces a C«nVK» WUiU «
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Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8.
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuani to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This agreement Is funded with 100% General Fund

3. Failure to meel the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's future
funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as followi9:

4.1. Upon Goverrwr and Executive Council approval the Contractor shall submit an
invoice to the Oepartmeni In the amount of $100,000 for payment of services
outlined in Exhibit A.

4.2.The Contractor shall ensure the Invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to Initiate payment.

4.3. In lieu of hard oopieSi all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to DPHScontractbiltino@dhhs.nh.Qov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator
Oepartmeni of Healih and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services
29 Hazen Drive

Concord. NH 03301

4.4. The State shall make payment lo the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufftcient funds
are available.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Oepartmeni review, as
requested.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld. In whole oMn part, Iri the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or'if the said services or products "haye not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

NorViem Human SgrviCM EiMMS Convsetof lAklaii
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^ppflAI PftOSflSIQNS

Contfoctore ObtlBotlonj: The Conlfoclof.covcnonti end agrcei lhal eH lundt foceived by
under the Conl/cci shell be used only as paymeni to (he ConiroclOf for .
individuals and. In (ho lunherence o) iho oloresSid covenants, ihe Conirector hereby covenants and
ogrees os follows;

1  CAmaiisnte with Fodorel end State Lowe; If the ConifDcio/ Is permlned to determine the cllpibirity

stole laws, regulations, orflers. guldettnes, poiicits end procedu'oa.

2.

3.

Time end Menner of Dotormlnatlon: EiigibBiiy deiermlneiions ahoii be mode on ^
the Oepoftmont for that purpose and shoO bo made and remade at euch times os ore prescribed by
the Oepartmeni

Documontollon: In adtfilion to the determination forms required by
shall maintain a data fila on eoch recipient of services he.eurt^'. wh<h fJo fInlormfltionrwcessarytosupporl-aneligibililydetefmmabonorvJsuchotherinformoiKJoesthe
Department requests. The Cchtractor Shan furnish the Department wilh an forms ertd <JocumDnlal«n
regardifig eligibUity delcrminBlioriS thai the Department may request or requ.re.

4  Foir Meaflnge: The ControdOf uiuJerstends thai oD epplicafUs for services heraunder. as «n as
mdividuels declared indligiWe have e right to a fiir.hearing regard.ng . .
Coniracior hereby covenants and ogrees that eii epplicanis for lenncei shdi °
en applicoilon form and thai each oppliconi or re-appiic«nt shall be inlormod o( hijhior righl to afoir
hearing irt oaordance with Oepatmem regulations.

5 Grotultloa or Kichboche: The Coniracior ograw that ii is a breatj of this Contract ̂
make a Dovmanl oraluity or offer of employment on behalf of me Contreclor. any Sub-Cw^ctor or
the State in order lo influence (he performancD of the Scope of Work daiaflad in Eihlblt A of mis
Contract The Slato may terminate this Contract and any suixoniracl or sub-ogreemeni if n
daiermined that payments, graluiiies or oflersd employment of eny kind were offered or receivod by
any officials, officers, employees or egenis ol the Contraclor or Sub-Controclor.

6  Roiroactlvo Poymonls; Nofwiihsianding anything lo the contrary contained in Of'"""*
other document, contract or understanding, il iseipressly uf>dcrsio^ artd agreed
hereto thai no paymenU will be made hereunder to reimburse ihd CcirbCW lor costs
any pjrpose or lor any services provided lo any Individual prior to Iho Effective Dote of the
Z ̂a^dhts Shan be made for espensos incurred by the Contmctor
prior 10 the date on which ihe Individuol applies lor services or (except as omer^se provided by the
federal regulations) prior lo a dcicrminalion thoi m.e individual is eiifl'bia for such services.

7  CondlUons of Purchase; Noiwithslanding anything to the contrary contained In the Con^l. nothing
herein contained shall be deemed lo oWigaie or require me Ocpanmoni lo purchase ̂ '^^es
hereunder ot a rate which reimburses the CooirBCtor in excess of (he Conireciors costs, oi o rale
wtiich exceeds me amounts reasonable end necessary to assure the quality of «"Ch service, or at o
rate which exceeds me rate charged by the Conlrcctor to inefiglBlD IndiwduOls or other
fSnirs ̂or stSi servico. If al during Ihe term of this Contract or cher receipt of l^ Final
Expenditure fteporl hereunder, (he Oepertmenl shall daiermme mat the Conbector has
paj;^onls hereu^Bf lo reimburse items of expense olhe, man su^ costs or has
m excess ol such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Conuaclor to mehgibio irxJWIduals
or omer third party funders. the Oepartmeol may elect to.

7.1.

7.2.

Renegoliale the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new
Deduct from any future paymeni to the Contractor the amount ol eny poor reimbursemenim
excess of costs; EUiibiC-SpvciiiP'ovtiJoiu CofltraowWMj. il

nnyii
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7.3. Demand fopaymem of the excess payment by the Contractor in event failure lo make
sutfi repayment shaD constitute en Event of OefeuR hereuMer. Whon'iho Cont^ior Is
perminod to delarmlne the efigibilily of individuaJs for services, (ho Controclor ogrees (0
reimburse (he Depervneni for an funds paid by (he DeparVnent to (ha ContrMtor lor services
provided to any irxJivldual who is found by the Oeparvneni to be lnangibla for such services ot
any time durir>g the period Of roteniion of records asiot>llshad horein.

RECORDS: kAAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFlOENTlALlTY:

e. Malntanance of Records: in addition to the eiiplbiiry records spoclfiad obovv. iheConiractor
covananta and ogrees to maintain the fdiOM^rtg records during the Conlroct Rariod:

8.t. Fiscal Records; boolit. records, documents ar>d other data evidencing and reflecting ad eosis
ar>d other expenses incurrod by (ha Conirac(or In the performance of (he Contract, and oQ
frKome received or coOected by he Coniraclor during the Contract Period, sold records to be
malnlatned irt eccordarveo with accounting procedures end practices which suffiderttly erxf
^operiy reflect en such costs end oipensas. and which arc occeptabio to the Oepdrtment. and
to indude. without limltaljon. all ledgers, books, records, end original cadence of costs such es
purchase requisitions and orders, vouehem. requisitions for maioriais. inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or roquirod by the
Oepan'mcnt.

8.3. Statistical Records: Statistical, anroilmeni. ettendance or vfsti records for each redpienl of
services during the Contract Period, which records shell induda all records of applicalionand
dlgibiiily (inctudinQ an forms required to determine etigibiiity lor each such reclfxeni). records
regerding the pro^slon of services or>d ell invoices submlned to the Department to obtain
payment (or such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Departrnsm regulations, tho
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patieni/redpiertt of services.'

G. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after (he close of tho
agency fiscal year, it is recommended thai the report be prepa/od in accordance with the provision of'
Office of Management and Budget Circular A't33. 'Audits of Stales. Local Govemmonis. and Non
Profit Organiiations' artd the provisions of Standards for Audit ol Governmental OrganizaiioAs.
Programs. Activities artd Functions. Issued by the tJS General Accounting Office (GAO standards) 8s
they pertain to flr\anciBl compiiarKO audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term ol this Ccntracl and the period for retention hereunder. the
Dopanmeni. the United Stales Department of Health end Human Services, and any of (heir
designated reprosenialives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuantio
the Contraci for purposes ol audii. examirtaiioA. excerpts and transcripts.

g.2. Audit Liabilities: In oddiiion to and not In any way in timiiation of obilgalions of the Ccntracl. il is
understood and agreed by ihe ContrKior thoi (he Contrxtor shati-bo held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to (he Oeparlmeni. aS paymenta'made under the
Conirxi to which exception has been taken or which hove been disaliow«d because of such erl
exception.

10. CcnfldentteUty of Records: AD inform8(ior>.'reports. and records maintained hereunder or coOxted
in connection «^th the performanco of the servicos and the Contract shall be confidential end shallnot
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to stale laws end (he regulations of
the Depatment regarding (ha use end disclosureof such information, disclosure may bo made to
public officials.requiring such informaiion in connccbon wiih (heir offrclol duties ond for purposes
dirocOy connxtod to (ho admiruslration of (ho services and the Contract: ond provided further, thai .
the use or disclosure by eny party of any Infomtailcn concerning o redptent for any purpose not
direcOy conneclad with the administration of (ho Oepartment or the Conirxiofs responsibilities wlih
respeci to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on wrlnen consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

EUJW C - Sp»ct»l Pf0«4jS0ft» Coftuaciw tntUHi r-
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NotwIthslsivJing anytOiAQ lo the cont/ery contained herein the covcnanis and oondiiron j conioinod m
the Pe^agreph eheU survive the terminaiion ol the Contrsci for any reason wtieisoever.

11. Ropoftt: Fiscal and Stetisticol; The Conuoctor agrees to submit the loDowing repoiu at ihefottowing
limes If rcguesied by the Oepatmer^i.

•  1 t.l. Iniortm Financial Reports: Written inierim financial reports containing o detailed descrtpbonoi
oil coils end non-oHowaWo expenses Incurred by the Conuactor to the date of Ihe report and
containing such other Information as shall be flaemed saUslactory by ihe Department to
justify the rate of payment herpunder. Such Financial Reports shofl bo submrnod on the formdesignated by the Oepartmeni or deemed sedsteictory by mo Deportment.

112 Final Report; A final report shaD be submitted within thirty (30) deys char me end ol the term
ol this Contreci. The Ftnal Report shell be In e form aailsfeciory to the Oeportmont end shall

'  contain e tummery eiotament ol progress toword goals and objectives Stated In the Prpposor
and other informaUon required by the Oepanmenl.

12 Complollon of Servlcoe: Discdowance of Costs; Upon the purchase by the Oeporiment of the
' maibnum number ol units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the ̂ ce limitation

hereundor. the Contract and all the obligations the parties hereunder (except such obiigeUoos es.
by the lerrns of the Contract ore to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract orid/or
survive the tormhailen oi the Contract) shall terminaie; provided however, thallf. upon review of the
Fmal Expendilure Report the Oepartmeni shaB disadow any expanses claimed by iho Coniroctor. as
costs hereundar the Oepartmoni shall retain the right, ol lis discreliori. to deduct iha amount of such
expenses as ore disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13 Crodllo; AD documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other moteriati prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the lervices of the Conlrod shall Include the following
siaiemenr. _

13 1. ■ The preparailon of this (report, documeni etc.) was fi/tanced under o Contract with theSteie^ New Mampshire. pejsortment ol Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the Slate of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources es were available or
required, e.g.. the United Siaios Oepartmeni of Heallh and Human Services.

14. PHof Approval end Copyright Ownorehip: AD materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased urrder the conUact shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, producilon,
distribution or use. The OHHS will retain copyris^l ownership for any and all original malcrtets
produced- ir*luding. but ncl limiled to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
postcre. w reports. Conboctor shall not reproduce any materials proArced under the conlroctwiihoot
prior written approval from OHMS.

15. Operation of FaelUlloa; Compllar>cD with Laws and Regulations: in Ihe operation of any l8Ciii,iies
for providing acrvicas. the Coniroctor shad comply with ad laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state county end munidpat authorities and with any diiccticn of any Pubfic Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which sha" impose an order or duty upon the coniroctor with respect to Ihe
operation of the facility or the provision of the services oi such fpcllity. If any governmental license or
permli shall bo requited for the operation of the said facility or the performance of ihe seid serMces.
Ihe Contractor wU) procure said license or permit, and will at all tirhes comply with ihe terms and
conditions of each such license or permit In cortnoclion wlh the foregoing requirements. Ihe
Controclor hereby cover\ants end agrees that, during the term of this Contract tf« facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requi/emenis of the Stole Office of the Fbe Mershaland
the local fire prelection agency, end shall be in conformance with local building and .zoning codes, by
laws end reguialions.

16 Equal Crnploymor>t Opportunlly Plan (EEOP): The Conlraclor will provlda an Equal Employment
' Opportunlly Plan (EEOPt lo the Office lor CMI RIghU, Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If rl has

received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipicr>l receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

EJiiblC-fifr^taiPrevHiona ContrttlorlnUiIl
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more employees. ii will meiniein a curreni EEOP on file ond submit an EEOP Certiftcailon Fomj lo the
OCR. certfyInQ Oiot Its EEOP Is on file. For redplenls teceiving less Iban $25,000. or puWic grantees
wilb fewer than SO employees, ragardiesa of the amount of the sward, (he recipient w<fl provide en
EEOP Certificelion Form to the OCR cenifyfng ll Is rtol roqul/ed to submli or meintin en EEOP. Norv
profit crganiieliom. Ir^leh Tribes, end medcei and educational InslUuUons are exempt from the
EEOP re^uiremeni. but era required to submit e certification form to (ha OCR to claim Iho exemptior).
EEOP Ccrtificolian fvmt pre ovailabia el: htlpi/fwww.oip.usdoi/ebouVoa/pdfs/cerl.pdl.

17. Limited Englieh Proficiency (tEP): At ctarifleo Oy Exacuihve Order 13i«6. improvtng Ae««sa to
Scrvlcoa for persons w(ih Limited Engilah Prondency. one resuHIng ogency guldanco. noUonoiertgln
dtscrimmetion Includat discrimlrxetion on iho basis of limited English proficiency (CEP). To ensure
eompflanca with the Cmrtbus Crime Control end Sofo Streets Act of 1968 ertd Title VI of the ClvB
flights Act of 1884, Contrectcre must tohe reosonebte steps to ensure vhat LEP persons have
meeningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancenvent of Contractor Employee Whlaitobiower Prolectlone: The
WtowiAQ shall apply to ell contracts thai excaod the Simptified Acquisition Threshold as dcflnod in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Co.KTAACTOft Employee WHisTLEeLOwgn rcmts and reouiremekt To Ihform Employees of
WwsTLEBiowen RtOKis (SEP 20i3)

(a) This concrocl ond employees woriing on this conuaci wliJ be subject to (ha whistlebiower righis
ef>d remedies in the pilot progrom on Conlroctor employee whistieWowor proiaciions established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by seaton 828 of the National OelenscAulhoriutlon Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. U.
112-239) end FAR 3.906.

(b) Tha Contractor shall inform Its employees in writing, in the prodominant (ariguage of Iho wortiforce.
of employee whlsiieblower rights and prolcctionsundor 41 tj.S.C. 4712. os described in section
3.006 of the Fedcroi Acgursiiion Regt^iion.

(c) The Contractor shdS Inien the substance of this clause. mcKiding this parogroph (c). in all
subcofllrocti over the simplified acqulsiiion threshold.

19. Subcontractore: OHMS recogr^es thai the Conlroctor may choose to use subconiracJom with
greetef expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
bvl the ConlTBCtor shall retain the responsiblTity and occouniability for the funciion(8). Prior to
subcontracting, the Coniracior shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability lo perform the delegated
fonclion(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies actlviiias and rcpo^g
resportsibitiiies of the subconbacior end provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing ser^ctions If
the subcontractor's pcrformorKe Is not adeqwBia. Subcontractors are sobjeci lo the sameconiroctuol
condilkmi as the Conlractor end the Coniroclor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with ihoso conditions.

When the Coniroclor ddcgotes a funciion to a subcontractor, the Conuocior shall do the foiiowtng;

'  19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor'i ability to perform the ocdvllies. before delegeling
(he function

19.2. Have a writter^egreemeni with the subconiroctor that specifies act'rviiiesendreporting
rcsponslbllillas end how sarKtlons/revocation will be managed If the subcontroctor's
peifonrtorKe is noi adequate

.  19.3. Moniv the subconiractor"8 performance on en ongoing basis

omvii
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19.4. Provide (0 OHHS on annual ichoduia UeniifylnQ an subcontractors, Oelegaled funciionsend
responsibilitiet. and when the subeontroctor'o porformonce w(D ba rovtowod

t9.5. OHMS$hall.ei»is<Sscretion,revieWandopprcveofl«ubcontfOCts.

(f tho Contractor iOoniirios derciendos or areas tor improvement ore tdenilfied. the Contractor shot}
lake correcbve oclion.

20. Contract Ooflnlllons:

20.1. COSTS: Shai) mean mesa direct and indirect Items of expense determined by the Oepertmeni
to be abowabta or^ roimbursobte in occordonce with eeti end accour>ttng pdncipies established
in eccorderve with atate end lederal lows, regutatlont. rules end orders.

20.2. OEPAPTMENT: NH Oepartment ol Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicabla. she!) mean the document submltiad by the Conuactor on a
form or forms reoulred by the Oeparvnent and conuining a description of the services end/or

'  qoodz to bo provided by Iho Conlroctor in accordarKO with the terms and cor>dttjons of the
Contract and setting forth the tolat cost and sources of rovonuo for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each servico that (he Contractor it to provide to ofgibia individuals hereunder, shall
mean thai period of time or that spociM ocdvfiy determined by the Oepaiment and specified
'in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEOERAiySTATE LAW: Wherever federal or stale (dw>. regulolions. rules, orders, and •
policies, etc. ore referred to In the Conirscl. the said referarKO shall bo deemed to mean
oil Such laws, roguiolions. etc. as they may bo amended or revised from time to lima.

20.6. SUPPLANTING.OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Coniracior under this'
Contract vrtli not Supplant eny existirrg federal funds available lor these sarvieas.

E «hfea C - specbl P»ov*»>cnj Conuacli* Inltblj ^ '
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ftgVISIQNS TO STANOABQ CQNTftACT LANGUAGE
y

RovUlOoe 10 Fo«n P.^7, Oorwrel Provtolone

1.1. 4 Conditional Npiy* o' Agfeemeni. ropiaceO es foiiovve:
4. pQNDlTIONAl NATURE OF ftgpEEMENT.

NoMinsientff^fl ony p/ovhlon of mij cofUrery. afl obOQeiiOfte of the Sialo
hereonOor. Including wimool llmliatloft. ihe coniinuence of pojfmenii; 1"
under (his AgVcemeni are cooDngeni upon continuod opproprtewn or ovadabiBry of f^s.
indudinQ ony subswjueni changes lo (he cppropdation or ev«HoDi|iiy of funds effotied by
any Giale or federal leglslalrvo or e*oculivo action thai rediXOS. climinotes. or otherwiso
modiftes the ooproprfation or ovaii6bin(y of funding for (his Agreemeni ond (he Scope of
Servicei provided in Enhibil A. Scope of Services, in vrfiple or In perl. In np cveni shoD the
Stale be llcWe for any paymcnls herwnder in eicess of appropnatod or !l!ll iill!
the event of o reducllon. icrmlnoJion or modification of oppropHalod or evcilpWe funds, d*
Sloie sheD have ihe right lo withhold peytncnt until such funds become ovailaWo. II over. The
State Bhall have the right to. reduce, lormtneie or modify services under this ̂ reemeni
Immediately upon glviig Ihe Cont/ocior notice of such reduction, tarmlneuon or modipcat
The Stole shall not bo required to transler funds from any clher source or aceour\t Into die
AcoounlJ*) ldentir«d in bloOt t.6 of the Coneraf Provisions. AccounI Number, or any other
eocouni In the avenl funds ere reduced or unovoaable.

1.2. ■ Section 10. Termination, is emendod by oddmg the loDow^ng language.

10.1 The State may lerminate die Agreement el any lime for ony reason, at the s«e discrelion of
Ihe State, 30 day® after giving the Contreclor written notice ihei the State is exercising iis
option to terminate the Agreement.

to2 In the event of eoriy lerminalion. the Cont/oclor shoo, within tS days of notice of certy
tormlnotion. develop end- submit to the Stele e Transition Plan- for services under the
Aoreemeni. including but fx)l limited lo. Identifying the present and future needs of d.ents
receiving senrices under the Agreomont end establishes a process to moot those needs.

10 3 The Contreclor shaO fv/iy cooperate with the State and shell prompOy provide dciaiM
■  inlormoiiOA to support the TronsHion Plan including, but not limited to. any inlormoiion or doW

reouested by the State related fo the termination of the Agreement end TranslUw Pfen end
shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10 4 In the ev«m that servfcos under the Agreement, including bul not Hmiied to cBenis receiving
'  servteet under ihe Agreemenl ere irtnsiiionod to having services delivered by another enuty

induding conl/ecled providers or the Stole. Ihc Contractor shall provide a process foiuniniemrpled delivery of services in 0* Transliton Plan.

10.5 The Conirector shell esieblish o method of noiifying cflenis and other affected Indlvlducis
about the ire'nsiHo/t. The Cont/acfor shall indudc the proposed commgmcaiions m its
Transition Plan submined to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2 t Tha Depertmcnl reserves the right lo eiiend'this agreement lor up to two (2) addittone) years.
conUngenl upon seWtoctory delivery of services, available funding, wmtten agreemenl of ihe
pcrtes end cpproval of theGovcmor and Exacutivo Council.

eANt)ilC-t-R#»iP»*VE»wpflw«»toSuftOirtCcwftaionayto4 ComrjcuvtnWaU, ^ ^
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CgftTIPICATlQN REQARDING DRUQ^REE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified In Section V3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the ptovisioAs of
SectbAS 5151-5160 of the Dni^Free Wohiplace. Ad of 198B (Pub. L. 10&430. Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et eeq.). and further agrees to have the Conlreclor'i represanlalrve. as idenliried in Sections
1.11 ond 1.12 of the General ProvlsJons eiecutc (hefonowlng Certificalioo:

ALTERNATIVE 1- FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMeNT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AORICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certificalioo is r^utred by the regtdellons Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Orvig-Free
Workplace Act of lSS8(Pub. L. 100^90, TKIe V. SublltfeD;41 U.S.C. 701 etaeq.). The January 31.
1989 regulalions were amended and puMiehed cs Part (I of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
31681-21691). and require certtAcalion by grantees (and by infererKe, sub-grenlees and sub-
contractofB). prior to aword; that they wtfl moinlBsn b drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
roguletion provides thai o grantee (end by inforor\co. aub-grantees end sutxor>l/adon) that is a Slate
moy elect to moke one codificaiion to the Oepanmeni in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for -
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the ceitrfcallon. The ceitifcote set out betow.ls a
melenal represenlation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards ihe grant. False
cerlificalion v viotalion of Ihe cenificaliOA shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemmenl wide suspension or debarmant. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner
NH Deportment of Heafih ond Human Sorvicoi
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee cortifles that it wiD or will continue to provido 0 drug-free workplace by.
1.V Publishing e slatement noiifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of o controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace artd specifying the ocfons that will be tsken egainsi employees for violation of such
prohlbilbn;

1.2. Establishing en orsgoing drug-free awarenosi program to inform erhpioyees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in Ihe workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of mainleining o drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drugi counseling, rchobfiitaiion. and omployoo ossisionce programs; and
1.2.4. Tho penallies lhat may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in lha workplace;
1.3. Making H o requ'yemenl that each employee to be engaged in the performance of llio gront be

given o copy of the siatement required by paragrsph (a);
1.4. Noiifying the employee in the slatement required by paragraph (a) thai, as o condition of

amploymenl under Ihe grant. Ihe employoo will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of (he slatement; and
1.4.2. • Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violalionof o criminaldrug

statute occurrir>g in the workplace no later than fivo calendar days after auch
conviciion;

1.5. Notifying Ifte agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or olheovise receiving octual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicled employees must provide notice, irrdudirrg posilion title, to every grant
ofr<er on whose gront aetrvity the convicted ampioyeo was working, unless iho Federal agency

EjfNaaO-C«nnciaonieo»rUtnoDrugFrMi VertOor irAitli
worsprse* Rscitrntint

cuo*wv>Mri>
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has deiisnaied q ceniial poin| for (ho rocoipi of euch noitcos. Noiico shai) ihcludo the'
identificolion numOerfs) of eoch effected grant;

1.6. Tailing one of the foOowlng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, wilh respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel Kibn against such on employee, up to and Inctuding

.  termination. cor\$lsteni with tho roquiromenis of (ho Reh^iiitaiion Act of 1973. os
emended: or

t .6.2. Requiring tuch em^yee to partcipote salistocloHty In a doig abuse osslsionco or
rehabiihaiion program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enlorccmeni, or other appropnaie egency;

1.7. Makir>g 0 good lailh effort to continue lomolntein-a drvg-free .worliplace tnroupn
implementation of paragrsphs VI. 1.2. t.). 1.4. t.&. and1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided beiow the sitefs) for the performance of work done in
connection wilh 1^ specific granl.

Place of Performartce (itreet address, city, county, state, tip code) (list each location)

Check O K there are workplaces on Tde that are not identified hero.

Vendor Name; Norlhern Human Services

6 hji 1 ^
Dote Narfw £fic ̂ nson

Tiiie: ce

Exniaii 0 - CcrtlOcaOM repirtfnfl o»u(i Frae venoc indisis
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CEflTIPICATtOH REGARDING LOBBYING

Tho Vendor idenliTted ̂  Section 1.3 of the General Provisiont egreei to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Lew 101-121. GovtmmerU wide Guidanco for New Restriciions or> Lobbying, end
31 U.S.C. 1352.8r>d further agrees to have the Contractor's representative. OS UeniiAed in Sections i.ii
arid 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certirication:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • COhTTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Progroms (intfcate oppliceble p'ogrom covered):
'Temporary AssbtarKe to Needy FomlSes ur^der Titla iV-A
'Child Support Entorcemeni Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Tille XX
'Medicoid Program under rrtle XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'CNld Care Oevelopment Bbcli Grant urvfer Title IV

The undersigned certiftes. lo the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have bean peid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
eny person lor inftuencrng or oltempting lo inHuence en o^cer or employee of any egerKy. o Member
of Cortgrets, an o^cer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 8 Mmber of Congress in
connection with ihe awarding of ar>y Federei coniiecl. coniinusiion. rental. amer>dmeni. or
modircaTton of ony Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperetrvo agroemorit (Br>d by spodte mention
sub-grantee or sub-contreclor).

2. If eny funds Other lhan Federal appropriated fundsheve been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or onemptlng lo innuerwe on officer or employee of eny egency. o Member of Congress,
en ofTtcer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal conlrocl. grant, loan, or coopereiive agreement (end by spectTc menl'on sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit ̂ andard Form LLL. {Disclosure Form to
Report L^bying. In accordance wiih Us inslrucibns. attached and identiTiod as Standard Exhibit £•(.)

3. The underslgrted shaO requird that ihe language of lha certificai'cn be included in the award
document for sub-owords el ell tiers (Including subcontrocis, sub-grants, and contracls under grants,
toans, end ccopcrallvo agreements) end that oD sub-rccipionis shall certify ond disctoso accordingly.-

This certiricaiion is a material representaiion oi fact icton which reliance was piBced when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certifcsiion is a prerequisite for making o' entering inio this
iransacibn imposed by Section 13S2. Title 3i. U.S. Code. Any person who faib to file ihe required
cenifrcoiion shaD be subject to o civi) penally of rwt loss lhan St 0.000 ond not more than Si00,000 for
each sxh failure.

Vendor Neme: Northern Human Services

fphm .
Dalo

4.
Nome: Eric JoMnson
Tilts: CEO

EtfUfib E - CsnUuiton Rca*<tfno LoaeyVig vendor trCUh
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gpPTIFICATtON REfiAROiNC DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER qF,^«;PQMSIBILITV MATTERS

The Vendor aoraified in Socilon 1.3 o1 the Genaral Provisions agrees to comply with Iho
Executive Offica of Ihe PfeiWeni. EKCCullve Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 rogoidmg Oebarmeni.
Suspension, end Other R«sponjil>% Matters, ervl lurther ogrees to hove Ihe Conlraclor's _
feptwntolive. « identified In Sections Ml orvl i.i2 oMheGeneral Provislona execute the foUowing
Cenir^efiort:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION .h.
1. By signing end eubmlttiftg ihls preposol (conlrad). the ptospecUve pnmory pertrcponl is proWJIng the

certification set out below.

2  The Inablfity of e person lo provide the certifcation required betow wiu'not rseceisanty rcsuB in denial
of participalion in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospMUve particlpo/rt shafi wbmit an
exptanatlon of why il cennol provide the certification. The certification "
coruidcrcd in connection wilh the NH Ocptrtmerfi of Hearth and Human Seryfces (OHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this iransactioh. Howgvor. failure of the prospwlrve
partcipanl lo furnish o ceftifcation <y en explanation shall disqualrfy auch person from portlcipniion In
this transaction.

3  The certrfcaUon In this clause Is a material rcpresoi>Ulion of fact upon which renarKC was pl^
when OHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later delermrted that the pro^wnro
orimarv participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certificalion. in addition lo other
available lo tho Federal Government. OHHS rnay lermineta this iransacuon for cause or delauH.

4  The orospocltve primary participant ahafi provide Immediate written notice to the OHHS age^ to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted H at any lime the prospective primary participani leems
lhal its certification was erroneous when submined or has become errorroous by reason of changed
circumslancos.

5  The terms'covered transacDon."debarred.*'iuipflnded.*'ineligible. "Iwer lier cdver^
". transaction/ 'parilclpeni/ 'parson/ 'primary covered transeclton/ 'prmcipel ^oposal. and

'voluntarily excluded/ as used in this clause, have ihe meanmgs set out
Coverage sections of Ihe rules Implefiwnting Executive Ordei 12549; 45 CFR Pert 76. See the
attached deflnHions.

6  The Dfospectiva primary participani agrees by lubmitiirrg this proposal (coniracl) thai, should the
■  proposed covered iran^ion bo onlered Into, it shall not knowingly enter into any Imwr Irer covered

transaction wtth a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, ei volontarily excluded
from participalion n this covered transaction, unless authortzed by OHHS.

7  The prospective primary partleipam further agrees by Submitting ProP®"' ^
clause Idled 'Certificetion Regarding Oobarmeni. Suspension, inoiigrbiiiiy and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Traniaclions/ provided by OHHS. without modificatior>. in oil lower Uer covered
transactions end in all soliclietions for lower tier covered iransections.

8 A participant in a covered transocHon may rely upon a ccrtifcotton of a ptospociive ®
tower tier covered iransBcHon lhat it is nol debarred, suspended. ineliQibJo. or Invoiuntanty excluded
from the coverod transaction, unless II knows lhal the certificalion is crronoous. A partcipanl may
decide the method end frequency by which B determines the eligibility of iis pruicpais. Each
perticipeni may. but is nol required to. chock tho Nonprocuromenl List (of excluded parties).

9  Nothing contained In the foreg^ng shall be construed to require ostaWishmenl of "a system of records
In order lo render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge end ^

pjjTi et 2 ' D*'* .
&OVM F -CenHMOortRcsiNlnpOeaoonim. Siap^mlon veviflo; INUW —\/ . ..S q,
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Informptbfl of 8 pdrticipant is not roquirod to eiceed that whicb is nofmplly possessed by a p'uden)
person in the ordinary course oI business dealings.

10. Except for trar^sadiOAs oulhorUed under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if d participanl in a
covered t/ansadion knorwngty enters into a tovrer lier.covered trsnsaclion with a person who is
suspended, datiarred. Ineltgfele, or voiuniarDy eiduded from patUdpatlon in this (ransacUon, in
oddltior^ to other remedies avoilabte to the Fede»el oovemmeni. DHHS may terminate this lrensaclior>
for cauio or defauh.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
l'i. The prospective primary participant cortlftoa lo the best of Us hnowtedge and belief.'that it end its

principals;
11.1. ere rtot presently deberred. suspended, proposed for debormortl. declared.(rteligible. or .

voiuniortty excluded from covered ironeodions by eny Fedoroi oeportmeni or ogency:
11.2. hove not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (conimcl) been convicted of or. had

a crvBjudgmerxl rendered ogoinst (hem for commission ol fraud or ocrlmirial offense in .
cortneciion wHh obioining. onempiing to obtain, or performing a pubk (Federal. Stoic or local)
(rinsociion or a contract under a public transaction; vioiaiiort of Federal or State entiirusi
slatules Of commission of embcuicmefll. ihefl. forgery, bribery, fatsifjcalion or destruction of
records, making false statemonis. or rocoving etoicn property;

11.3. are nol presently indicted for otherwise cnminalty or civilly charged by 0 govommenlal entity
(Foderal. Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragreph {l)(b)
of this cerfiTrcation; end

11.4. have not within a thrao-year period preceding this applcalion/proposat had one or more pubOc
.trans8CticnS'(Federat, Stale or locaO termnatcd for cause or dafauD.

12. Whora tho prospecirve primary participanl Is unable to certify to eny of the slotements in this
certificaiion. such prospective participeni shell otiech on explanation to mis proposal (conirect).

LOWER TIER COVEREO TRANSACTIONS
13. 6y sigrung and submining this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower t'«r participant, as

dermed in 45 CFR Port 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.t. arc not presontty deberred. suspended, proposed for debarmcni, declared inetigibte. or

vduniarify exciuded from participation in this transaciior) by any federal department or ogerKy.
13.2. where the prospective tower tier participanl is unable to certify to any of (he-above, such

prospective participant shall attach pn explanation to this proposal (controct).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submining (his proposal (controct) that it wHI
Include this clause entillod 'Certiricalion Regarding OcbBrfnenl. Suspension. Ineligtoility. end
Volunlary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions." wiihout modificoiion in ell lower tier covered
transactions and In ell soMcitatloos for lower Her covered iransaciions.

C.hli'i
Daie^ ' Name: Eric Johnson

Tille: q^q

Vendor : Morthem Human Services

CuO*<VI<OIi>
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CgRTIPlCATlON OF CQWHlANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAtNlNQ TO
FEDERAL NONPISChVmINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORCANIZ^IONS ANO

■  WHISTLEflLOWER PROTECTIONS _

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 ol the CJaneui P»ovl»ione agfces by aignatufe ol the Coniroctof's
repreaenlativc OJ idenlificd In Sectlonj l.ll end l.i2oHhe General Provbion*. to execwte ihc/oHo-ring
cehificailon;

Vandor will compty. and will foquire any ewbsfonlees or jubconiraciore to compty. with ony applicoble
federal nondiicrimlnatlon reqoiroments. which may inclyde;'

• the Omnibui Crtmo Corvuol end Safe Street* Act oftesa (42 U.S.C. Seciioft J7a9d) whfch prohibit*
roeipient* ol federal fur>dinp under thb atatute from tf*crWr>ating. eilhar In employment practice* or in
the delrvary of serv^* or bertefils. ort the basis ol iko. cota*. ie6g>of>. naibnal origin, and tex. The Act
rttquirc* certain recipiertts to produce on Equal Emptoymoni Opportunity Plan;
• the Juvenile Justice Oelirw^uency Preventon Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b)) which edopis by
reference the civil right* obligalions of the Safe Street* Act. Recipient* of federal funding under thb
stotute are prohlbllod from diicriminalir>g. either in employment practice* or in the delivery of service* or
berwfit*. on the basil of race, color. religiQn. natiooal origin, and *e*. The Act ir<lucle* Equal
Emptoymeni Opportunity Plan requirements:

. the Civil Righli Act of 19&4 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibil* raciplenU of federal finartcial
es*bl8r>ce from discrininotiftQ.on the basis of race, color, or rtolionol origin in any program or activity):

. the RohabUilation Act of t973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohfbits recipients ol Federal financial
assistance from discriminatiftg on the basis of disabnty. In regard to ernployment and the dativcfy of
services or berwfit*. «n any program or activify:

• the American* with Oisabililics Act of t990 (42 U.S.C. Seclioru 12131 -34), which prohibHs
discrimination end eniure* equal opportunity for persons with disabiliiia* in employmenl. State arvd IocbI
govemmanl ftorvlce*. public accommodations, commerdal facifitie*. ond transportation:
- the Education AmorxJmonl* of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Section* 1661. 1683.1685-66). which prohibils

; discrimination on the ba*i» of sex in federaDy assbled educalion programs:

. the Age Obcrimlnalion Act ol 1975 (42 U.S.C. SecliOfts 6106-07). which prohibit* dbcrimination on the
basis of age in programs or ocliviliei receiving Federal financial assblarKe. it doe* not ir^ludc
employment discrirrvnallon;

• 28 C F R. pt. 31 (U.S. Dopartmertl of Juiiice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U S bepertmeni ol Juilica Regulations - Nortdiscriminalion; Equal Employmanl Opporiuniiy: Policies .
and Procedure*): Execullve Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws lor faSh-based end community
organUalion*): Executive Order No. 1355B. which provide fundamental principte* ond policy-making

■ criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organaotiont:

• 26 C.F.R. pi. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Reguiolions - Equal Treatment for FoRh-Based
Orgartizaiion*): end Whbiteblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 end The National Defense Authorizailon
Act (NOAA) for Fbcol Year "2013 (Pub. L 112-239. enected January 2. 2013) the Pitot Program (or
Enhancement of Contract Employee WhlsUebtower Protocliorii. which proiccli employees egainsi
reprisal for cortoin wlusHe blowing activities in conr\ection with federal grant* and contracts.

The certificole *el out below is o material representalion of fad upon »»hich reliarico is placed whan the
agency award* the grant. Fohe certification or violation ol the cerliricaitor> shall be ground* (or
luspensiOft of payments, suspension or termination of grant*, or govtrnmcnt wide auspension or
debarment.

EiNbltO
VenOtf irtUil) ̂
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In ihe event e FePerel ot Slete court or Federal.or Stats sdminisiraiive egerKr makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color.' religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipleni of (ur^di. the recipient wil) forward a copy of Iha firtdlng to the Offce fo* Civil Rights, (0
(he appiicebie contracting agency or division within ihe Department of Hoatih ond Human Services, and
to tho Department of Health end Human Servlcas OTico of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor idor^liiied in Section 1.3 of (he Generel Provisions egrees by srgrvature of (ho Contractor's
representative as Identlfiod >n Sections 1.11 and i.12 of the General Provisions, to oxecute the following.

. certifcaiion:

I. By signing ond subrnining ihls proposal <conlf«cJ) the Vendor agrees to comply wHh ihe provisions
ind'icaied above.

Vendor Name;- Northern Human Services

Nemo: £ric Johnson
rule; C60

fintrtc

Cuo^wC*Tp*ir«>^nairwm»*W/«rqirier<»l3ro»Wwiw>.tW
•vwr, ■ -

verdor inhls<t.
«I Osartudani

Mlm
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- CgRTIPICATlON ftCGAROING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

PubOc Low 103-227, Pert C • gnvironmenlel Tobacco Smoke, abokrtoem ea (ho Pro-Children Act pf 1994
(Act), requires (hel smoking r>ot be permined in any portion of any indoor lecilily owned or leeted or
contracted for by en eniiiy end used routinely or regularly for the provtsiort of hoaQh. day care, education.
Of library lervicei to children under the age of 16. K Ihe services ere Igndcd by Foderel progrems either
directly o* through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law dc«s not apply to chSdien's servicet provided in private lesiderKCS.-facilities funded sdely by
Medicare or Medcaid funds, end ponions of facililierusad for inpatieni drug or alcohol trootmem. Folturp
to cornply with tne provblons of tr>e law may resuR in the Imposition of o civil monetary penetty of up to
S1000 per dey ar^or the irrx)osit'on of an pdminislratrva compEarKe order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provtsiona agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
reprcsentatrve as idenlificd in Section l.t 1 and t.tiof the Gerteral Provisions, to execute the fqtlowing
cortifcdtio'n;

1. By signing and lubovrting this contract. Ihe Vendor agrees to make roasonabia efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Low 103-227. Part C. known as the Prq-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: Northern >Human Services

(^pln ,
Date Fiamc; trie Johnson

TitJs: C60

Cuo^iero

EiWbiiH-Ctni.'eaOonBtaifd'ra vendoMr^isH)
EnvVervmrvsiTMueee Smoxe r 'H 11 (k
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMEHI

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security.of Individually Idemifiabie Health informailon. 45
CFR Parts 1W and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined ncrein. "Business
Associate" ShaH mean the Vendor ano subcontractors and agents of ihe vendor that receive. ̂
use Of have access-to protected health Information undcr ihls Agieomeni and "Covered Entity"
shell moan the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

11 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "ercach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Rujiinf Associate" has the meaninfl given such term In section 160.l03of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

g  'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

•Dftslonaled Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record scF
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AooreQation' shall have the same meaning es the term 'data aggregation" In 45 CFR
Section 164,501.

f. 'Heahh Care Qoefations' shall have the same meaning es the term "health care operations*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

n  'HITECH Act* means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TiilcXni. Subtitle O. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.-

h. "HIPAA" moans the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ol 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy end Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individuar shall have the same meaning as the term 'individuat* in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.5ai(g).

j. "Privacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 1.60 and 164. promulgated under HlPAA by the United States
Depaflmenl of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Haaiih Information" shall have the same meaning es the.ierm "protected health
infofmalion" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited lo Ihe infonfnalion created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. /X

VMU E'""' utivifvlnflim W
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I. 'ReQuiffld bv Law* shall have the some meaniftg as the term Vequlrcd by law" in 45 CPR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary* shall mean the Secretary of (he Oepartment of Health and Human Services or
his/her desighee.

■ n. •Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Eloclronic Proioctod
Health Informslion at 45 CPP Pan 164. Subpon C. end am^ndmer^ts thereto.

0. "Unsecured Proiected Healih Informatlor^' means protected hoallh InformatJon thai la not
secured by e technology stenderd that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauihoriied Indiv.idudls and is developed or endorsed by
a-standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Paris 160. 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and Ihe
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall nol use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit'
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and adminisirailon of the Business Associate;

.  II. As required by law. pursuant to Ihe terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
~  third party. Business Assqciate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (<)

reasonable assurances from the. third party that such PHI will be held conftdentiaOy and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or tor the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (II) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of, any broaches of the confrdentiailty of the. PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associa;le shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response lo a
request (or disclosure on the basis (hat it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entify so that Covered Entity has an opportunity lo ob}ect to (he disclosure and
to seek appropriate icQef. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busineu

iOym« EiNbrii veftao* imaii _ y
Htrflh l/uxnmo PortibCIiy Ad
8utjri«i» AuodiU AgrMmeni

2 016 Dice
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entify has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate thai Covered Enllty has agreed to
be bound by additional resirictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rute. the Business Associate
shall ba bound by such addilionai resirictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(}) ObllflQtlcns and Activities of Buslneaa Aaaoctate.

a. ' The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediaiefy
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement lnctudir>g breaches of unsecured'
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the prelected health information Involved. Including the
types of Identiners and the likelihood of re-identificalion:

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health informalion or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health informalion was actually acquired or viewed -
o The evtent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

r

d. Business A'ssodale shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall ret)uire all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of Ihe Conlraclor's business associate
agreements with Conlractor's Inlended business associates, who will be receiving^!

y2(lt4 EmlHil VvndaMUits^
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pursueni to this Agreement, with rights ol enlorcemcnl and indemnification from such
husmess associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph of 11^ standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f  Within five (5) business days of receipt of a wrincn request from Covered entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal tjuslness hours at Us offices all
records, books, egreements. policies and procedures relating to the use or>d.disc»osure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for porposes of enabling Covered Entity to dolormino ̂
' Business Associate's compliance with the terrns of the Agreement.

0. Wthln ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associete stiali provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an.indivlduai in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h  Wthln ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Erility for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and. incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fuirill lts
obligalions under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i  Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

1. Wlhin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHt. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such informatton as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Us obligalions
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect Id PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access Id. amendment of. or'accounting ol PHI
dircclty from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Eniiiy shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Ruio. the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon .as practicable,

I  Wthln tan (10) business days of termination of the Agreemenl. for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received frorn. or created or received by the Business Associate in connectron with the
Agreement, end shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. II return or
destruction is not feasible, or. the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreemenl. Business Associate shall continue to exleod ihe protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit furlher uses and disclosures of such PHI to Ihos^
purposes that make the return or destruction inleasible. for so long as Business^^^

Vendor INUlU
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Associate maintains such PHI. if Covered Entity, In Its sole disc/etion. requires that the
Susiness Associate destroy any or sit PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

{4) Ohlloatlons ol Covered Entttv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or lim)iatlon(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided lo individuals In accordance whh 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such chenqe or llmitalion may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity ehel) promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed.by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CPR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business As^ciatc's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Tefmlnatlon forCauso

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and condiiions (P*37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity rriay immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowtedge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminato the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violaiion to the Secretary.

<6) Miscellaneous

a. Oflfmitions and Reoulalorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein.

Shall have the same meaning as those terms in (he Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to lime. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Pn'vacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Eritity and Business Associale agree to take such action as is
necessary lo amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply wiih the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. Ihe Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law,

c. pala Ownefshio. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provkied by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. interofetation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rute.

y20t4 EjNM'I VcaOw tntOsU
HflDnhiAtwxKaeonibai/yAci
BujiAeiiAuodncAflfXJfnem

PxgeSoiS Oau,



DocuSign Envelope ID: 662BD7F4-7584-411C-A455-D05F1CD57331

DocuSign Envelope (0:1681BA8E-ACA2-4AAO-9C5O-9O7F7A15AF09

OecuSIgn Envelope ID: 4E398MF-UC7-4fiAE«300^l02£38£BF

New Hampf hirv Depertmoni of HeeKh end Humsn Services

Eihibit I

SgorcQaiioft. If any term or eondhion of this Exhioii I or tne appiicai/on thereof to any
person(s) or circvmstanco is held invafid, such invafidity shell not affect other, terms or
conditions wt^ph can te given effect whhout the invalid term or condition: to this end'the
terms and conidilions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provlstons In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. reh^ or
destruction of.PHl. exteosions of tf« protections of ine Agreement in section (3) i. the
defense and IndcmnhtcaUon provisions of sect/on (3) o end Perapraph 13 of (he
standord terms ond cond'itions (P-37). shall surv'ive the (erminalion of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit h

Oepsnment of Health end Human Servtces

gna

USA- U.7//14
NerT>e of Authorized Ropreseniative

i7FH ̂
Title of Authdriz^ Roproseniative

Oaie

Northern Human Services

e ol ihcxVendor
;
a.

Representative Signature onCulhorized Representative

Eric Johnson

Name of AuttiorUod Representative

CEO
Title of AulhorUed Representative

Date' ' '

ynu ExHMl
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Segfeoaiion. If any term or condition of (his Exhibit I or the application (hereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and corxjiiions of this Exhibit t aredeclared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regardir^g the use and disclosure of.PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defertse er>d indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms end conditions (P-37}. shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

OepertmerM of Heaiih and Human Services

The Slate

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name ci.Authorized Representatiye

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Northern Human Services

endor

Signature onCulhorized Representative

Eric Johnson

Name of Authorized Representative

CEO

Title of Authorized Representative

iijfW-
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CERTIPlCATfON REGAROING TH£ FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT fPFATA> COMPLIANCE

The Foderel Funding AccouAlpbilily end Transperency Acl (FFATA) requires prime ewardees of individual
Fedoraigrsnii equdi to or greater Ih3r> $25,000 and awarded on or «fier October 1,2010. (6 report on
data related to eiecutive compensation and ossociaied firsNier sub-gronis of $25,000 or more, if (ho
InliliBi oward is below $25,000 but subsequoni grom modincoiions result in a lota) oward equal to or over
$25,000. the oward is subject to iho FFATA ropo/ling requirflments. es of the dole of the sward.
In eccordanee wiih 2 CFR Pad 170 (Reporting Subsward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Oepsrimeni of Heetth end Human Services (OHhS) must repon the (oltowing info.rmaiion for any
SubowBfd Of conlract owafd subject lo ir^e FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Arhoynt of Oward
3. Funding ogency
4. -NAlCiS code for cor)lr8Cts/CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
$. Award litle doscdptivo of the purpose of the funtfirvg sclcn
7. Location of tha entity
8. Principle place of perlormerKe
9. Unique idenlifiar of the er\ti)y(OUNS0)
to. Tciat compensation end names of the top Hve execuilves it:

tO.I. More than 60H of arinual gross revenues ore from the Federal government, and those
revenues arc greater thon $25M annually and

10.2. Compansal'ion rnformotion is nol already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the oward or oward emandmeni is made.

The Vendor idenliriad in Saciion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply wilh the provisions of
The Fadero! Funding Accouniability artd Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 end Public Law 110-252,
end 2 CFR Port 170 (Repqrting Subaward and Executive Compensation Infonmalion). end further agrees
to have the Conlrecior'e representative, as Identified lr\ Sections i. 11 and t. 12 of the General Provisions
eiecute the fbOowIng Certificalion;
The below named Vendor agrees lo provide needed informalion as outlined et>ove to the nh Oepartmen)
of Health and Human Services arrd to comply with aO appkebla prowsion» of the Federal Financial
Accountability end Transparency Act.

Vendor Name: Northern Human Services

Name: gnc Johnson
Tile: ceo

E;iMt)Q j - CeninuitOA R«^>n]lng the Feeettl Funding vendor infliati
J  Accdunitb3if)r And Tri/viptftncy Ao <FFATA) CompOonoe
CuowSnie'O P«Od ) ol I OMtIjTjlj
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FORMA

As the Vendor idenliftod In Section 1.3 of the Conora! Provisions. I certify that the responses to Iho
betow listed questions ere true end accurate.

,  I

1. The OUNS number for your entity b;,

2. tn your business or orgenlxalion's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organbelion
receive (t) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenge in U.S. foderel conirects. subconl/ocls.
toens. grants, sub-gronts. end/or cooperetive egreemenis; end (2) J25.000.000 or more In oitnual
gross revenues from U.S. federel contrects. subcontrects. loans, grants, subgronlt. find/or
cooperetive egreemenis?

HO YES

II Iho answer to 02 above is NO. stop here

If the enswer to 02 above is YES. please answer the foOowing;

3. Does the public have bccosi to inlormation about the componsalion of the exocul'ivas in your
business or organizotion through periodic reports filed under section t3(e) or t5(d) of the Securiiies
Eschange Act ot 1934 (15 U.S.C.7em(o). ■760(d)) or acction 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

it the answer to 03 above Is YES. stop here

It the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the fme mssi highly compens'aled officers.In your business or..
oirgenlzoUon are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Nome:

Nanse:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:
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A. Definitions

The followtnQ (erm& 'may be reflected and have the doscnbed meening In this document:

1. *6reach* means the loss of control, compromise. unauthorUed disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, uneuthorizod access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other then authorized users end for en other than
authorlzod purpose hove access or polontlel eccess to personally rdentifldbte
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to. Protected Health
Information.' Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section
164.402 pf Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident* shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident* in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident

- Handling Guide. National institute of Standards end Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential information* or 'Confidential Data* means el) confujentiaJ information
disclosed by one party to.the other such as oil medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health information and
Personally Identifiable Infonnaiton.

Confidential Information also includes any and all Information owned or managed by
the Slate of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Heetih and
Human Services <OHHS)' or eccessed In the course of performing contracted
services • of which coDecDon. disclosuro. protealon. and disposition is governed by
slate or federal tew or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Persortal Financia)
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Securiry Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industiy (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User' means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
OHMS data or derivative data in'accordance wflh the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder. ' '

6. 'Incident' means en act that'poteriilally violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or ils date, unwanted disruption or denial of service, ihe unauthorized use of
B system for the processing or storage of date; end changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without thie owner's Knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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n>all, all ol which may have lhe polenlial to put the Oala at fish ol unaothorfieO
access, use, disclosure. modiRcelion or destruciion.

7  'Ooon Wir6le»» Network* mean# eny networtt or aeomont of 0 networt* that is
f>oi desianolod by the Sialo of New Hafr>pshire's Department of Infomation
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of th© State, to transmit) will bo considered on open

•  netwrK and not adequately socufo for the iran.smisslon of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidenlial OHHS data.

e  -Personal inlomiation- (or TO means Information which can bo used to distinguish
■  or trace an IndivWuars identity, such as their name, social security number, ̂rsonal

Infonnallon as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometnc
etone or when combir»ed with other personal or identifying information which is Imkod
Of linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9  -Privecy Rule' shaii mean'the Standards for Privacy of individuaPy.ldentifiabte Health
Information at 45 C.F.R, Parts 160 and 164. promulgeled under HIPAA by the United
Steles Department of Health and Human Services.

ia -Pfolected Meaim Infotmation- (or 'PHI-) has the same meahing as
definition of -Protected Health Informaiion- in the HIPAA Pnvacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11 'Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
' Protected Health informatibn at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments

thereto.

12 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable.. unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals end is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing orgartization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DMHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use end Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidcntiannformatlon
except as reasonaWy necessary as outlined under.this Conirect. Further. Conlractor.
includinq but not lirriited to an Us direclors. officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any menner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose eny Confidenlial Information m response to a
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request for bisctosure on the basis thst it Is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without Ttrsl notifying DHHS so (hat OHMS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. if OHHS notifies the Contractor that OHHS has agrood to bo bour>d by eOditiooat
restricllons over ar>d above (hose uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to (he Privacy end Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrtctions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such addltior\al
restricllons and must abide by arty additional security aafogu'ards.

4. The Contractor agrees that OHHS Data or dertvative there front disclosed to en Ertd
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Oste obtained under this Contract may noi be used for
any other purposes (hat are rtot indicated in this Contract.

' 6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the date to the authorized representeiiyes
of OHHS for the purpose of inspecting to conftrm compliance with the terms of (his
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application ErKrypb'on. If End User is transmitting OHHS data containing
Confidentiat Data tetween applications, the Contractor attests the eppilcations have
t>een evaluated by an expert knowfedgeable in cyber security.and that said'
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission vie the interrtel.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such-as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting OHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted end being sent to end being received by email addresses of
persons authorized.to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site, if End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) musi be used and the web site must be
securo. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use Tile
hosting'services, such as Oropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Oata.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidenliel Oata via ceni/ied ground
mail v^thlr) the continental U.S. end when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
CcnfidentiBi Data said devices musi be encrypt^ and password-protected.

8. Open V^reless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Oata via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) vrhen
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If Ei^ User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit ConftdenUal Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the end User's mobile dovice(8) or laptop from which information win be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). dleo known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SRP to iransrrtt Conftdenlia) Data. End User wHI
structure the Folder and access ̂ vlicgcs to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
Inloffnalion. SFTP folders end sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-doletipn cycle (i.e. Conftdential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmlning ConMential Oa'la via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inapproprteie disclosure of Information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data end any derivative of the dala for the duration of this
Conl/act. After such time. Ihe Contrecior will have 30 days to destroy the dele and eny
derivetive in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contraclor agrees it will not store, transfer or process dala collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Cpnirect outside of the United
Stales. This physical location fcquirement shall also apply In the Implementation ol
doud computing, doud service or doud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monltdring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security evenis that cen impact State of NH systems
and/Of Department conftdential ir^formallon for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Ocpartmeni confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Conridenilal Date
In a secure location end idenicfjed in section IV. A.2

5. The Contraclor agrees Conrrdenllal Data stored In a Cloud musi be in e
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all epplicabto statutes end
regulations regarding the privacy end security^ All servers end devices musi heve
currently-supported end hardened operating systems. Ihe latest antl-vlral. enti-
hacker. aniLspam. antirspyware. and enti-malware utilities. Tlie environment, as a
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vvhole. must have aggressive intrusion-detection end firewan protection.

6. The Coniroclor agrees to and ensures Hs comptele cooperation with the State's
' Chief Informatior) Officer in the detection of any security vulnerebility of the hosting

mfrestarcture.

6. Disposition

1. II the Conirector will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or (is
sutKontrector systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
eecurely disposif>Q of such .data upon request or conlract lermination: and win
obtain written certrficailon for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors es e part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery opereUons. When no longer In use. electronic media containlr)g State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with induslry-eceepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlieilbn. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for. example,
degaussing).es described in NtST Special Pubfication 600-68. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Saniiization. Notions) Institute of Standards and Techrtology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document end certify In writing at
time of (he data destruction, and wiii provide written certrfication to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details' necessery to
demonstrale data Has been property destroyed and validdted. Where epplicabla.
regulatory and professtonel standards (or retontion requirements wID be jointly
evaluated by the State end Contrector prior to deslAiCtion.

2. Unless otherwise spacined. Wihln thirty (30) days of the termination of (his
Conirect. Contractor agrees to destroy eti hard copies of Confrdentia! Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless olheiwise spodried, wilhin thirty (30) days ol the temSinetion of (his
Contract. Coniroclor agroos to completely destroy ell electronic Confidenttal Data
by meons of data erasure, elso hno«vn as secure date, wiping.

rv. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Coniractor agrees to safeguard the OHMS Data received under this Contract, end any
derivativo data or Ties, as follows:

1. The Conirector will maintain proper security conircls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, end/or stored in the delivery
of conirected services.

2. The 'Conuaciof will mainiein policies, end procedures to protect Department
confidential informalion throughout the Information lifecycte. where applicable, (from
creelioo. transformation, use. storage end secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tepe. disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authonticalion and access corUrols to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Oepartmcni confidential Information
whore applicable.

4. The Coniraetor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities ere in place to
detect potential security events that can imped State of NH systems end/or
Department confidential inlormslion for corvtractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awarervss and education for its End
Users In support of protcding Oepsrtment confidantlal Information.

6. If the Contrddor will be $ub<onlr8ding any core functions of tt\e engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Conirecior will maintain e
program ol en internal process or processes that defines specific security
expeclations. and rhonitoring compliance to security requirements that at a mtnlmum
match those for ihe Ccntracior. induding breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to isign and comply with all applicable
- Slate of New Hampshire end Department system access end euthorization policies
and procedures, systems eccess forms, end computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department 8yslem(9). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contrador and any applicable sub-coniradors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines tha Contredor is e Business Associate pursuant to 45
CPR 160.103. the Contractor win e*ecute a HIPAA Business Associate Agraemenl
(BAA) with the Depertment and is responsible for maintaining compliBr>ce with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor wiO work with the Department at its request to complete.e System
Management Survey. The pun^se of the survey is to enable the Department end
Contractor to monitor for eny changes In risks, threats, end vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or en elternate lime freme at the Departmenis discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Depertment may request the survey bo completed when the
scopo of the engagement between the Department end the Conlrector changes...

10. The Contredor will not store. knowtr»gty or unknowingly, eny State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent b obteined from the Infonmation Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contredor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach end minimize any damogo or loss resulting from the breach.
The Stale shall recover from the ConlrBctor a!) costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limind to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs ossociaied with website and teiephone call center services rte.cessary due to
the breach.

12. Conireeior must, comply with oil opplicoblo tloluloo ond ropulalions reoarding the
privacy end security of ConTideniial Information, arid'must in all other respects
maintain the privocy and'securiiy of Pi end PHI at a level and scope that to not loso
than.tho lavol ond scope of requlremonis eppiicable to federal egenctes. including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § $52e). OHMS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Roles (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individuatly identifiab|o health
Information and as applicable under Stale law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish ond maintain epproprlote odminisirative. technical, end
physical safeguards to protect die confidentiality of the Conftdenilal Data and to
provent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide e level end
scope ol security that to not less (hen the level and scope of aecurity requlraments
established by the State of New Hampshire. Ocportmeni of Information Technology.
Refer to Verxlor Resources/Procurement at http37/wviw.nh.gov/doil/vendorflndex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies: guidelines, standards, and
procurement information rolallng to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees 'to maintain a documented breach nolincaiion and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, et the emeil eddressos
provided In Section VI. This incbdes a conftdenllal information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which effects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire networv..

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confideniiai Data obtained under this
Contract to onty those authorized End Users who need .such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection wiih purposes idenlificd in this Contrect.

16. The Contractor must ensure thai ̂ 1 End Users:

a. comply with such safaguerds as referenced In Section IV A. ebove.
implemented to protect Conndenlidl Informetion that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information ai all limes.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PP1 are encrypted end password-protected.

d. send emails coniaFn'mg Conrtdeniial information only tf encrvoted and being
sent to and being receNed by omall addresses of persons authorized to
roceive such information.
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0. limit disclosure of the Confidential Infonnaiion to the extent permined by law.

f. Confideniiel Infofmstlon received under this Contract and individually
Ideritlfidble data derived from DHHS Dela. must be stored In an area that is
physiceliy end (echr>oiog{caOy secure from eccess by unauthorized persons
during duty hours es vven os rion-duty hours (e.g.. eoor locks, card keys,
blometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only euthorized End Users mey irensmii tho ConfidenUol Dote. Including ony
derivative files containing personally identifiable Information, and in al) cases,
such data must be encrypled at all times when in i/ansil. et -rest, or when
'stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other Instances Confidential Dele most be maintained, used end
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by e risk-based
essossmeni of the circumstances Involved.

'  i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credanllai information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party eppl'caiion.

Conirector Is responsible for oversight end compliance of their Er>d Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsiie inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract. Including the privacy and security requiroments provided In herein. HIPAA,
end other eppHcabia taws end Federal regutations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance wiih this Contraci.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section VI. • •

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents end Breaches invotving PHI in
accordance with the egency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.3(X) • 306. In eddllion to. end
notwiihstanding. Contractor's compliance with al) applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Conirector will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information Is iriivolved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed incidents es required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify ar^d convene a core response group to determine (he risk level of Incidents
end determine risK-basod responses to incrdenis; end
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5 Delennine whether Breach noIiflcatlor^ is required, arx), d 60. identity appropriate
Breach nolificalton methods, timing, source, and contents trom emong different
opUons end beer costs associated with the Breach noiica es well es eny mitigation
measures.

Incidents end/or Breeches that Implicele PI musi bo addressed end reported, as
applicBble, In accordance with NH RSA 359'C:20.

Vt. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer

OHHSPrivacyOfficerQdhhs.nh.qov

. B. OHHS Security Officer

DHH$lnformationSecorityOffice@<Jhhs.nh.gov

■
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